
Mr Richard Parry Jones, BA, MA.
Prif Weithredwr – Chief Executive

CYNGOR SIR YNYS MÔN
ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL
Swyddfeydd y Cyngor - Council Offices
LLANGEFNI
Ynys Môn - Anglesey
LL77 7TW

Ffôn / tel (01248) 752500
Ffacs / fax (01248) 750839

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD NOTICE OF MEETING

PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO A 
GORCHMYNION

PLANNING AND ORDERS 
COMMITTEE

DYDD MERCHER, 
13 MAI, 2015

 1.00 o’r goch y 
prynhawn   

WEDNESDAY, 
13 MAY 2015

  1.00 pm  
SIAMBR Y CYNGOR,

SWYDDFEYDD Y CYNGOR,
LLANGEFNI

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 
COUNCIL OFFICES, 

LLANGEFNI

Swyddog Pwyllgor Mrs. Mairwen Hughes
01248 752518 Committee Officer

AELODAU / MEMBERS

Cynghorwyr / Councillors:

Lewis Davies
Ann Griffith (Is-Gadeirydd/Vice-Chair)
John Griffith
K P Hughes
W T Hughes (Cadeirydd/Chair)
Vaughan Hughes
Victor Hughes
Richard Owain Jones
Raymond Jones
Jeffrey M.Evans
Nicola Roberts

Public Document Pack



Please note that meetings of the Committee are filmed for live and subsequent 
broadcast on the Council’s website. The Authority is a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act and data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance 
with the Authority’s published policy

A g e n d a

Members are reminded that background papers referred to within committee reports 
are available for inspection in electronic format on the day of the meeting at the 
Council Chamber from 12.30 p.m. onwards; alternatively these may be inspected at 
the Development Management during normal office hours.  Documents referred to in 
reports may also be viewed in full on the electronic application files. 

Any additional information to hand following publication of reports will be verbally 
reported upon to the meeting.  

Before a decision notice is released conditions of approval or reasons for refusal 
given in written reports may be subject to minor amendments to account for 
typographical errors. 

Index

1 APOLOGIES  

2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST  

To receive any declaration of interest by any Member or Officer in respect of any item 
of business.

3 MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 8)

To submit, for confirmation, the minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and 
Orders Committee held on 1 April, 2015.

4 SITE VISITS  

There were no site visits following the last meeting of the Planning and Orders 
Committee.

5 PUBLIC SPEAKING  

6 APPLICATIONS THAT WILL BE DEFERRED  

None to be considered by this meeting.

7 APPLICATIONS ARISING  (Pages 9 - 60)

7.1  33C304B/ECON – Junction 7 of the A55 near Cefn Du, Gaerwen
7.2  33C295B – 4 Nant y Gors, Pentre Berw
7.3  34C553A – Ty’n Coed, Llangefni

8 ECONOMIC APPLICATIONS  

None to be considered by this meeting.



Please note that meetings of the Committee are filmed for live and subsequent 
broadcast on the Council’s website. The Authority is a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act and data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance 
with the Authority’s published policy

9 AFFORDABLE HOUSING APPLICATIONS  

None to be considered by this meeting.

10 DEPARTURE APPLICATIONS  (Pages 61 - 72)

10.1  45C9G – Awel Menai, Penlon, Newborough
10.2  45C207H/VAR – Abernant, Penlon

11 DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLORS AND 
OFFICERS  (Pages 73 - 104)

11.1  16C197A – Dridwen, Bryngwran
11.2  19C1140/CA/ENF – 4 & 5 Pentre Pella, Mountain, Holyhead
11.3  23C323 – 1 Penbonc, Talwrn
11.4  33C258C/RUR – Cefn Poeth, Llangefni
11.5  36C338 – Henblas School, Llangristiolus
11.6  48C182A/DA – 2 Bryn Twrog, Gwalchmai

12 REMAINDER OF APPLICATIONS  (Pages 105 - 138)

12.1  12C266P/FR – Gallows Point, Beaumaris
12.2  12C266Q/FR – ABC Power Marine, Gallows Point, Beaumaris
12.3  14LPA1010/CC – Cefn Trefor, Trefor
12.4  17C476A – 13 Glyn Garth Court, Glyn Garth
12.5  19C690C – 14 Cae Braenar, Holyhead
12.6  19C1156 – 74 Queens Park, Holyhead
12.7  32C193 – 7 Tre Ifan, Caergeiliog
12.8  34LPA1009/CC – Saith Aelwyd, Rhosmeirch

13 OTHER MATTERS  (Pages 139 - 140)

13.1  20C265E/SCR – Wylfa Power Station, Tregele



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

PLANNING AND ORDERS COMMITTEE 

Minutes of the meeting held on 1 April, 2015 

PRESENT: Councillor W.T. Hughes (Chair) 
Councillor Ann Griffith (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors Jeff Evans, Lewis Davies, John Griffith, Kenneth Hughes,  
Vaughan Hughes, Victor Hughes, Raymond Jones, Richard Owain Jones, 
Nicola Roberts. 

IN ATTENDANCE: Planning Development Manager  
Planning Assistants 
Highways Officer (JAR) (for application 7.1) 
Legal Services Manager (RJ) 
Committee Officer (ATH) 

APOLOGIES: None 

ALSO PRESENT: None 

 

1 APOLOGIES 

None received. 

2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

No declaration of interest was received. 

3 MINUTES 4
TH

 MARCH, 2015 MEETING 

The minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee held on 4
th
 March, 

2015 were presented and confirmed as correct. 

4 SITE VISITS 18
TH

 MARCH, 2015 

The minutes of the site visits undertaken on 18
th
 March, 2015 were presented and confirmed as 

correct. 

5 PUBLIC SPEAKING 

The Chair announced that there were public speakers in respect of applications 7.1 and 12.2 

6 APPLICATIONS THAT WILL BE DEFERRED 

6.1 33C304/B/ECON – Outline application with some matters reserved for the demolition of 
the existing farm, erection of a science park, creation of a car park together with the 
creation of a new vehicular access at Junction 7 of the A55 near Cefn Du, Gaerwen  

It was resolved to defer consideration of the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation for the reason given in the written report. 

6.2 34C553A – Outline application for the residential development, highway and associated 
infrastructure at Ty’n Coed, Llangefni 

It was resolved to defer consideration of the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation for the reason given in the written report. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

2 
 

7 APPLICATIONS ARISING 

7.1 33C295B - Full application for the erection of a dwelling together with alterations to the 
existing access on land adjacent to 4, Nant y Gors, Pentre Berw 

The application was presented to the Planning and Orders Committee at the request of the 
Chairman. At its meeting held on 4

th
 March, 2015 the Committee resolved to undertake a site visit 

and the site visit was carried out on 18
th
 March, 2015. 

Mrs Eileen Smith, an objector to the application was invited by the Chair to address the 
Committee, and she drew attention to the following concerns – 

 The application has been made several times during the last few years and has been refused 
because the access road is not considered by the Highways Department to be adequate to 
take more traffic.  

 The proposal is outside the planning boundaries for Pentre Berw.  

 The proposal is not in keeping with the rest of the village either by size or design. 

 There are already difficulties in respect of parking - in her own case her property’s parking 
area was on the corner and it was often difficult to negotiate because they were often blocked 
in. 

 Widening the gateway to the application site would reduce parking spaces even further making 
things even more difficult.  

 Following recent ill health which had left her wheelchair bound, she required the services of an 
ambulance to transport her to rehabilitation. The ambulance drivers have complained that they 
cannot always get round which raises the question of what would happen in an emergency 
situation. 

There were no questions to Mrs Eileen Smith from the Committee’s Members. 

Mr Ieuan Davies, spoke in support of the application on behalf of his partner in whose name the 
application was made. He highlighted the following considerations -  

 Due to issues of affordability, the difficulties facing himself, his partner and their children in 
purchasing a suitably sized property in the village. 

 His desire to remain within the close village community of Pentre Berw to raise his family. The 
proposal offers the only means of their being able to achieve that locally and the application for 
a 4 bedroom dwelling is made on a practical basis to meet the needs of a growing family. 

 The application has been in process for two years and during that time he and his partner have 
answered each and every concern raised including commissioning tree and bat surveys. 

 The proposal provides sufficient space for parking within the application site meaning that no 
additional vehicles will be parked on the public highway. Arrangements will be made to ensure 
that traffic to the site will be able to turn and depart within the confines of the plot.  

 Discussions with neighbours have shown that they believe that widening the road will create 
problems for children having to use a narrower pavement. 

 Many of the neighbours have indicated that if required they would be willing to use the nearby 
public car park during the day to facilitate access to the plot. 

 That he was willing to co-operate with the Council to obtain planning consent. 

Members of the Committee asked several questions of Mr Davies in clarification of the parking 
and access situation with regard to the site and those Members who had been present on the site 
visit referred to the visit as confirming the existence of problems with parking resulting in other 
vehicles having to mount the kerb to pass and to access the application site. Members specifically 
sought assurance from Mr Davies that there would be unhindered access for emergency vehicles 
and they sought confirmation from him also that he would be willing to make improvements to the 
site access if necessary. 

In response Mr Ieuan Davies confirmed that the access would only be used as an entrance to the 
site and that parking facilities will be available within the plot. He said that in any case the access 
is a gated entrance to a field and that no parking is meant to occur in front of it currently. The 
proposal will not change the situation as it already exists. The Highways Authority has confirmed 
it is happy with the plans and neighbours have said that they would be willing not to use that part 
of the road during the day. He also said that should the Council require, he would co-operate in 
terms of making improvements. 

Page 2



 

3 
 

The Planning Development Manager reported that outline permission exists since 2012 thus 
establishing the principle of development on the site. The proposal is also considered compliant 
under Policy 50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan as forming a small and reasonable extension to the 
village. Due to the distance between the proposal and neighbouring dwellings it is not considered 
that it will have any detrimental effect on the occupants of those properties. The Highways 
Authority has been consulted on the application and has raised no objections to it. The 
recommendation is therefore to approve the application. 

Whilst the Members generally indicated that they were supportive of the proposal, several 
expressed serious and continuing concerns regarding the issues arising in respect of parking and 
access to the extent that some Members saw those issues as an obstacle to approving the 
application. Councillor Victor Hughes suggested that the applicant enter into discussions with the 
Highways Authority to establish what improvements might be made to the access to alleviate the 
situation and to facilitate the flow of vehicles on the road leading to the site. He further suggested 
that given it is in a sensitive area, the proposed development should connect to the mains 
drainage system if that is possible so as to avert potential pollution of a nearby stream. The 
Planning Development Manager confirmed the availability of the public drainage system and said 
that the applicant would under planning policy be expected to ensure the development connects 
to that system. 

The Highways Officer said that the situation with regard to vehicles mounting the pavement exists 
already and that will not change as a result of the proposal. Whilst the Highways Authority is 
aware that the road is narrower than what would be required for a new road the proposal entails 
the erection of one dwelling only and will not add significantly to the traffic situation. However, 
although the Highways Authority would be willing to discuss with the applicant the possibility of 
widening the access road if the proposal is approved, it will not insist that he does so – that is a 
matter for the Committee to decide – because the Highways Authority is of the opinion that such a 
position could not be defended at appeal due to the existence already of outline planning 
permission which has established the principle of development. 

Councillor Jeff Evans said that the pre-existence of access and parking problems does not make 
those problems acceptable and that he was worried by possible repercussions to the Council if 
the situation is not righted. He suggested that the proposal provides an opportunity to address the 
situation. 

Whilst several Members favoured approval conditional upon the applicant working in co-operation 
with the Highways Authority to improve the access situation, another Member took the view that 
the applicant should not be asked to rectify problems that are not of his own making and was 
doubtful whether it was fair to seek such assurance of the applicant in the pressured and public 
setting of a formal committee meeting. 

The Planning Development Manager advised that planning conditions are subject to legal test and 
have to be shown to be necessary. The Highways Authority as the statutory body is of the view 
that in this case access improvements are not necessary to grant approval to the application. 

The Legal Services Manager advised that two courses of action are open to the Committee, either 
to approve the application as presented or to defer determining the application to allow 
discussions to take place between the applicant and the Highways Authority in relation to 
improving the access but in the context of knowing that the Highways Authority does not view 
such improvement works as necessary on the basis that the current situation although not ideal, 
is not likely to be exacerbated greatly by the addition of the proposed development. 

Councillor Kenneth Hughes proposed that the application be approved as presented. His proposal 
was seconded by Councillor Vaughan Hughes.  

Councillor Lewis Davies proposed that the Committee defers determination so that discussions 
can take place on the lines advised by the Legal Services Manager, and his proposal was 
seconded by Councillor Jeff Evans. 

In the subsequent vote Councillors John Griffith, Kenneth Hughes Vaughan Hughes, Richard 
Owain Jones and Nicola Roberts voted to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation; Councillors Lewis Davies, Jeff Evans, Ann Griffith, Victor Hughes, Raymond 
Jones and W.T. Hughes voted for a deferral. The vote for a deferral was therefore carried. 

Page 3



 

4 
 

It was resolved to defer determining the application in order to ask the Highways Officers 
to hold further discussions with the applicant to seek to establish whether improvement 
works to the application site’s access are possible. 

7.2 45C452 – Outline application for the erection of a dwelling together with full details of 
access on land adjacent to Stad Berllan, Llangaffo 

The application was presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as it had been called in for 
the Committee’s determination by a Local Member. At its meeting held on 4

th
 March, 2015 the 

Committee resolved to undertake a site visit and the site visit was carried out on 18
th
 March, 2015. 

The Planning Development Manager reported that the key issues are the extent of the proposal’s 
compliance with Policy 50 of the Local Plan in constituting a small and reasonable extension to 
the village, and drainage matters. It is the Officer’s view that the proposed development would 
have its back to the village and thus in landscape terms it would be read as a separate 
development in a countryside location rather than a small infill or extension to the existing 
developed part of the settlement. The proposal would cut through the current reasonable 
boundary to the village and would begin to erode the clear definition that at present exists in this 
location between the village’s built form and the countryside. Highways issues in terms of the 
provision of a safe and suitable access were also raised at the time of the site visit. A revised 
access arrangement would require the removal of roadside hedges which would in turn further 
exacerbate the landscape and visual impacts of the proposal. With reference to drainage 
considerations, the Planning Authority has not been persuaded that the proposal has adequately 
investigated connection to the main drainage system as is required under national planning policy 
and advice contained in Circular 10/99. For these reasons the recommendation is to refuse the 
application.  

Councillor Ann Griffith said that she was standing down as Vice Chair for this application in order 
to address the meeting as a Local Member in support of the application. She referred to the 
applicants’ familial connection with the area, and for their desire for that reason, and due to caring 
obligations, to remain within the village. She pointed out that this was a proposal for a modest 
cottage type development, which by virtue of its size and design would blend in with its 
surroundings and would neither be intrusive nor incongruous in the area. She said that it was her 
opinion that the proposal, the plot area of which fringes part of the garden of one of the properties 
on the neighbouring estate, does form a small extension to the village of Llangaffo and is 
therefore compliant with Policy 50. There are no objections to the proposal and the Rhosyr 
Community Council is supportive of it. Councillor Ann Griffith read out a letter by the applicants 
setting out their case in support of the application. 

Councillor Lewis Davies said that he did have concerns regarding the proposal not least that 
granting it could open the remainder of the field enclosure in which it is sited and beyond to 
further potential development thus further intruding into the countryside, but also because of 
considerations of access, the removal of established hedges leading to the destruction of habitat, 
and the impact on the landscape and the village. He proposed that the application be refused in 
accordance with the Officer’s recommendation and his proposal was seconded by Councillor 
Victor Hughes.  

It was resolved to refuse the application in accordance with the Officer’s recommendation 
for the reasons given in the written report. (Councillor Ann Griffith did not vote on the matter 
as a Local Member) 

8 ECONOMIC APPLICATIONS 

None were considered at this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee. 

9 AFFORDABLE HOUSING APPLICATIONS 

None were considered at this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee. 

Page 4



 

5 
 

10 DEPARTURE APPLICATIONS 

10.1 24C268G/VAR – Application under Section 73 for the variation of condition (02) 
from planning permission reference 24C268D (Renewal of outline permission for the 
erection of a dwelling) so as to allow a further year to submit a reserved matters 
application at Plot 2, Cerrig Man, Amlwch 

The application is presented to the Committee as the application is a departure from the 
Development Plan which the local Planning Authority is minded to approve 

The Planning Development Manager reported that the application is to renew application 
24C268D approved in March, 2012.Whilst Cerrig Man is not identified as a settlement under the 
Development Plan, it is identified as a countryside hamlet under the Stopped Ynys Môn Unitary 
Development Plan, and given the advanced stage reached in the preparation of the Stopped 
UDP, weight can be given to its provisions such as to outweigh the provisions of the Development 
Plan in this instance. Moreover, there is, and has been planning consent on the site since 2009. 
There are no objections to the proposal on technical grounds; the recommendation is therefore to 
approve the application.  

Councillor Richard Owain Jones proposed that the application be approved and the proposal was 
seconded by Councillor Kenneth Hughes. 

It was resolved to grant delegated powers to permit the application subject to the 
conditions listed and following the expiration of the neighbouring notification and the 
consideration of any other representations received at that time.  

10.2 25C198B – Full application for the erection of a dwelling on land adjoining Maes 
Cyhelyn, Llanerchymedd 

The application is presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as the majority of the 
application site is outside the development boundary of the Ynys Môn Local Plan. 

The Planning Development Manager reported that whilst the majority of the application site is 
outside the development boundary of the Ynys Môn Local Plan, the settlement boundary for 
Llanerchymedd has been amended in the Stopped Unitary Development Plan and the application 
site is substantially within the boundary of the Stopped UDP. In light of the advanced stage 
reached in the preparation of the Stopped UDP, weight can be given to its provisions such as to 
outweigh the provisions of the Development Plan in this instance. Outline planning permission 
was granted on the site in January 2009 and a reserved matters application for a dormer 
bungalow was approved in May, 2009. The current application seeks full permission for the 
erection of a single storey dwelling, and in the Officer’s opinion in terms of its siting, design and 
appearance it is considered acceptable and indeed an improvement on the previously approved 
proposal, which will not impact on the amenities of the area. The recommendation is therefore 
one of approval. 

Councillor Kenneth Hughes proposed that the application be approved and the proposal was 
seconded by Councillor Lewis Davies. 

It was resolved to grant delegated powers to permit the application subject to the 
conditions listed and following the expiration of the neighbouring notification and the 
consideration of any other representations received at that time.  

11 DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLORS AND OFFICERS 

None were considered at this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee. 

12 REMAINDER OF APPLICATIONS 

12.1 14LPA1011/CC – Full application for the erection of a storage 
facility/warehouse building at Plot 12, Mona Industrial Estate 

The application is presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as the application is made by 
the Council on land owned by the Council. 

Page 5



 

6 
 

Councillor Lewis Davies proposed that the application be approved and the proposal was 
seconded by Councillor Victor Hughes. 

It was resolved to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation subject to the conditions listed in the written report. 

12.2 15C116G – Full application for alterations and extensions at 5 Bythynnod 
Gwenllyr, Malltraeth 

The application is presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as it has been called in by a 
Local Member. 

Mr Henri Hughes addressed the Committee in support of the application to the effect that as a 
neighbour of the applicants he had contacted them of his own volition to speak for the proposal 
which would in his opinion, represent a fitting conclusion to a series of improvements made to the 
complex by the applicants over the course of several years and would not impede on himself as 
the nearest neighbour and resident of Ty Pigyn. He said that it was his opinion that new builds 
can sometimes be more of a blot on the landscape than what is proposed under the current 
application and that the Committee can decide in terms of black and white or can take the middle 
course of common sense. 

Councillor Ann Griffith said that she was standing down as Vice-Chair for this application in order 
to address the meeting as a Local Member in support of the application. She emphasised the 
accommodation needs of the family who currently live in a one bedroom cottage on site, in caring 
for two autistic grandsons whose challenging behavioural needs require separate bedrooms. She 
said that although Bodorgan Community Council objects to the proposal on account of its size, 
the neighbours are supportive of it. The proposal will complete the complex which was once in 
ruins but which now comprises converted buildings of a high standard. 

The Planning Development Manager reported that this is the applicants’ third application within 
the last twelve month period. The main planning consideration is whether the scale and design of 
the proposed extension would affect the character of the original building as well as the 
conversions in the vicinity and the AONB. Although sympathetic to the applicants’ situation, the 
Officer is of the opinion that the proposal is still unacceptable in terms of scale and design being 
even larger than that previously refused by the Committee in October, 2014. As such it is 
considered that the proposal would detrimentally impact the character of the surrounding 
amenities and the AONB and is therefore not compliant with planning policy. The Officer’s 
recommendation is one of refusal. 

Whilst the majority of the Committee’s Members took the Officer’s view of the proposal as being 
an overly large development of the existing building,  and thus likely to impact to an unacceptable 
degree on the surrounding area and landscape, Councillors Jeff Evans, Vaughan Hughes and 
Nicola Roberts took an opposing view in believing that the proposal seeks to meet specific needs 
and that in the context of the area in general where there are other large properties, it would not 
unduly harm the surrounding landscape having enough space around it to mitigate any impact. 

Councillor Lewis Davies proposed that the application be refused in line with the Officer’s 
recommendation and his proposal was seconded by Councillor Kenneth Hughes. Councillor Jeff 
Evans proposed that the proposal be approved and his proposal was seconded by Councillor 
Nicola Roberts. In the subsequent vote the proposal to refuse the application was carried. 

It was resolved to refuse the application in accordance with the Officer’s recommendation 
for the reasons given in the written report. (Councillor Ann Griffith did not vote on the matter 
as a Local Member)    

12.3 19LPA1014/CC – Full application to change external wall and roof cladding 
together with the erection of a storage building at Penrhos Industrial Estate, Holyhead 

The application is presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as the application is made by 
the Council on land owned by the Council. 

Councillor Vaughan Hughes proposed that the application be approved and his proposal was 
seconded by Councillor Lewis Davies. 

It was resolved to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation subject to the conditions listed in the written report. 

Page 6



 

7 
 

12.4 25C248 – Full application for the change of use of building from retail to 
launderette at Unit 1, Maes Athen, Llanerchymedd 

The application is presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as it is on Council owned 
land. 

Councillor Lewis Davies proposed that the application be approved and the proposal was 
seconded by Councillor Kenneth Hughes. 

It was resolved to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation subject to the conditions listed in the written report. 

12.5 39LPA1012/TPO/CC – Application to remove 1 ash tree, reduce 1 ash tree and 
works to 1 sycamore tree which are protected by a Tree Preservation Order at Old 
Reservoir, Menai Bridge 

The application is presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as it is on Council owned 
land. 

Councillor Victor Hughes proposed that the application be approved and his proposal was 
seconded by Councillor Richard Owain Jones. 

It was resolved to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation subject to the condition set out in the written report. 

13 OTHER MATTERS 

13.1 14C164E – Full application for the erection of a pair of dwellings, creation of a 
new vehicular access together with the installation of a package treatment plant on land 
adjacent to Tryfan, Trefor 

The application is presented to the Planning and Orders Committee because the applicant is a 
friend of a relevant officer under paragraph 4.6.10.2 of the Constitution. The application has been 
scrutinised by the Monitoring Officer as required under the said paragraph. 

The Planning Development Manager reported that at its 4
th
 February, 2015 meeting, the 

Committee determined to approve the application subject to the resolution of drainage matters. 
Additional drainage details have since been received and the Drainage Section has confirmed 
that the scheme is acceptable. However, additional correspondence has also been received from 
members of the public and in order that their concerns are given due consideration, the 
application is being referred to the Committee for determination. The proposal has not been 
amended since it was granted approval by the Committee on 4

th
 February, 2015. The Officer said 

that the concerns raised as documented in the written report are factors that have been 
considered in dealing with the application originally and are not considered to carry sufficient 
weight to warrant refusal of the application. 

Councillor Kenneth Hughes proposed that the Committee adheres to its previous decision to 
approve the application and his proposal was seconded by Councillor Richard Owain Jones. 

It was resolved to note the information presented and to reaffirm the Committee’s previous 
approval of the application.  

 

Councillor W.T.Hughes 
Chair 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



7.1 Ceisiadau’n Economaidd                                            Economic Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     33C304B/ECON     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Menai Science Park 

 

Cais amlinellol gyda rhai materion wedi eu cadw yn ôl ar gyfer dymchwel fferm presennol, codi 

parc gwyddoniaeth, creu maes parcio ynghyd a chreu mynedfa newydd i gerbydau yn / Outline 

application with some matters reserved for the demolition of the existing farm, erection of a 

science park, creation of a car park together with the creation of a new vehciular access at  

   

Junction 7 of the A55 (wrth ymyl / near Cefn Du), Gaerwen 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee: 13.05.15 

 

Report of Head of Planning Service (DFJ) 

 

Recommendation:   

  

Permit 

 

Reason for Reporting to Committee: 

 

Gwneir y cais ar dir ym mherchenogaeth y Cyngor 

 

1. Proposal and Site  
 

The application is in outline form with all matters reserved for future determination apart from the site 

access.  

 

The application entails the demolition of the existing farm outbuildings, retention of the existing 

farmhouse and development of new floorspace to create a Science park. The development comprises 

the following elements; 

 

- 22,703 sqm of floorspace, split across eight buildings being 2 and 3 stories in height. 
 

- Associated access and gatehouse. 
- Car parking  
- Landscaped open space. 

 

The development seeks to provide suitable accommodation in research and development activities 

connected with projects associated with renewable energy and environmental technologies  

 

The developer intends to be on-site by Summer 2016 completing the first phase (comprising initial 

infrastructure, services and ‘hub’ building) by 2017. 

It is anticipated that remainder of the development will take approximately 10 years to complete and 

will be phased in response to market demand.  

 

 The following supporting information has been submitted with the application; 

 

-Planning & Regeneration Statement. 

-Design & Access Statement. 

-Statement of Community Consultation. 

-Welsh Language Impact Assessment. 

-Economic Impact Assessment. 

-Transport Assessment. 

-Travel Implementation Plan. 

-Framework Green Travel Plan. 

-Phase 1 Ground Conditions Report. 

-Archaeological Assessment. 

-Noise Assessment. 

- Landscape & Visual Impact Assessment. 

-Flood Consequences Assessment. 

- Ecology Assessment and Bat Conservation Strategy/Mitigation Methodology. 

-Arboricultural Assessment. 

-Low & Zero Carbon Technology Study. 

Page 10



-Agricultural Land Classification Report. 

 

The application also includes the Heads of Terms of a draft Section 106 Obligation to enhance the 

accessibility of the site as follows; 

 

- Financial contribution to facilitate bus stop improvements. 
- Monetary contribution towards the construction of a pedestrian and cycle link on the southern 

side of the A5. 
 

The site occupies approximately 7-8 hectares of open agricultural land towards the north eastern end 

of the village of Gaerwen. A farmhouse and associated group of outbuildings are located in the north-

west corner of the site. 

 

The site is located off junction 7 of the A55 and is bounded on all sites by roads: the A55 to the north, 

the A5152 to the east, the A5 to the south and an access road to the west. 

 

Access is proposed via a new roundabout on the A5152 highway linking junction 7 of the A55 with 

the A5 and the village. 

 

It is considered useful at the outset to briefly describe what is meant by a ‘Science Park’ and to 

explain how it is different from general employment activity. The ‘Planning & Regeneration Statement’ 

submitted with the application is helpful in this respect and explains; 

 

 

 The ‘United Kingdom Science Park Association’ defines a ‘Science park’ as; 

‘A science park is a business support and technology transfer initiative that; 

• Encourages and supports the start-up and incubation of innovation-led, high growth, 

knowledge-based businesses. 

• Provides an environment where larger and international businesses can develop specific and 

close interactions with a particular centre of knowledge creation for their mutual benefit. 

• Has formal and operational links with centres of knowledge creation such as universities, 

higher education institutes and research organisations.’ 

 

The statement goes on to explain that floorspace is provided (office, laboratory and workshops) and 

made available on a flexible basis to suit targeted occupier requirements. They are often focused and 

branded around a sector, or specific set of science related activities, and it is the role of Science Park 

managers to implement tenant selection policies. In addition managers interact with both educational 

institutions and private sector businesses in this field to ensure the right occupiers are 

accommodated. 

 

It is further stated that some of the business benefits of physical clustering of like-minded businesses 

includes product development, innovation, networking and day to day factors including shared 

facilities and meeting opportunities. The creation of an environment which encourages informal and 

impromptu collaborations is seen as key in fostering innovation and growth. 

 

A further key factor in their success is creating the correct physical environment to encourage 

branding, interaction and innovation – where high quality design of individual buildings, shared spaces 

and landscaping of the site is necessary i.e. an attractive setting. 

 

It is also advised that European Commission (EC) guidance indicates that a common feature of 

successful Science Parks is the high proportion of Small & Medium Enterprises (SME’s) 

accommodated and as a consequence typical services provided through the provision of space and 

management include; shared meeting rooms; social/recreational facilities; café; secretarial services; 

Page 11



legal and intellectual property rights advice; funding advice; support for future growth and expansion; 

and networking opportunities. 

A clear relationship with Universities or educational facilities also distinguishes this type of 

development from other general employment development and the EC’s review identifies the 

importance of involvement of Universities to their operation and success and that given this role and 

focus Science Parks have a strong local base in terms of occupiers. 

 

The applicants advise that the focus of this Science Park will be on energy, environment and clean 

technology, building upon the University’s existing faculties, and aligning it with the Council’s Energy 

Island Programme which aims to put Anglesey at the forefront of low carbon technology industries. 

 

2.Key Issue(s) 

 

Whilst an application of this type and scale will inevitably raise a wide and diverse range of issues I 

have distilled what I consider to be the main ones  as follows; 

 

Whether or not there is a policy framework that enables the site to be released for the proposed 

development; and should this be the case is it accepted that the site selection criteria is robust and 

that the development will deliver the economic benefits claimed ? 

 

Following on from the above; 

 

Does the development constitute ‘sustainable development’? 

 

And; 

 

What controls over use can be applied so as to distinguish the Science Park from other general 

employment sites? 

 

Finally;  

 

Are there any site specific environmental or technical constraints that would prevent the development 

of the site? 

 

3. Main Policies  

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Strategic Policies 1-6 

People & Jobs policies B1,B2,B6,B7,B8,B9  

Energy Policies C7,C8 

Environmental Policies D4,D7,D15,D19,D20,D22, 

D29,D32,D33 

Transport Policies FF1, FF9,FF11, FF12, FF15,FF16,FF17, FF18 

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

1. General 

2. New jobs  

5. Design; 

23. Public Transport 

24. Amlwch Branch Railway  

26.  Car  Parking  

28.  Tidal  inundation  and  river  flooding 

Page 12



31  &  32 Landscape  

35.  Nature  Conservation 

39.  Archaeology 

41.  Conservation  of Buildings 

42. Design  

45. Renewable Energy 

49. Defined Settlements. 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

PO1. Employment 

PO2. Settlement Strategy & Hierachy 

PO3. Language & Culture 

PO4. Integrated Transport & the Location of Development 

PO8. Environment 

PO8 b). Energy Developments 

GP1. Development Control Guidance 

GP2. Design 

EP1. Land for Employment 

EP2. Protection of Employment Land. 

EP4. Other Employment Opportunities and Rural Diversification 

EP6. Reuse of Buildings 

EP18. Renewable Energy 

TR1. The Road Hierarchy 

TR4. Public Transport  

TR6. Lein Amlwch 

TR9. Walking, Cycling & Horse Riding 

TR10. Parking Standards 

TR13. Traffic Management 

TO14. Amenity Space  

EN1. Landscape Character 

EN4. Biodiversity 

EN12. Archaeological Sites & the Historic Environment. 

EN13. Conservation of Buildings 

EN14. Tree Preservation Orders & Hedgerows 

EN15. Projects  

EN16. Landscape Features of Major importance for flora & fauna 

SG2. Development & Flooding  

SG3. Controlled Waters 

SG4. Foul Sewage Disposal 

SG6. Surface Water Run Off 

SG7. Noise  

SG8.Air Quality 

 

Emerging JLDP -The deposit version has just undergone public consultation. Whilst the site is 

allocated under policy CYF1 for use as a Science Park It is not anticipated that an Inquiry into the 

Plan will be held before April 2016 and adoption is unlikely before December 2016 it is not considered 

therefore that weight can be attributed to this emerging policy at this stage. However, the evidence 

base used in the plan’s preparation is considered to be relevant. 

 

Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 (2014) 

 

Technical Advice Note 5: Nature Conservation & Planning (2009) 

Page 13



 

Technical Advice Note 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (2010) 

 

Technical Advice Note 11: Noise (1997) 

 

Technical Advice Note 12: Design (2014) 

 

Technical Advice Note 15: Development & Flood Risk (2004) 

 

Technical Advice Note 16: Sport, Recreation & Open Space ( 2009) 

 

Technical Advice Note 18: Transport (2007) 

 

Technical Advice Note 20: Planning & the Welsh Language (2013) 

 

Technical Advice Note 23: Economic Development (2014) 

 

Wales Spatial Plan (2008): Section 17-North West Wales-Eryri a Môn. 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance - Design Guide for the urban and rural environment 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance – North Wales Regional Planning Guidance (2002) 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance-Parking Standards (2008) 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance – Planning & the Welsh Language (2007) 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance – Planning Obligations ( Section 106 Agreements) (2008) 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance – Design in the Urban & Rural Environment (2008) 

  

Supplementary Planning Guidance – New Nuclear Build at Wylfa (2014) 

 

4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Consultations were issued on the 12.12.2014 and responses received can be summarized as follows; 

 

Councillor Victor Hughes – No reply at time of writing. 

 

Councillor Hywel Eifion Jones - No reply at time of writing. 

 

Community Council- The Community Council supports the principle of establishing a Science park 

and the economic advantages it will bring but object to the current proposal. Objections can be 

summarised as follows:  

 

-Consider that the consultation process has been insufficient. 

-Would lead to ân overprovision of employment land in Gaerwen. 

-Would constitute a prominent and incongruous intrusion into the countryside. 

-Concerns that the proposal would lead to further development of land to the north of the village. 

-Consider that archaeological and nature conservation interests would be compromised. 

-Visual impact on neighbouring properties and loss of views of Snowdonia. 

-Unsuitability of site access and detrimental impact on traffic congestion in Gaerwen. 

Page 14



-Concern that there is insufficient sewerage capacity available. 

-Concern regarding suitability of proposed Surface Water Drainage systems. 

-Reservations regarding the number of ‘youngsters of Anglesey’ that would be employed. 

-Concern regarding loss of agricultural land. 

-Concern that the development will have a detrimental impact on the tourism industry. 

 

Councils Economic & Community Regeneration Service– Confirm that they are content with the 

level of detail provided in relation to the potential economic benefits associated with the development. 

 

Joint Planning Policy Unit – Set out the national and local policy context, gives guidance on the 

most relevant policies and discusses the main policy considerations to be taken into account. 

 

Council’s Public Rights of Way officer – No reply at time of writing, however it is relevant to note 

that no public right of way exists within the site. 

 

Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service – Confirm that there has been an on-going pre-

application dialogue with the developer and whilst acknowledging that thus far indications are that no 

nationally important archaeological remains are present require that a program of archaeological work 

be put in place prior to development  

commencing. Standard planning conditions are recommended in this respect. 

 

Dwr Cymru/Welsh Water – In respect of sewerage confirm that they are working with the developer 

to secure a solution that effectively drains each phase of the development. At present sufficient 

capacity exists in the sewer network to accommodate the first phase of the development (comprising 

of 5,000 sqm floor-space). Further assessment is underway to assess the remaining phases and a 

system ‘upgrade’ may be required prior their development. This assessment is expected to be 

completed by September 2015. 

In respect of water supply no objections are raised and a water supply can be made available to serve 

the development.  

 

North Wales Police- No reply at time of writing. 

 

Welsh Government Department for Economy, Science & Transport – Advise in their capacity as 

highway authority for the A55 that they are content subject to the imposition of conditions. 

 

RSPB – No reply at time of writing. 

 

Cadw – No reply at time of writing. 

 

Council’s drainage section – Confirm that the site is within an area served by public sewer systems 

and that the design philosophy for the foul and surface water drainage schemes are acceptable in 

principle and require that detailed design and construction proposals will need to be submitted with 

any future detailed planning application(s). 

 

Council’s Highways section – Confirm that they have no objection in principle, subject to conditions 

relating to submission of further details prior to construction, and S106 obligation requiring  bus stop 

improvements and pedestrian/cycle links etc. in the vicinity of the site.   

 

Natural Resources Wales – Divide their comments into 3 subject headings, Flood Risk, 

Contamination and Biodiversity as follows; 

 

Confirm general agreement with the content of the submitted Flood Consequences Assessment and 

Page 15



advises that additional investigations be carried out to address any further flood/drainage issues.  

 

With regard to pollution confirm that the controlled waters at the site are of low environmental 

sensitivity and recommend that the relevant principles and policies governing land contamination and 

sustainable drainage systems be followed. 

 

The commitment to biodiversity enhancement is welcomed and it is not considered that the 

development is likely to have a significant impact upon protected species. Further surveys are 

recommended to fully assess impacts of any future applications. 

 

Council’s Built Environment & Landscape Section- Conclude that any landscape effects will be 

local to the site and that mitigation can be built into the layout of the development and that the phased 

nature of the development will further reduce impacts. 

 

Council’s Ecological Advisor – Is content with the development and the ‘Bat Conservation 

Strategy/Mitigation Methodology’ that has been prepared by the developer.  

 

Council’s Environmental Health Officer - Divide their comments into 3 subject headings 

Environmental Protection, Noise and Contaminated land as follows; 

 

Suggest appropriate planning conditions to control potential nuisance from construction works and 

recommend that an artificial light assessment is carried out to assess potential impacts on nearby 

properties. 

 

Suggests planning conditions setting noise limits and confirm that such noise levels would not have 

any detrimental or adverse acoustic impact upon the area. 

 

Accepts the information provided with the application that based upon the historical agricultural use of 

the land the site is considered to be of low risk in terms of land contamination. 

 

Ministry of Defence - No objections providing that a planning condition regulating the design details 

of any proposed wetland/water bodies is attached to any permission.  

 

Public Consultation – As a result of statutory publicity carried out in the form of a press advert, the 

display of site notices and individual letters to those properties most directly impacted the following 

responses have been received; 

 

 

16 individual letters of support that can be summarized as citing the economic benefits to the local 

economy and the appropriateness of the site. 

 

1 letter neither objecting nor supporting the development but makes a series of points concerning the 

long term financial viability of the scheme. 

 

1 letter of objection stating that the village of Gaerwen is an unsuitable location and that the 

development will be prominent in the landscape, lead to a loss of agricultural land and cause traffic 

and surface water problems. 

 

Conclusions on Consultation and Publicity responses: Objections raised are restricted to those 

made by the Community Council and one local resident. Notwithstanding that these issues are 

discussed within the main body of the report it is considered that any outstanding issues can be dealt 

with via conditions and/or Section 106 Obligations. 

Page 16



 

5. Relevant Planning History 

 

33C304/SCR- Screening Opinion for a Science Park on land at Junction 7 of the A55, Cefn Du, 

Gaerwen. EIA not required 09.09.2014. 

 

33C304A/SCR – Screening Opinion for a Science Park on land at Junction 7 of the A55, Cefn Du, 

Gaerwen. EIA not required 08.01.2015 

 

6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Is there a policy framework that enables the site to be released for the proposed development? 

 

Part 38(6) of the Planning & Compulsory Act 2004 requires that applications for planning permission 

must be determined in accordance with the statutory development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. The adopted statutory development plan for Anglesey currently comprises of the 

Gwynedd Structure Plan (1993) and the Ynys Mon Local Plan (1996). In 2005 the Council chose not 

to adopt the Unitary Development Plan; however it remains a material consideration when 

determining planning applications.  

 

Gaerwen is recognized as a defined settlement in the local plan and as a secondary center in the 

stopped unitary development plan and the site lies outside development boundaries as shown in 

these plans and is not allocated.  

 

Planning Policy Wales sets out the position where the development plan is outdated; such as is the 

position on Anglesey and advises that in these circumstances local planning authorities are to give 

them decreasing weight in favour of other material considerations, such as national planning policy 

that requires Local Planning Authorities to shift towards a low carbon economy and establishes a 

presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

 

At present the Anglesey County Council in partnership with Gwynedd County Council have begun the 

process of preparing a Joint Local Development Plan where the deposit version has just undergone 

public consultation. Whilst the site is allocated under policy CYF1 for use as a Science Park It is not 

anticipated that an Inquiry into the Plan will be held before April 2016 and adoption is unlikely before 

December 2016 it is not considered therefore that weight can be attributed to this emerging policy at 

this stage. 

 

Nevertheless, the site has been identified as an Enterprise Zone by the Welsh Government in order to 

support the Council’s Energy Island Programme which aims to put Anglesey at the forefront of low 

carbon technology industries. In addition the Council’s adopted SPG ‘New Nuclear Build at Wylfa’ in 

Policy GP 30 relating to the A5/A55 corridor identifies the Science park as a development with 

potential to be associated with Wylfa, to take place along the A55 Corridor. The Science Park and 

connections with Bangor University is anticipated to contribute towards establishing the Island as a 

center of excellence for low carbon energy. The SPG states that the preferred location for the Science 

Park is a strategic site located at Junction 7 of the A55. Clearly, these factors are material 

considerations that carry some weight. 

  

Whilst accepting that the development plan is dated it is clearly material to have regard to it.  Policy 2 

therein allocates and protects a series of sites, including some at Llangefni and Gaerwen for 

employment development (as does Policy EP1 of the Stopped Unitary Plan) several of which remain 

undeveloped; Cattlebreeding Centre and Lledwigan, at Llangefni and the Extension to the Gaerwen 

Industrial Estate. 

Page 17



 

The current proposal does not entail the development of these sites. However, current local policy 

and national policy advice is sufficiently flexible to allow for an increase/change in demand. 

For example, both Policy 2 of the local plan (and Policy EP4 of the Stopped Unitary Development 

Plan) can be used to support employment development on other sites within or on the edges of 

recognized settlements provided that they are of a scale and type which is compatible with the 

surrounding area and  compatible with other plan policies. 

 

As this site is located on the edge of a recognized settlement it is considered that there is a policy 

framework in place that can be used to support the current proposal. 

 

Is it accepted that the site selection criteria is robust?  

 

Paragraph 4.5.1 of TAN 23 states that; 

 

‘LDP employment land targets should aim to ensure that planning meets the demand for land, so that 

economic growth is not constrained by lack of land. However, demand does not have to be met in the 

local planning authority area in which it arises. Much of the demand for employment land is footloose 

across administrative boundaries. Authorities should work together to steer development to the 

locations which are the most sustainable and efficient (both when allocating sites for the LDP and 

when dealing with proposals for development). Therefore demand which cannot be met sustainably in 

the area where it arises should be met in neighbouring areas, and planning authorities should work 

together to accommodate demand which is not tied to particular areas’ 

 

It is important therefore to consider whether or not we accept that the chosen site for the Science 

Park is a sustainable one and also whether we agree with the site selection exercise carried out.  

As advocated by TAN 23 a sequential approach to site selection has been used looking at allocated 

employment sites within urban boundaries and then sites adjacent to urban boundaries. The Search 

Area encompassed both Anglesey County Council and the neighbouring Gwynedd Council, as such 

allocated sites in the Ynys Mon Local Plan, the Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan and the 

Gwynedd UDP were considered. 

 

An initial list of 70 to 80 sites was drawn up and the developer’s requirement criteria applied to each 

site in order to filter out unsuitable sites. The developer’s criteria can be summarised as being; 

 

• Approximately 7 to 8 hectares of land. 

• Accessible to the Bangor University campus ( maximum 15 – 20 minute drive time) 

• Attractive setting. 

• Visible from a key route. 

• Control over the entire site. 

• Available for development now. 

 

The appliance of the developer’s first criterion (site size) discounted the vast majority of sites and 

resulted in a ‘shortlist’ of the following potentially suitable sites; 

 

• Tŷ Mawr farm, Holyhead. 

• Former Shell Land, Amlwch. 

• Amlwch Port,Amlwch. 

• Land adjoining Mona Airfield. 

• Extension to Bryn Cefni Industrial Estate, Llangefni. 

• Cattlebreeding Centre, Llangefni. 

• Gaerwen Industrial Estate Extension. 

Page 18



• Bryn Cegin Estate, Bangor. 

 

This was further refined as only those in Llangefni, Gaerwen and Llandygai  are accessible via a 

range of modes of transport and within the requisite 15-20 minute drive time to the University 

Campus. In turn the current application site was considered to be the most appropriate following a 

more detailed analysis of each these sites. The conclusions of this exercise can  be summarized as; 

 

Bryn Cegin site at Bangor was filtered out due to their being too much land available with no 

mechanism in place to control general industrial uses on adjoining land which would compromise the 

high quality setting considered essential for Science Park.  

  

The extension to the Bryn Cefni Industrial Estate at Llangefni was not considered to be a suitable 

setting given the nature of surrounding land uses and lack of visibility from a key route. 

 

Similarly the Cattlebreeding Centre at Llangefni was deemed to be unsuitable due to surrounding 

uses and an access through exiting industrial development. 

 

The Gaerwen Industrial Estate Extension was considered unsuitable as access is only available 

through existing industrial development which does not provide a suitable setting. 

 

Land at Coleg Menai, Llangefni was also taken into account but not considered suitable due to its 

location away from a key transport corridor, poor connectivity to the University and drive-time of 

approximately 20 minutes. 

 

The remaining 2 sites therefore were the current application site and the Lledwigan site at Llangefni. 

 

The current application site was considered more suitable due to the following factors; better 

connectivity to Bangor, better visibility from a key transport route, a more attractive location, lesser 

visual impact on the open countryside , lesser quality of agricultural land and less archaeological 

potential and unencumbered by the existence of a listed building within the site. 

 

It is considered that the sequential approach to site selection undertaken by the applicant is robust 

and that this coupled with the applicant’s stated requirements provides a rationale for supporting this 

choice of site. 

 

Will the development deliver the economic benefits claimed? 

 

The application is accompanied by an Economic Impact Assessment which has been prepared in 

accordance with recognised industry methodology and has been scrutinised by the Council’s 

Economic & Community Regeneration Service who are content with the level of detail provided by the 

applicant in relation to the potential economic benefit associated with the Science Park development. 

 

The assessment undertakes a baseline analysis of the current economic situation; sets the predicted 

benefits and assesses the alignment of these benefits with key Council strategies. It is possible to 

summarise findings as follows; 

 

It is considered that the ‘appropriate impact area’ extends beyond the ward in which the development 

is located and for the purposed of the assessment ‘local’ has been defined as the Isle of Anglesey. 

‘Headline’ findings drawn from the assessment include; 

 

 That there has been a reduction in the proportion of the total population who are of working 
age. 

 Within the working age population, there has been a reduction in the numbers of those aged 

Page 19



16-44 with increasing numbers aged 45 – retirement age. 

 In line with the national trend the proportion of this population without qualifications is 
decreasing. 

 The area falls within 60% of the most deprived areas nationally. 
 

 The employment profile is skewed towards public sector employment and away from 
business and professional services. 

 

 Approximately 65% of the working age population is economically active, however (in 
December 2014) 1,248 people were claiming Job Seekers Allowance which at 3% is higher 
than the national average. 

 

The predicted economic benefits can be summarised as being; 

 

• Construction jobs -77 jobs will be available based on an estimated construction spend of 

approximately £49.1 million over a 10 year build out period. 

• Operational Jobs - between 153 and 723. 

• Indirect Jobs - 76 to 361. 

• GVA £2.86 million per year during the construction period and thereafter between £7.4 to 

£34.8 Million per year during the operational period. 

 

• Lunchtime expenditure: £66,200 per year or £662,000 over the construction period and 

thereafter between £131,500 and £621,600 per year of operation. 

 

The assessment also considers whether or not the creation of a Science Park on the proposed site  

aligns with the Council’s aims and priorities and several key documents are reviewed  which include; 

the Anglesey Economic Regeneration Strategy, Anglesey Enterprise Zone Programmes, Energy 

Island Programme and the New Nuclear Build at Wylfa SPG. This analysis concludes that the 

development responds positively to a number of key aims and priorities, for example, by; 

 

• Helping to reduce outward migration and creating job opportunities relating to the University’s 

strengths and encouraging graduates to remain in the locality. 

• Improving skill levels. 

• Delivering a high quality employment space. 

• Through close links with the University’s activities and research providing incubation and 

grow-on space for new businesses associated with the university. 

• Being strategically located within the A55 growth corridor. 

• Creating a research and development hub for low carbon energy. 

• Creating employment. 

• Fostering links with educational institutes. 

 

• Maximising opportunities associated with the new nuclear build. 

• Building on the strengths of Bangor University. 

 

It is accepted therefore that the economic benefits likely to accrue from the proposed development 

are significant and are closely aligned to the Council’s key economic and community regeneration 

aims and priorities.  

 

Does the development constitute ‘sustainable development’? 

 

One of the key aspects of national policy is the emphasis on sustainability. In Wales this is defined to 

mean; 

 

Page 20



‘enhancing the economic, social and environmental well-being of people and communities, achieving 

a better quality of life for our own generations in ways which; 

 

 promote social justice and equality of opportunity; and  

 enhance the natural and cultural environment and respect its limits-using only our fair share of 
the earth’s resources and sustaining our cultural legacy. 
 

Sustainable development is the process by which we reach the goal of sustainability.’ 

 

Critical to achieving the above is the creation of a resilient low carbon economy and the creation of 

communities where people can live and work. It is considered that a persuasive case has been made 

that the economic and social benefits that will accrue from the development positively contribute to 

these goals. 

 

The concept of the Science Park proposals with the focus on renewable energies and environmental 

technologies is complementary to this; for example through the clustering and co-location of uses at 

the site. In terms of actual on-site development the application is accompanied by a ‘Low Carbon 

Technology Study’ that assesses and describes the different low and zero carbon technologies and 

methods to be utilized at detailed design stage. 

 

With regard to the location of the site it is well placed to take advantage of modes of travel to and from 

the site by more sustainable means than single occupancy cars and a Travel Plan is to be put in place 

to encourage the adoption and utilisation of such environmentally friendly modes of travel. 

 

Whilst the following section considers in more detail the ‘environmental’ credentials of the proposal it 

will be seen that again the contribution towards sustainable development is a positive one.  

 

It is considered therefore that the proposal is considered to constitute ‘sustainable development’ 

where national policy introduces a ‘presumption in favour’. 

 

What controls over use can be applied so as to distinguish the Science Park from other 

general employment sites? 

 

Science Parks fall within class B1 of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes 

Order) 1987 which is a ‘Business’ use embracing; 

 

(a) An office (other than a use within Class A2 ‘financial and professional services’). 

(b) Research and development of products or processes. 

 

(c) For any industrial process. 

 

The Class includes uses such as the manufacture of computer hardware and software, computer 

research and development, consultancy and after-sales services, micro-engineering, biotechnical, 

and pharmaceutical research, development and manufacture. An important qualification, however, is 

that to come within this Class, the use has to be one which can be carried out in any residential area 

without detriment to the amenity of that area by reason of noise, vibration, smell, fumes, soot, ash, 

dust or grit. 

 

It is considered that the stated focus of the Science Park on energy, environment and clean 

technology sits comfortably within this Use Class and as a consequence and also in order to 

distinguish the site from other general employment site it is intended to restrict uses at the site within 

the B1 Use Class; specifically to those covered by parts (a) and (b); office accommodation and 

research and development. 

Page 21



 

This restriction in use will also ensure that the primary ‘focus’ of the Science Park concept does not 

become ‘diluted’ over time. 

 

Are there any site specific environmental or technical constraints that would prevent the 

development of the site? 

  

Drainage  - Foul drainage from the proposed development is to be connected into the public sewer 

network.  

Dwr Cymru / Welsh Water has confirmed that the first phase of the development (comprising of 5,000 

sqm floor-space) can be accommodated within the existing system.  

 

However an ‘upgrade’ may be required prior to the remaining phases being developed and a 

hydraulic modelling assessment (HMA) is currently being carried out establish the position. It is 

proposed therefore that a ‘Grampian’ planning condition be used in order to require that a detailed 

drainage scheme; informed by the results of the HMA be submitted by the developer prior to 

commencing development on subsequent phases of development. Dŵr Cymru/Welsh Water has 

agreed and recommended this course of action and it is considered that this is a reasonable and 

practicable way to proceed. 

 

With regard to Land Drainage and Surface Water the application is accompanied by a Flood 

Consequence Assessment (FCA) that concludes that the only sources of potential flooding are 

groundwater and on-site drainage ditches and as a consequence any risk is low. Whilst 

acknowledging that historically there has been some localised flooding within the site and to 

neighbouring properties it is concluded that this is due to existing topography and lack of maintenance 

of existing ditches and outfalls. 

  

In accordance with current policy and best practise the development will utilise Sustainable Drainage 

Systems (SuDS) for managing surface water runoff and it is considered that these measures will 

provide mitigation against future potential flood events. On-site management measures will restrict 

surface runoff to the equivalent of pre-development green-field rates and on-site attenuation will be 

built in to prevent any down steam flooding. 

Natural Resources Wales are in general agreement with the contents and findings of the FCA and the 

estimates provided for greenfield runoff rates and attenuation volumes. Comments are made 

regarding the receiving watercourse and the need for further investigation to ensure no increased risk 

to third party landowners and it as also suggested that further investigation also be carried out to 

evaluate the possibility of using infiltration as a means of managing site drainage.  

 

The Council’s Chief Engineer (Network) has confirmed that the design philosophy of the drainage 

scheme is acceptable in principle, albeit noting that to date no detailed designs are available. It is 

suggested that detailed design and construction proposals will need to be submitted with any future 

detailed applications at the site. 

It is considered that these matters can be dealt with by way of planning conditions ensuring that these 

matters are fully investigated and built into detailed proposals before any development can 

commence at the site. 

 

Information provided with the application demonstrates that the site can be effectively drained and 

relevant statutory consultees do not raise objections. There is therefore no evidence on drainage 

grounds that would suggest that the site cannot be developed. 

 

Ecology - The application is accompanied by an Ecological Appraisal that concludes that on-site 

habitats are not of significant conservation interest but identified several potential assets; hedgerows, 

Page 22



standing water, scattered trees, buildings and potential for bats; breeding birds; and hedgehogs.  

The proposed development will introduce extensive on-site landscaping incorporating ecological 

features aimed at increasing biodiversity value e.g. wildflower meadow, tree planting hedgerow 

retention and ponds. Natural Resources Wales has welcomed this commitment to biodiversity 

enhancement and has made suggestion in respect of features to be incorporated at detailed design 

stage and in order to ensure that this occurs it is intended to include a condition requiring that a 

Wildlife and Habitat Management Plan is agreed for the site. 

 

In respect of Protected Species both Natural Resources Wales and the Council’s Ecological Advisor 

have pointed out the potential of the site as a bat and barn owl habitat. In respect of barn owls it is 

suggested that (notwithstanding the fact that the buildings likely to be utilised are to be retained) any 

future planning applications be accompanied by suitable surveys and potential mitigation measures. 

 

With respect to bats a ‘Conservation Strategy/Mitigation Methodology’ has been prepared by the 

developer and both Natural Resources Wales and the Council’s Ecological Advisor are content with 

this course of action. Suitable planning conditions will be attached. 

 

In having regard to conserving biodiversity the Council is satisfied, that subject to the mitigation 

measures described above there is no evidence that the development will have a significant adverse 

effect on such interests. 

 

Highways. - Access to the site is proposed to be taken directly from the A5152 highway linking 

junction 7 of the A55 with the A5 and the village; a new roundabout is to be constructed at this point. 

No other vehicular access points into the site are proposed but a pedestrian access point is proposed 

along the sites southern boundary with the A5 in order to provide linkages into the village. 

 

The application has been supported by a Transport Assessment that concludes that no operation 

issues are predicted and that there is sufficient capacity to accommodate the development without 

causing harm. 

 

The Department for Economy, Science and Transport of the Welsh Government and the Council’s 

Highways Department as statutory consultees on highways matters have reviewed this information 

and do not raise objections. 

 

The Welsh Government requests conditions ensuring that any noise barrier is set -back within the 

development site and that lighting is designed in such a way as to prevent overspill onto the trunk 

road. Both conditions are considered reasonable and will be attached. 

 

Likewise the Council’s Highway Department have suggested a series of planning conditions relating 

to design and construction of the site access and internal site layout, parking and loading areas, 

footway and cycle links to the development. In addition a Construction Traffic Management Plan is 

considered necessary in order to ensure that as little disruption as possible is caused during this 

period. These conditions are considered to be reasonable and will be attached. 

 

The Council’s Highways Department has also requested that in order to promote travel to and from 

the site by more sustainable means than single occupancy cars a Travel Plan setting out the strategy 

and measures to be put in place to encourage the adoption and utilisation of environmentally friendly 

modes of travel. It is proposed that a planning condition be put in place to secure this objective. 

 

In addition to the above agreement has also been reached that the developer will provide financial 

contributions to facilitate improvements at two bus stops to the south west of the site and also towards 

the  construction of a 500m pedestrian and cycle link along the A5. A Planning Obligation under 

Page 23



Section 106 of the Town & Country Planning Act is in place to secure this funding. 

 

Information provided with the application demonstrates that the site can be effectively and safely 

accessed and relevant statutory consultees do not raise objections. There is therefore no evidence on 

highway grounds that would suggest that the site cannot be developed. 

 

Landscape & Visual Assessment - A Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) 

encompassing a 5km study area around the site has been submitted with the application together with 

a Design and Access Statement (DAS) and Arboricultural Report, all of which are informative in 

helping to understand the predicted landscape and visual impacts of the proposed development. 

  

The site is within Landscape Character Area 12 – East Central Anglesey (LCA 12).   The LCA is 

described as the inland buffer zone to the Menai Strait and reflects much of the typical undulating 

landscape of Anglesey.   

 

Key relevant issues noted in the LCA are: 

  

Settlement Edge Development around settlement edges should:- 

 

• Be of a form and character appropriate to each settlement. 

• Be considered in terms of impacts upon the wider landscape, rather than the site itself. 

• Seek to integrate using landform, vegetation etc. to minimise impacts. 

• Ensure that standard solutions are not used in order that the inherent characteristics of the area are 

contained within the design. 

 

Transportation Corridors 

New development and management should ensure that:- 

• Visual impacts from and to main road/rail corridors are properly considered e.g.: A55/A5. 

 

• Mitigation measures reflect the wider landscape structure and that sites are not considered in 

isolation. 

 

In terms of site layout the Arboricultural Report identifies suitable trees to be retained within the 

development with the findings of the tree report shaping sections of the proposed layout.  The LVIA 

also informs this design process and the DAS makes it explicit that existing trees should be 

incorporated into the layout.  Retention of these features is likely to require changes to the layout such 

that buildings and parking are modified.  

 

Whilst the application fixes the broad parameters of the development in respect of the overall 

quantum of development at the site the application is in outline form and detailed submissions will be 

required in respect of detailed layout and landscaping for each phase of development. Consequently 

it is considered that these modifications can be accommodated without materially changing the nature 

of that proposed. 

 

With regard to landscape and visual effects the LVIA considers the Landscape Character Areas; the 

AONB; Historic Parks and Gardens; National Cycle Networks, Public Rights of Way; Wales Coast 

Path.  Moderate effects only are predicted for a number of features namely the site itself and a 

footpath described as running along the site (this is currently a dead end route severed by the A55). 

The significance of remaining effects is assessed as low or negligible.  

  

Whilst the assessment quantifies construction effects as negligible and temporary our experience 

shows that a phased project that extends over a number of years will consequently have a greater 

Page 24



than negligible effects predicted.  

 

In respect of visual effects the design concept for the development shows the evolution of the design 

process and the opening up of the site to wider views.  This has resulted in a linear design that moves 

units and parking to the edge of the development towards views from the A55 and A5.  This has 

resulted in the higher magnitude of change predicted in the LVIA e.g. by virtue of units 3b and 3c.  In 

assessing the significance of visual effects, residential receptors are described as being of medium 

sensitivity. For the nearest residences we would regard them as being of high sensitivity where a high 

magnitude of change would result in substantial effects – this aspect is further dealt with in detail 

below. Road users are described as being of low sensitivity, however our assessment is that those 

travelling on the A5 and A55 are of medium sensitivity therefore the predicted magnitude of change 

would result in moderate/slight visual effects.  

 

In terms of mitigation, considerable new planting is proposed: spread between the parking areas 

linked to the phased development, and to the east of the site outside of the building parameter plan.  

While there may be scope to increase the number of retained trees and boundaries noted as 

significant, the site also offers scope for considerable areas of replanting to balance potential losses 

and reduce long-term visual effects.  

  

Much of the landscape planting is separated from the buildings’ footprints and not necessarily dictated 

by the phased building approach. This affords the opportunity of implementing a planting scheme in 

the 1st phase of the project so as to reduce adverse visual effects and increase other benefits and 

also the limited use of new mounding or landforms to enhance landscaping at boundaries.   A 

condition requiring the approval of a Planting and Landscape Strategy for the site is proposed in order 

to facilitate this.  The effects on visual amenity during construction are again assessed as being of a 

temporary nature and due to a lack of mature landscaping at the start of the project high.  While the 

effect within the 5km radius study area may be negligible, the effects on some of the close viewpoints 

would be substantial.  

 

The layout proposes extensive parking and consideration needs to be given as to whether all parking 

needs be hard surfaced, for example overflow parking could incorporate porous or grassed surfacing 

and ensure that lighting is restricted to central areas. Again these matters can be further investigated 

at detailed design stage. 

 

The Assessment concludes that the proposal will be mostly seen from the A5 approach with limited 

views from the A55 and west on the A5 as well as from a number of locations in Gaerwen. We do not 

disagree with this assessment and are content that there will be no substantial landscape effects 

within the 5km study radius.  

 

 Moderate landscape effects are noted within and close to the site but do not extend to the wider area.  

It is considered that visual effects may be greater than predicted, but any substantial or moderate 

visual effects are again local to the site. The indicative layout can be improved to effectively 

incorporate existing features noted above.  Phasing and landscaping should reduce the duration of 

substantial and moderate visual effects.  Changes to the layout following from the above should aim 

to reduce effects generated by the linear nature of the layout and massing at the northern and 

southern edges. 

 

It is acknowledged that whilst there will be a high magnitude of change in the immediate vicinity the 

extent of change in the wider landscape will be low and will be further mitigated over time as on-site 

landscaping matures.  

 

On balance it is not considered that the landscape and visual impacts of the proposed development 

Page 25



are unacceptable. 

 

Welsh Language -The application is accompanied by a Welsh Language Assessment in accordance 

with the methodology set out in the Council’s SPG ‘Planning and the Welsh Language’. The 

assessment focuses on the Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, Braint and Gwyngyll wards as being the 

appropriate ‘local’community most likely to be effected by the proposed development. 

 

The assessment reveals that over 70% of this population speak Welsh (compared with 57% across 

Anglesey as a whole) and concludes that; 

 

•The development is likely to have an overall positive impact on the Welsh language in the ‘local’ 

community, reflecting the fact that the development is likely to bring high quality, well paid skilled jobs 

into the area which will enhance employment opportunities and increase wealth amongst local 

residents. 

•A potentially negative effect is the probability that non-Welsh speaking key workers would migrate 

into the ‘local’ community increasing the proportion of non-Welsh speaking households. It is 

considered that this could to a degree be offset by well qualified Welsh speakers taking advantage of 

the job opportunities and moving back into the area. 

 

•Proposed mitigation measures identified include adult Welsh language learning classes and   

mandatory Welsh language courses for non-Welsh speaking children entering local primary schools.( 

The applicants have confirmed that a package will be developed by Menai Science Park Ltd to 

promote this). 

•The strength and resilience of the Welsh language and culture within the ‘local’ community will 

ensure that the Welsh language will be positively strengthened. 

 

It is accepted that the assessment carried out in accordance with the Council’s adopted methodology 

is robust and consequently there is no evidence to suggest that the development would be harmful to 

the Welsh language.  

 

Agricultural land-Agricultural land quality is graded as follows; 

 

Grade 1 – Excellent quality. 

Grade 2 – Very good quality. 

Grade 3a – Good quality. 

Grade 3b – Moderate quality. 

Grade 4 – Poor quality. 

Grade 5 – Very poor quality. 

 

Both National and local planning policy seeks to protect the best and most versatile agricultural land 

which falls within Grades 1 to 3b. The application is accompanied by an ‘Agricultural Land 

Classification and Soil Resources’ report that has subjected soil samples from the site to laboratory 

analysis and has revealed that the majority of the site, (due to waterlogging, weak structure and poor 

drainage) falls within Grade 3b and is only of moderate quality. However a smaller portion of the site, 

equating to 2.6 hectares and located to the west is Grade 3a. 

 

It is necessary therefore to balance the loss of this relatively small area of good quality agricultural 

land against other material considerations of relevance in the determination of this application; these 

include but are not restricted to; the wider policy framework with particular regard to economic growth, 

the allocation of the site as an Enterprise Zone and the Council’s strategic aims and priorities. 

 

It is considered that in this balance the loss of approximately 2.6 hectares of good quality agricultural 

Page 26



land can be justified by the wider development benefits predicted. 

 

Archaeology -The application is accompanied by an ‘Archaeological Evaluation’ that has included a 

desktop investigation into the historical development of the site and locality, an examination of 

previous excavations and geophysical surveys. This was then followed by the excavation of 47 

trenches measuring 20m x 2m across the site. 

  

This work was carried out on the recommendation of the Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service 

(GAPS) in their capacity as archaeological advisors to the Council who confirm that the results 

indicate multiple phases of activity, with preliminary interpretations suggesting prehistoric settlement 

or occupation, potentially including one or more enclosures, possible structural evidence and various 

discrete features.  

 

It is noteworthy that GAPS do not consider that they are of national importance (albeit not insignificant 

in archaeological terms) and it is recommended that a comprehensive programme of mitigation will be 

required together with an archive of farm buildings on the site. It is suggested that a programme of 

archaeological work be agreed prior to development at the site and that a full photographic record of 

the buildings be made and appropriate planning conditions attached to any permission. 

 

In addition the ‘Archaeological Evaluation’ also considers the effect of the proposed development on 

historic assets located in the area. The majority of these comprised Grade II listed buildings in the 

village of Gaerwen, the closest being an eighteenth century windmill located 120m from the site 

boundary. This evaluation concluded that the proposed development was unlikely to result in any 

substantial effect on their setting and the local planning authority sees no reason to disagree with this 

assessment. 

 

It can be seen therefore that there is no evidence at this stage to suggest that archaeology of national 

importance would prohibit the development of the site. Appropriate planning conditions will secure the 

provision of archaeological mitigation throughout the scheme. 

 

Residential amenity.-The application site is located some distance from the main areas of residential 

development in the village and it is not therefore considered that the impact on their amenity will be 

significant. However there are 10 dwellings that lie in very close proximity to the application site that 

will inevitably be impacted to a much greater extent; these are considered to be;  

 

6 terraced dwellings - Maes Hyfryd. 

2 semi-detached dwellings - Islwyn and Dolydd. 

1 detached dwelling - Bryn Esceifiog. 

1 detached dwelling – Rhoshelyg. 

 

Members will recall viewing the location of these properties in relation to the proposed development 

that when carrying out a site visit in January.  

 

Whilst none of the occupiers of these properties have made representations of objection  to the local 

planning authority Planning Policy Wales (PPW) makes it clear that it is valid to consider the effect of 

a proposal on the amenity of neighbouring properties’ Paragraph 3.1.7 states; 

 

‘The Planning system does not exist to protect the private interest of one person against the activities 

of another. Proposals should be considered in terms of their effect on the amenity and existing use of 

land and buildings in the public interest. The Courts have ruled that the individual interest is an aspect 

of the public interest, and it is therefore valid to consider the effect of a proposal on the amenity of 

neighbouring properties. However, such consideration should be based on general principles, 

Page 27



reflecting the wider public interest (for example a standard of ‘good neighbourliness’), rather than the 

concerns of the individual’. 

 

The impact of the proposed development on the amenity of these properties is discussed below; 

 

Maes Hyfryd. The main aspect of these dwellings is angled away from the development site over the 

A5 trunk road and towards open countryside and the mountains of Snowdonia beyond. The ‘wedge’ of 

land within the application site, immediately in front of these dwellings is free from built development 

apart from a pedestrian footpath linking the development with Gaerwen and low level planting. The 

location of this footpath has been moved away from the dwellings as a result of local consultation.  

 

The nearest building lies approximately 50m from the gable end of the terrace, being building 2b, 

which has a floor-area of 2,776sqm and is up to 2 stories in height. Car parking area for this building 

(together with buildings 2a and 2c) is located between the building and the dwellings together with 

areas of landscaping. 

 

On balance it is not considered that the amenity of these dwellings is compromised to such an extent 

so as warrant the refusal of the application on these grounds. Built development is sufficiently 

distanced away and their juxtaposition is such that the dwellings main aspect will be retained and 

mitigation, through landscaping will also be provided.  Inevitably, occupiers  will experience a 

significant change over the status quo in so much as the land will no longer be open and agricultural, 

however it is not considered that this change would be so un-neighbourly so as to be unacceptable. 

 

Islwyn and Dolydd.- These properties lie on the opposite side of the narrow access road that 

currently serves Cefn Du and Bryn Esceifiog and will be directly and significantly impacted by the 

proposed development. Their main aspect is directly over the application site with distant views of the 

mountains of Snowdonia beyond. 

 

Building 2b, will be directly located in front of their main aspect with its rear elevation approximately 

60m distance from their front elevation. Car parking and landscaping is proposed in-between. 

Buildings 2a and 2c which are both 2 stories in height with respective floor-areas of 4,000sqm and 

1,093sqm lie beyond building 2b but are similarly located in front of their main aspect. 

 

The change in outlook and views from these dwellings will undoubtedly be significant as open 

countryside will become urbanised and the panoramic views currently enjoyed will over time be lost.  

 

However, in terms of effect on their ’amenity’ it is considered that the buildings and car parking areas 

are sufficiently distanced so as not to cause problems of overlooking, overshadowing or being overly 

dominant, nor is it considered that the level of disturbance, through movement of vehicles and 

pedestrians within the site will be unduly harmful to amenity. Again, mitigation through landscaping 

will help alleviate impacts over time.  

 

As regards the loss of view of touched upon above it is generally held that “there is no right to a view”. 

Whilst that is correct in strictly legal terms, it does not mean that the loss of a view is necessarily 

irrelevant to planning. The enjoyment of a view could be an important part of the residential amenity of 

a neighbouring property, and its loss might therefore have an adverse impact on the residential 

amenity of that property.  

 

This matter has been; however, on balance the judgement in this instance is that it is not the case 

here as open agricultural land surrounds the dwellings on all sides and the views over the application 

site is only one component of their wider vista.  

 

Page 28



Bryn Esceifiog – This property lies at the far end of the access lane currently serving the application 

site and will be directly impacted by the proposed development. The dwelling currently overlooks the 

farm buildings at Cefn Du. 

 

Building 3b, which has a floor-area 4,000sqm up to 3 stories in height will be located in front of the 

dwelling with its rear elevation being approximately 50m its front elevation and beyond that at an 

approximate distance of 90m will be building 3a also with a floor-area of 4,000 sqm and 3 stories in 

height. Car parking and landscaping is proposed in-between these buildings and the dwelling.  

 

Whilst the magnitude in change of outlook is not considered to be as marked as that experienced by 

the aforementioned semi-detached dwellings (as the current outlook is characterised by farm 

buildings) similar consideration arise and the same  planning judgement is reached in respect of the 

effect on ‘amenity’. 

 

Rhoshelyg- This property is situated on the opposite side of the A5152 slip road to the development 

with is main aspect facing away from the development site over open countryside towards the 

mountains of Snowdonia.  

 

The nearest building is 3c which has a floor-area of 1,640 sqm is up to 3 stories in height and lies 

approximately 120m away. Of the 10 dwelling lying in closest proximity to the development site it is 

considered that this dwelling experiences the least impact on amenity 

. 

Put simply, the dwelling faces away from the development and whilst the buildings may be visible it is 

considered that sufficient distances exist to ensure that there will a limited impact on amenity. Again, 

mitigation, through planting will reduce impacts over time. 

 

In balancing the above considerations the judgement reached is that the development is acceptable in 

the public interest and does not effect the amenity of neighbouring properties to such a degree as to 

warrant refusal on these grounds. 

 

7. Summary 

 

Is there a policy framework that enables the site to be released for the proposed development? 

 

The site is located on the edge of a recognized settlement it is compatible in scale and type, 

consequently it is considered that there is a policy framework in place that can be used to support the 

current proposal. 

 

Is it accepted that the site selection criteria is robust? 

 

It is considered that the sequential approach to site selection undertaken by the applicant is robust 

and that this coupled with the applicant’s stated requirements provides a rationale for supporting this 

choice of site 

 

Will the development deliver the economic benefits claimed? 

 

It is accepted that the economic benefits likely to accrue from the proposed development are 

significant and are closely aligned to the Council’s key economic and community regeneration aims 

and priorities. 

 

Does the development constitute ‘sustainable development’? 

 

Page 29



It is considered that the proposal is considered to constitute ‘sustainable development’ where national 

policy introduces a ‘presumption in favour’. 

 

What controls over use can be applied so as to distinguish the Science Park from other 

general employment sites? 

 

It is intended to restrict uses at the site within the B1 Use Class; specifically to those covered by parts 

(a) and (b); office accommodation and research and development. 

This restriction distinguishes the site from other general employment sites and will ensure that the 

primary ‘focus’ of the Science Park concept does not become ‘diluted’ over time. 

 

Are there any site specific environmental or technical constraints that would prevent the 

development of the site? 

 

The only objections raised by a Statutory Consultee are restricted to those made by the Community 

Council and the main issues raised in objection have been addressed within the body of this report. 

 

Regard has been had to the substance of these views and whilst they are in the main based on valid 

planning considerations and have been taken into account it is considered that; upon the facts of this 

particular case they are not supported by evidence or analytical analysis and that the refusal of 

planning permission on these grounds would be unreasonable. 

 

Drainage - Information provided with the application demonstrates that the site can be effectively 

drained and relevant statutory consultees do not raise objections. There is therefore no evidence on 

drainage grounds that would suggest that the site cannot be developed. 

 

Ecology - In having regard to conserving biodiversity the Council is satisfied, that subject to the 

mitigation measures proposed there is no evidence that the development will have a significant 

adverse effect on such interests 

 

Highways - Information provided with the application demonstrates that the site can be effectively 

and safely accessed and relevant statutory consultees do not raise objections. There is therefore no 

evidence on highway grounds that would suggest that the site cannot be developed. 

 

Landscape and Visual Impact - It is acknowledged that whilst there will be a high magnitude of 

change in the immediate vicinity the extent of change in the wider landscape will be low and will be 

further mitigated over time as on-site landscaping matures.  

On balance it is not considered that the landscape and visual impacts of the proposed development 

are unacceptable. 

 

Agricultural land - It is considered that the loss of approximately 2.6 hectares of good quality 

agricultural land can be justified by the wider development benefits predicted. 

 

Archaeology - There is no evidence at this stage to suggest that archaeology of national importance 

would prohibit the development of the site. Appropriate planning conditions will secure the provision of 

archaeological mitigation throughout the scheme 

 

Residential amenity - The judgement reached is that the development is acceptable in the public 

interest and does not affect the amenity of neighbouring properties to such a degree as to warrant 

refusal on these grounds 

  

 

Page 30



8. Conclusion. 

 

The application falls to be determined in accordance with Section 38(6) of the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004; that is, it is to be determined in accordance with development plan 

policies unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

In this respect it is considered that development plan policies do provide a framework that can be 

used to support the development and that other more up to date national policy and local strategies 

also provide a similarly supportive context. 

 

There are no technical or environmental reasons that would prevent the development of the site and it 

is considered that the development does constitute ‘sustainable development’. 

 

The development aligns with several of the Council’s key aims and priorities and will help widen and 

diversify employment opportunities.  

 

On balance it is considered that the development will make a positive contribution in helping to 

develop the economy without causing harm to the environment or the local community. 

 

It is believed that the information provided with the application, the views and comments received 

from consultees (and interested parties) together with the other material considerations discussed 

above provides a persuasive and compelling argument that on the facts of this particular case the 

development ought to be supported.  

 

9. Recommendation 

 

To permit the development subject to conditions and the completion of a Section 106 agreement 

requiring; 

 

 Financial contribution to facilitate bus stop improvements. 

 Monetary contribution towards the construction of a pedestrian and cycle link on the southern 
side of the A5 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 

before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 

go to the heart of the permission/ development. 

 

(01)Prior to the commencement of development a phased scheme of development (hereinafter 

called the schedule of development) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 

planning authority. The schedule of development shall detail all component elements 

proposed in each phase and no subsequent phase may be commenced before the written 

agreement of the local planning authority is received confirming completion of the preceding 

phase. The schedule of development shall be implemented in all respects as approved by this 

condition unless firstly otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To facilitate a phased scheme of development in accordance with a pre-agreed schedule. 

  

(02) The approval of the Council shall be obtained before any development is commenced on 

each phase of development to the following reserved matters viz. the layout, scale, 

appearance of the building, means of access thereto and the landscaping of the site. 

 

Reason: The application is in outline only and the reserved matters will require detailed consideration. 

 

Page 31



 

(03)  Application(s) for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning 

Authority before the expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(04)  The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of 5 years 

from the date of this permission, or the expiration of two years from the date of approval of the 

last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 

 

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(05) The reserved matters submissions in respect of the floorspace and heights of proposed 

buildings shall be in accordance with and adhere to the details submitted in the M-SParc 

Design & Access Statement (28/11/2014).  

 

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development. 

 

(06) No more than 5000sq.m of gross internal floorspace (identified as Phase 1 on drawing 

number 1534-G200-SP-004) of the development shall be occupied until the sewer network in 

Gaerwen that will link the development to the Gaerwen/Pentre Berw Waste Water Treatment 

Works is upgraded in accordance with the phasing as set out in of Dŵr Cymru/ Welsh Water’s 

Hydraulic modelling Assessment (HMA). 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 

  

(07) Foul sewerage flows from Phase 1 of the development (identified as Phase 1 on drawing 

number 1534-G200-SP-004) shall communicate to the 150mm public foul sewer in Holyhead at 

Manhole reference SH48716901. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 

 

 

(08) Foul sewerage flows from the remainder of the site (identified as Phases 2-9 on drawing 

number 1534-G200-SP-004) shall not communicate with the public sewerage system until such 

time as the Hydraulic Modelling Assessment (HMA) has been completed and any solutions 

identified to accommodate these flows completed and implemented in full.  

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 

 

(09) The approved development shall relate to those details as submitted by GVA to the Local 

Planning authority dated December 2014 as amended. 

 

Reason: In the interest of clarity. 

 

(10) Unless the local planning authority agrees differently in writing beforehand then the uses 

permitted at the site are restricted only to those falling within either paragraphs (a) or (b) of 

Class B1 of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes Order) 1987 (or the 

same uses as they appear in any re-enactment of that Order). 

 

Reason: To put in place a mechanism that ensures that the occupiers of the development are 

restricted to those compatible with the stated aims and focus of the Science Park. 

Page 32



 

(11) The existing boundary feature adjacent to the A55 dual carriageway shall not be removed 

or interfered with in any way. 

 

Reason: To maintain the safety and free flow of trunk road traffic. 

 

(12) Any noise barrier shall be set-back 1.0 metre into the application site from the existing 

Welsh Government boundary feature to allow for maintenance of the proposed noise barrier 

and boundary fence. 

 

Reason: To maintain the safety and free flow of trunk road traffic. 

 

(13) Lighting from the development shall be designed to prevent light spill onto the adjacent 

trunk road carriageway and shall not be prejudicial to highway safety. 

 

Reason: To maintain the safety and free flow of trunk road traffic. 

 

 (14) The main site access shall be located on the A5152 at the location indicated on the 

submitted plans. No vehicular access shall be allowed onto the unclassified road to the west 

of the site, other than ‘emergency access’ and/or pedestrian / cycle access.  No development 

shall commence until detailed designs for the site access(es) have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme(s) shall be 

implemented in accordance with the approved details except in so far as any variation has 

been approved in writing by the Council and shall be completed prior to the use of any part of 

the development.   

 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety in order to provide safe access to the highway and to 

minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the highway. 

 

(15) No development shall commence until detailed designs for the Footway/Cycleway on the 

northern side of the A5 along the southern boundary of the site have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be 

implemented in accordance with the approved details except in so far as any variation has 

been approved in writing by the Council and shall be completed prior to the use of any part of 

the development.  

  

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

 

 (16)  As part of any reserved matters submission, for each phase of development full details 

of the layout and design of internal access and circulation areas shall be submitted to and 

approved by the Local Planning Authority and that part of the approved development shall not 

be used or occupied until the road infrastructure approved under this condition has been 

completed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority and which shall be retained as 

such thereafter. 

 

Reason: To ensure an adequate vehicular access and movement in the interests of highway safety. 

 

(17)  As part of any reserved matters application, for each phase of development details of 

delivery vehicle facilities, refuse and recyclables storage and parking and turning shall be 

submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority and that part of the approved 

development shall not be used or occupied until the required facilities have been completed 

and marked out to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. The delivery areas shall 

Page 33



thereafter be kept clear of obstruction and made available for delivery and turning. 

 

Reason: To ensure adequate facilities for delivery vehicle parking and turning within the curtilage of 

the site, in the interests of highway safety. 

 

(18)  As part of the reserved matters application, for each phase of the development, details of 

car and motorcycle parking facilities shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 

Authority and prior to occupation of the proposed development or part thereof the parking 

shall be completed in all respects as approved under this condition and shall be retained and 

kept free of obstructions and available as approved thereafter. 

 

Reason: To ensure adequate provision and availability of vehicle parking. 

 

(19)  As part of the reserved matters application, for each phase of the development, details of 

secure and covered cycle parking facilities shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 

Planning Authority and prior to occupation of the proposed development or part thereof the 

cycle parking shall be completed in all respects as approved under this condition and shall be 

retained and kept free of obstructions and available as approved thereafter. 

 

Reason: To ensure adequate provision and availability of cycle parking. 

 

(20)  As part of the reserved matters application, for each phase of development, details of a 

travel plan setting out: 

 

• Proposals to encourage employees, visitors, customers and contractors to travel to 

and from the site by alternative and more environmentally friendly modes of travel than single 

occupancy private car, 

• a timetable for implementation, 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The travel plan 

shall be implemented in all respects as approved under this condition and shall in so far as 

required by the approved travel plan be actively implemented and evolved  thereafter. 

 

Reason: In the interests of sustainable development. 

 

(21) No development shall commence on each phase of development until a comprehensive 

Environmental Management Plan for the construction of each development phase has been 

submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The plan shall identify all 

possible and foreseeable detrimental effects on neighbouring occupiers and the environment 

by dust, fumes, noise, odour or release of other contaminants to air and water arising from 

construction of the development and specify how these are to be avoided or, where this is not 

practicable, mitigated.  All construction activities on the site shall be undertaken in 

accordance with the approved plan, subject to any amendments agreed in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: In order to secure the satisfactory development of the site. 

 

(22)  Prior to commencement of each phase of development, a Construction Traffic 

Management Plan (“CTMP”) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. The approved measures shall be implemented and adhered to during the 

entirety of the construction period except as insofar as any variation to the CTMP has been 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CTMP shall, as a minimum, include 

detail of: 

Page 34



 

(i) the means of transportation of plant, equipment and materials associated with the 

construction of the development and the access to and egress from the site from / to the 

highway; 

 (ii) specification of haul route(s) and of any temporary signage to be provided to identify the 

route for construction traffic and measures to promote its safe use; 

 (iii) identification of the routing strategy and procedures for the notification and conveyance 

of any indivisible “out of gauge” loads. This includes any necessary measures for the 

temporary protection of carriageway surfaces; for the protection of statutory undertakers’ 

plant and equipment; and for the temporary removal and subsequent replacement of street 

furniture; 

(iv) description of the arrangements to be made for on-site parking for personnel working on 

the site and for visitors;  

(v) description of the arrangements to be made for the storage of plant and materials and 

location of site compounds etc.; and 

 (vi) proposals for communicating information relating to the CTMP to the Local Planning 

Authority. 

 

Reason To minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the highway for the duration 

of the construction phases of the development and to promote highway safety.  

 

(23)  Prior to the commencement of each phase of development wheel washing facilities shall 

be provided within the curtilage of the application site as agreed with of the Local Planning 

Authority. The wheel washing facilities shall be used and maintained in good working 

condition throughout the construction works and for as long afterwards as considered 

necessary by the Local planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent the development works resulting in mud on the road contrary to the interests of 

highway safety. 

 

(24)  Noise levels shall not exceed 38dBL aeq at the façade of the nearest noise sensitive 

properties. 

 

Reason: To ensure that there is no detrimental acoustic impact on the area. 

 

(25)  The development or any part thereof shall not commence until a scheme setting out 

details of the external artificial lighting proposed on the site during the construction of each 

phase of the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. This scheme shall identify the location, height, type and orientation of the 

proposed lighting.  Lighting for construction purposes shall only be installed and operated on 

the application site in accordance with the approved scheme, subject to any amendments 

agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: In the interests of amenity 

 

(26)  Prior to commencement of development details of the proposed surface water drainage 

system shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. These 

details shall include flap and valve specifications and their locations; the existing & proposed 

outfall system and their locations and appropriate maintenance and management schemes for 

the drainage systems. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the local drainage system and to provide adequate drainage 

Page 35



systems to cater for the proposed new development. 

 

(27)  Foul water and surface water discharges shall be drained separately from the site. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 

 

(28) No surface water shall be allowed to connect, either directly or indirectly, to the public 

sewerage system unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and 

safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the environment. 

 

(29)  Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge, either directly or indirectly, to 

the public sewerage system. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system and pollution of the 

environment. 

 

(30)  Any increase in surface water flows shall be attenuated to the satisfaction of the Local 

Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent surcharging and flooding of the existing system and to prevent the pollution of 

surface water and watercourses. 

 

(31)  Prior to the commencement development a scheme for the comprehensive and integrated 

drainage of the site showing how foul water, surface water and land drainage will be dealt with 

shall be prepared and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be carried 

out in accordance with the details provided. 

 

Reason: To ensure that effective drainage facilities are provided and that no adverse impact occurs to 

the environment or to the existing public sewerage system. 

 

(32) Where development consists of hot food preparation suitable grease traps shall be 

provided   to prevent entry into the public sewerage system of matter likely to interfere with 

the free flow of the sewer contents, or which would prejudicially affect the treatment and 

disposal of such contents. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system, and sustain an essential and effective 

service to existing residents. 

 

 (33) If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at 

the application site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the 

Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out until a Method Statement detailing how this 

contamination shall be dealt with has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development will not cause pollution.  

 

(34)  Prior to being discharged into any watercourse or surface water sewer, all surface water 

drainage from parking areas and hard-standings shall be passed through an oil interceptor 

designed and constructed to have a capacity and details compatible with the site being 

drained.  Roof water shall not pass through the interceptor and drainpipes shall be connected 

Page 36



to the drainage system either directly or by means of back inlet gullies provided with sealing 

plates instead of open gratings.  

 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment. 

 

(35)  For each phase of development details of the external artificial lighting proposed shall be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority prior to its installation and thereafter 

carried out and retained in accordance with the details provided. 

 

Reason: In the interests of amenity. 

 

(36) (a)No development of each phase (including any groundworks or site clearance) shall take 

place until a specification for a programme of archaeological work has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the archaeological advisor to the Local Planning Authority.  

(b) The development shall subsequently carried out and all archaeological work completed in 

strict accordance with the specification approved under (a). 

 

Reasons:  (a) To ensure the implementation of an appropriate programme of archaeological 

mitigation in accordance with the requirements of Planning Policy Wales 2014 and Welsh Office 

Circular 60/96 Planning and the Historic Environment; Archaeology.   

(b) To ensure that the work will comply with Management of Archaeological Projects (MAP2) and the 

Standards and Guidance of the Institute for Archaeology (IfA). 

 

(37) Prior to development (including any demolition, site clearance or stripping-out) taking 

place, a full photographic record of the building must be undertaken in accordance with the 

Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service Requirements for General photographic Surveys of 

Buildings. The record must be approved by the archaeological advisors to the Local Planning 

Authority before being deposited with the regional Historic Environment Record. 

 

Reason: To ensure that an adequate record is made of all structures affected by the proposals and 

that the record is held within the public domain for future reference and research. 

 

(38) Prior to the commencement of development a Wildlife Biodiversity and Habitat 

Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority and the identified measures and actions shall thereafter be carried out in accordance 

with the details provided. 

 

Reason: In the interest of safeguarding wildlife. 

 

(39) The recommendations and measures set out in ‘The Bat Conservation Strategy/Mitigation 

Methodology (March 2015)’ shall be implemented in full and a verification report 

demonstrating compliance at each stage shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for 

verification. 

 

Reason: In the interests of ecology. 

 

(40) Prior to the commencement of development a Planting and Landscaping Strategy for the 

development  shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

and shall be carried out in accordance with the details provided. 

 

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. 

 

Page 37



(41) The design details of all wetland/water bodies shall be submitted for the approval of the 

local planning authority in conjunction with the Ministry of Defence and shall thereafter be 

constructed in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Reason: To ensure compliance with bird management requirements. 

 

(42)  Prior to the commencement of for each phase of the development a public realm strategy 

for that phase of the development detailing the materials, treatments, hard and soft 

landscaping, proposals for public art, street furniture, public access and interpretation and 

information provision shall be submitted to and approved in writing with the Local Planning 

Authority and shall be carried out in accordance with the details provided. 

 

Reason: In the interests of public amenity and to ensure that a satisfactory scheme of development is 

delivered. 

 

(43)  Each new non-residential building hereby permitted shall be constructed to achieve a 

minimum overall (Building Research Establishment Method (BREEAM)) (or subsequent 

equivalent quality assured scheme) rating of Very Good and achieve the mandatory credits for 

an Excellent rating under category Ene 1- Reduction of CO2 Emissions in accordance with the 

requirements of (BREEAM)(2011) unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved assessment 

and certification. 

 

Reason: To ensure that the development meets nationally recognised sustainability credentials. 

 

(44)  Construction of any building hereby permitted shall not begin until an 'Interim Certificate' 

has been submitted to the local planning authority, certifying that a minimum overall 

(BREEAM) rating of Very Good has been achieved with the mandatory credits for an Excellent 

rating under category Ene1 - Reduction of CO2 Emissions in accordance with the 

requirements of (BREEAM)(2011) unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

 

Reason: To ensure that the development meets nationally recognised sustainability credentials. 

 

(45)  Prior to the occupation of the individual buildings hereby permitted or any other date as 

may be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, a 'Final Certificate' shall be 

submitted to the Local Planning Authority certifying that a minimum overall (BREEAM) rating 

of Very Good has been achieved with the mandatory credits for an Excellent rating under Ene1 

- Reduction of CO2 Emissions in accordance with the requirements of (BREEAM)(2011) unless 

otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To ensure that the development meets nationally recognised sustainability credentials. 

 

(46)  No buildings hereby approved shall be first occupied until details of a Waste Storage and 

Collection Strategy for the buildings units have been submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To ensure that satisfactory measures for refuse and recycling storage and collection are in 

place and are compatible with the Council's waste service. 

 

 

 

Page 38



NOTES TO APPLICANT: 

 

Any contaminated soil or material removed off site must be taken by a registered waste carrier to a 

suitably licenced site. 

 

 The applicant will require consent from the local highway authority under the Highways Act 1980 in 

order to construct the site access(es) etc. It is a criminal offence to undertake any un-licenced work in 

the highway without the prior written consent of the LHA. 

 

Planning permission does not constitute permission under the Highways Act for various activities that 

may be associated with the development i.e. use of the highway/footway/verge to: for example; 

deposit material, deposit skips, erect scaffolding, excavate within the highway or erect traffic 

management apparatus. Such activities will require the separate consent of the Highway Authority. 

 

It is ân offence to discharge surface water or deposit mud and debris onto the highway. The applicant 

should ensure that positive preventative measures are provided within the curtilage of the property 

before development commences. These measures shall thereafter be suitable maintained. 

If connection is required to the public sewerage system the developer is advised to contact Dŵr 

Cymru/Welsh Water’s Developer Services on 0800 917 2652. 

 

Some public sewers and lateral drains may not be recorded on Dŵr Cymru/Welsh Water maps of 

public sewers because they were originally privately owned and were transferred into public 

ownership by nature of the Water Industry (Schemes for Adoption of Private Sewers) Regulations 

2011. The presence of such assets may affect the proposal. In order to assist us in dealing with the 

proposal we request the applicant contacts our Operations Centre on 0800 085 3968 to establish the 

location and status of the sewer. Under the Water Industry Act 1991 Dŵr Cymru/Welsh Water has 

rights of access to its apparatus at all times. 

 

The Welsh Government has introduced new legislation that will make it mandatory for all developers 

who wish to communicate with the public sewerage system to obtain an adoption agreement for their 

sewerage with Dŵr Cymru/Welsh Water (DCWW). The Welsh Ministers Standards for the 

construction of sewerage apparatus and an agreement under Section 104 of the Water Industry Act 

(WIA) 1991 will need to be completed in advance of any authorisation to communicate with the public 

sewerage system under Section 106 WIA 1991 being granted by DCWW. 

 

Consent is required from Natural Resources Wales for the proposed surface water discharges in 

order to comply with the Water Resources Act 1991/Groundwater Regulations 1998. 

 

Any diversions, infilling or culverting of existing land drainage ditches will require the express approval 

of this Authority’s Land Drainage Officer, under Section 23 of the Land Drainage Act. 

 

Any food premises must comply with the requirements of the Food Hygiene (Wales) Regulations 2006 

and Regulation (EC) 852/2004. 

Any food premises must be registered with the Environmental Health Department (Food Safety 

Section) at least 28 days prior to opening under Regulation (EC) 852/2004. 

 

The developer is advised to contact the Environmental Health Department regarding plans for kitchen 

layout/design any for any premises where food is to be sold. 

 

Development must comply with the requirements of the Health & Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and all 

regulations made under that Act. 

 

Page 39



7.2 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     33C295B     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Miss Rhian Hughes 

 

Cais llawn i godi annedd newydd ynghyd ag addasu y mynedfa presennol ar dir ger / Full 

application for the erection of a dwelling together with alterations to the existing access on 

land adjacent to 

   

4, Nant-y-Gors, Pentre Berw 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (SCR) 

 

 Recommendation:   

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

At the request of the Chairman of the Planning and Orders Committee. 

 

Members will recall that at its meeting that was held on the 1
st
 April, 2015 it was decided to defer the 

determining of the application in order for discussion to take place between the applicant and 

Highway Authority.  A meeting has taken place between the applicant, agent and Highway Officer.   

 

The Highway Authority have confirmed in an e-mail dated 22
nd

 April, 2015 that the road width 

measured on site was approximately 4.1 metres.  The footway is approximately 1.4 metres wide.  The 

minimum road width for an emergency vehicle and car to pass each other is 4.8 metres.  In order to 

achieve the desired road width, the applicant would be required to reduce the footway width to 0.7 

metres.  This would be unacceptable as there is a pedestrian access off the adjacent property and a 

minimum footway of 1.0 must be kept. 

 

Therefore, even with an improvement of 400mm, which the applicant may be willing to undertake, the 

carriageway width will still fall below the minimum required for an emergency vehicle to pass parked 

cars without having to mount the kerb. 

 

At the time of writing this report the Highway Authority were awaiting confirmation from the applicant 

whether they were willing to carry out any improvements to the road layout and this will be conveyed 

verbally at the Planning and Orders Committee Meeting. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The proposal is a full application for the erection of a detached two storey dwelling together with 

alterations to the existing access. 

 

The site comprises a plot of land within a large agricultural field, which is within the applicants’ 

ownership, and is located to the south of the Nant y Gors residential estate in the village of Pentre 

Berw. 

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

  

The applications main issues are whether the proposal complies with current local and national 

policies, whether the proposal will have a detrimental effect on highway safety or affect the amenities 

of the occupants of the neighbouring properties. 

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 31 – Landscape 

Policy 42 – Design 

Page 41



Policy 48 – Housing Development Criteria 

Policy 50 – Listed Settlement 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy A2 – Housing 

Policy D4 - Location, Siting and Design  

Policy D28 – Design 

Policy D29 – Design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy EN1 – Landscape Character 

Policy HP4 - Villages 

 

Planning Policy Wales, 7
th

 Edition 2014 

 

Technical Advice Note 12: Design 

 

Design Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Community Council – No comments 

 

Local Member, Cllr. V Hughes – No response to date 

 

Local Member, Cllr H E Jones – No response to date 

 

Welsh Water – Recommended conditional approval 

 

Drainage Section – Comments 

 

Highway Authority – Recommended conditional approval 

 

Natural Resource Wales – No objection / standard informative 

 

The application was afforded two means of publicity; these were by the posting of a notice near the 

site and the serving of personal notifications on the owners of neighbouring properties.  Following the 

receipt of amended plans the publicity process has been carried out three times.  The latest date for 

the receipt of representations was the 23
rd

 January, 2015 and at the time of writing this report 6 letters 

of representation had been received from the owners of the three neighbouring properties.  The mains 

issues raised can be summarised as follows: 

 

i) Road serving the site is narrow.  Parking problems exist in the locality, cars are parking on the road 

and the use of the existing access to the site would result in loss of parking spaces.  Contractor’s 

vehicles and delivery vehicles would worsen the situation.  The number of cars parking on the road 

make it hard for emergency and refuse vehicles to visit the site 

 

ii) Biodiversity – Have surveys been carried out in terms of tress and wildlife that could be affected by 

the proposal.   

 

iii) Trees – the applicant has stated that no trees or hedge are located on the site – this is an untrue 

Page 42



statement.  A new boundary fence will change the landscape 

 

iv) Scale of dwelling is out of character with the surrounding area. 

 

v) Affect the legal right of way of adjoining property 

 

vi) Proposal would result in loss of value to neighbouring properties 

 

vii) Previous application was refused on highways and policy grounds – how can this proposal be 

acceptable? 

 

In response to these comments I would state: 

 

i) Parking facilities will be provided within the site for the dwelling.  Although it is acknowledged that 

additional traffic will be generated by construction traffic this will be for a temporary period only and 

will not affect the amenities of the neighbouring properties to such a degree as to warrant the refusal 

of the application.  The existing access to the site is to be utilised by the proposal and therefore this 

should not result in loss of parking spaces as this is an existing access.  The Highway Authority has 

been consulted and have raised no objection to the proposal.   

 

ii) A Protected Species Survey has been submitted as part of the application and Natural Resource 

Wales and the authority’s Ecological and Environmental Advisor have been consulted and have 

raised no objection to the proposal. 

 

iii) The applicant has submitted plans illustrating the location of trees on the boundary.  Whilst the 

submitted plans illustrate a new boundary fence to enclose the garden area the existing trees along 

part of the boundary will also be retained.  Due to the proposal being on the edge of the settlement 

adjoining a residential estate it is not considered that a erection of a 1.8 timber fence will detrimentally 

harm the surrounding landscape.    

 

iv) Although the proposed dwelling is larger than the detached dwellings on the residential estate 

there are other properties of similar scale in the locality and therefore the proposal will not be out of 

character to the detriment of the locality 

 

v) This is a private matter between individuals and is not a planning matter 

 

vi) The erection of one dwelling on this site which is situated at a distance of more than twenty metres 

away from the adjoining properties should not have an impact on the value of the neighbouring 

properties.  However paragraph 3.1.7 of Planning Policy Wales states that the planning system does 

not exist to protect the private interests of one person against the activities of another.  Proposal 

should be considered in terms of their effect on the amenity and existing use of land and building in 

the public interest.  The proposal as submitted will not have an adverse effect on the amenities of the 

surrounding properties or harm the surrounding landscape. 

 

vii) The plot of land that formed planning application reference 33C295 was a much larger plot than 

the current application.  The southern boundary of the scheme refused was 33.5 metres and the 

western boundary measured 33.5 metres.  The southern boundary of the proposed plot currently 

under consideration measures 30 metres and the western boundary measures 25 metres long and 

therefore the current proposal is considered as an acceptable extension to the village.  

 

During the course of determining planning application reference 33C295 the Highway Authority raised 

concerns that the proposal could lead to further residential developments and refused the application 

Page 43



as the highway fronting Nant y Gors was inadequate to cater for additional traffic.  However during the 

course of determining outline application reference 33C295A the Highway Authority stated that they 

could support an application for one dwelling provided that the applicant enter into a legal obligation 

that no further development would take place on the land to the rear of the site.   It is not considered 

that a Section 106 Agreement is necessary as another dwelling to the rear of the site could not be 

supported in policy terms, however such an application would be considered on its own merits and in 

accordance with policies and guidance relevant at that time. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

33C295 – Outline application for the erection of a dwelling on land adjoining Nant Gors, Pentre Berw 

– Refused 31/05/12 

 

33C295A – Outline application for the erection of a dwelling on land adjacent to 4 Nant y Gors, Pentre 

Berw – Approved 19/12/12 

 

Site history adjoining land 

 

33C106 – Erection of a dwelling on part of OS 9042, Ty’n Berllan, Pentre Berw - Refused 08/12/89 

 

33C106A - Erection of a dwelling on part of OS 9042, Ty’n Berllan, Pentre Berw - Refused 15/07/91 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Policy Context - Pentre Berw is defined as a Listed Settlement under policy 50 of the Ynys Mon 

Local Plan and as a village under Policy HP4 of the stopped UDP.   

 

Single plot applications on the edge of settlements are considered acceptable under Policy 50 of the 

Ynys Môn Local Plan.    

 

Planning application reference number 33C295 (outline permission for one dwelling) was refused in 

May 2012 as the scale of the plot was much larger and the dwelling and its curtilage was situated 

further back into the agricultural field and therefore was not considered as an acceptable extension to 

the village as the dwelling was too far removed from the neighbouring properties.  The scale of the 

plot was reduced and an amended outline application was re-submitted and approved for the erection 

of a dwelling under planning permission reference 33C295A.   

 

The current application is a full application as the scale of the plot is larger than the plot that was 

approved under 33C295A.  Although the plot size is larger than that approved the scale of the plot 

remains smaller than the original refused plot size (33C295) and therefore the proposal is considered 

as an acceptable ‘infill/edge of settlement’ plot and therefore complies with the requirements of Policy 

50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan. 

 

During the consultation process the Joint Planning Policy Unit has requested justification on how the 

proposal would meet the requirements of the village community.  However, as stated above outline 

planning permission has been granted on the site, for the erection of a dwelling and this permission is 

extant. 

 

Although the authority is currently carrying out a review into residential developments within listed 

settlements the current application is supported due to the fact that the extant outline planning 

permission for one dwelling on the site (valid until December 2015) and although the scale of the 

proposed plot is slightly larger than the approved plot scale the proposal is an acceptable extension to 

Page 44



the settlement of Pentre Berw.   

 

Highways Safety – Concerns have been raised by the occupants of the neighbouring properties in 

regards to highway safety and vehicles parking on the estate road.  Parking provision for the 

occupants of the proposed dwelling will be provided within the site.  The Highway Authority have been 

consulted and have raised no objection to the proposal.   

 

Effect on neighbouring properties – There is a distance of more than 30 metres between the front 

of the proposed dwelling and the rear of the existing dwellings (5 and 6 Nant y Gors) and a distance 

of 20 metres between the side of the proposed dwelling and the side of 4 Nant y Gors.  These 

distances more than comply with the requirements of Supplementary Planning Guidance Design 

Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment in terms of distances between properties.  Due to these 

distances the proposal will not detrimentally harm the amenities currently enjoyed by the occupants of 

the dwellings to such a degree as to warrant the refusal of the application. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The proposal complies with current local and national policies.  The proposal will not harm the 

amenities currently enjoyed by the occupants of neighbouring properties or have a detrimental impact 

on highway safety. 

 

 8. Recommendation 

 

To permit the development subject to conditions.  

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 

before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 

go to the heart of the permission/ development. 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the 

expiration of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) No development shall take place until trade descriptions of the materials proposed to be 

used on the external surfaces of the development have been submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved materials shall be used in the 

implementation of the development. 

 

Reason: In the interest of the amenities of the locality. 

 

(03) The prior agreement of the local planning authority in writing shall be obtained before any 

trees or hedges on the site or on the boundaries of the site are lopped, topped or felled, and if 

any such trees or hedges are felled they shall be replaced to the satisfaction of the local 

planning authority. 

 

Reason: In the interest of the amenities of the locality. 

 

(04) Foul water and surface water discharges shall be drained separately for the site. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerages system. 

 

Page 45



(05) No surface water shall be allowed to connect, either directly or indirectly, to the public 

sewerage system unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and 

safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the environment. 

 

(06) Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge, either directly or indirectly, into 

the public sewerage system. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the 

environment.  

 

(07) The access shall be laid out and constructed strictly in accordance with the submitted 

plan before the use hereby permitted is commenced and thereafter shall be retained and kept 

free from permanent obstruction and used only for access purposes. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority. 

 

(08) The access shall be constructed with its gradient not exceeding 1 in 20 for the first 5 

metres back from the nearside edge of the adjoining carriageway. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority. 

 

(09) The highway boundary wall/hedge/fence or any new boundary erected fronting the 

highway shall at no time be higher than 1 metre above the level of the adjoining county road 

carriageway along the whole length of the site's boundary with the adjoining highway and 

nothing exceeding this height erected within 2m. of the said wall. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority. 

 

(10) The car parking accommodation shall be completed in full accordance with the details as 

submitted before the use hereby permitted is commenced and thereafter retained solely for 

those purposes. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority. 

 

(11) The access shall be completed with a bitumen surface or other suitable surfacing material 
as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority for the first 5 metres from the 
nearside edge of the County Highway with the surface water drainage system completed and 
in working order) before the use hereby permitted is commenced.   
 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority. 

  
(12) The turning area shall be completed in full accordance with the details as submitted 
before the dwelling is occupied and thereafter retained solely for those purposes. 
 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority. 

  
(13) Any gates erected at the access shall be set back a minimum distance of 5.0 metres from 

the nearside edge of the county highway. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority. 
 

Page 46



(14) The development hereby approved shall be carried out in strict conformity with the details 

shown on the submitted plans and contained in the form of application and in any other 

documents accompanying such application, unless conditions of this permission stipulate 

otherwise. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



7.3 Ceisiadau’n Tynnu’n Groes                                        Departure Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     34C553A     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

St Malo (Llangefni) Ltd 

 

Cais amlinellol ar gyfer datblygiad trigiannol yn cynnwys gwaith priffordd a rhwydwaith 

cysylltiol yn/Outline application for residential development, highway and associated 

infrastructure at 

   

Ty'n Coed, Llangefni 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 48



 

Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

Report of Head of Planning Service (MTD) 

 

Recommendation:   

 

Permit. 

 

Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is reported to the Planning Committee because it has been advertised as a departure 

from the development plan, and is being recommended for approval. 

 

Members will recall visiting the site in the 21
st
 August, 2013. 

 

The application was deferred from the last committee meeting in line with pre-election protocols. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 
The application relates to an area of approximately 5.34 hectares of agricultural land to the north of 
Llangefni between the B5110 (leading to Brynteg) & B5108 (leading to Talwrn). There are residential 
properties at Bro Ednyfed abutting the southern boundary of the application site. To the east on the 
opposite side of Talwrn Road members may be aware of the recently constructed school and 
extension to the Coleg Menai campus, and associated facilities. 
 
The application is made in outline form, with all details reserved for further consideration.   
 
Residential Development  
 
The proposal encompasses approximately 4.5 hectares. The supporting statement with the 
application states that 138 dwellings developed in three phases could be accommodated on this area. 
  
Access to the above development would be via the relatively recently constructed roundabout on 
Talwrn Road, which currently serves the development to the east. 
 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

* Adequacy of existing residential land supply. 

 

* Compliance of the respective proposals with development plan and other material policy 

considerations.  

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

A1 (Distribution of Housing Development) 

A2 (Housing Land Location) 

A3 (Scale & Phasing of Housing Development) 

A6 (New Dwellings in the Open Countryside) 

A9 (Affordable Housing) 

FF15 Pedestrian & Disables Access    

 

Ynys Môn Local Plan 

Page 49



47 (Housing Requirements) 

48 (Housing Development Criteria) 

49 (Defined Settlements) 

53 (Housing in the Countryside) 

 

Stopped Anglesey Unitary Development Plan 

HP1 (5 Year Supply) 

HP2 (Housing Density) 

HP3 (New Housing Development – Main & Secondary Centres) 

HP6 (Dwellings in the Open Countryside) 

HP7 (Affordable Housing) 

TR9 (Walking, Cycling & Horse Riding)  

 

Technical Advice Note (Wales) 1 Joint Land Availability Studies (2006) 

 

Interim Planning Policy Large Sites Feb 2011 

 

Planning Policy Wales, 7
th

 Edition 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Design Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 
The Local Members: No observations received. 
 
Town Council: Comments in respect of number of houses and that any permission should be the 

subject of a Section 106 Agreement. 

 

Highways: Conditional permission. 

 

Public Rights of Way: No objections. 

  

 

Drainage: Conditional permission requiring a Sustainable Urban Drainage System (SuDS) in respect 

of surface water drainage. 

 

Housing & Social Services Department: No objections subject to affordable housing provision.  

 

Environmental Services: No objections subject to conditions in respect of working hours during 

construction. Also noted that the development is close to a sporting facility which can give rise to 

complaints of noise nuisance in the future, to which little or no amelioration measures can be applied 

retrospectively. 

 

Welsh Water: No objections subject to conditions 

 

National Resources Wales: Conditional permission and require details of the implementation of the 

great crested newt mitigation strategy. 

 

Welsh Language Board: Observations made on submitted Welsh Language Assessment; no 

objections. 

 

Education: Require contribution from developer of £863,872 this figure reflects the calculated 

additional costs which would be imposed as a consequence of additional demand for child education. 

Page 50



 

GAPS: Require a survey to be carried out. However, as this has only been requested at this late 

stage it is considered appropriate and reasonable to request this by way of condition or prior to 

release of any consent. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

34C553/SCR - Screening opinion for residential development including extra care facility, highway 

and associated infrastructure. Environmental Impact Assessment not required - 28.02.07. 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Principle of Residential Development  

 

Having regard to the provisions of section 38(6) of the 2004 Act, determination to be made under the 

planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise. The development plan for Anglesey comprises the approved 

Gwynedd Structure Plan (approved November 1993) and the adopted Anglesey Local Plan (adopted 

December 1996). Other material policy considerations include the Stopped Anglesey Unitary 

Development Plan, National and other Planning Guidance listed in the relevant section of this file. 

 

Policy A1 of the Gwynedd Structure states sufficient land (including that with planning consent) will be 

made available for housing to allow for the development of some 9,070 additional dwellings in 

Gwynedd during the plan period 1991 to 2006, Anglesey’s distribution was 3,170. 

 

 

Policy A2 of the Gwynedd Structure Plan states housing land to meet the requirements of policy 1 will 

be located within, or on the edge of, existing settlements at a scale which reflects the settlements 

existing population as a proportion of the total population of the relevant district. Policy A3 of the 

Gwynedd Structure Plan is also relevant and states that the scale and phasing of new housing 

development will be expected to take account of the listed criteria. 

 

Policy 47 of the adopted Anglesey Local Plan states enough land (including land with planning 

permission) will be made available for the provision of some 2150 new dwellings during the period 

1991-2001. 

 

Llangefni is identified as a defined settlement under the provisions of policy 49 of the Anglesey Local 

Plan and the application site lies outside this settlement boundary, this is why the application has 

been advertised as a departure from the provisions of the development plan.  

 

On 1
st
 December 2005 the County Council voted to implement the transitional arrangements set out in 

the LDP Wales regulations and to “stop work” on the Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan (UDP). 

The deposit plan of 2001, as amended by the Inspector’s report, remains a material planning 

consideration carrying weight commensurate to the stage it reached. Llangefni is identified as a Main 

Centre under the provisions of policy HP3 of the Stopped Anglesey Unitary Development Plan 

“Stopped UDP” and the application site lies outside this settlement boundary. 

 

In February 2011 the Council adopted an Interim planning Policy for large sites immediately adjacent 

to the development boundaries of main centres. This policy was to ensure that sufficient housing land 

was made available to maintain a 5 year land supply until the Joint Local Development Plan is 

adopted. This policy can be used to consider applications for 50 or more residential units immediately 

adjacent to Llangefni providing 50% are of an affordable nature. 

Page 51



 

Given the process undertaken to prepare the policy, its adoption via Council resolution and its main 

purpose, namely; to try to facilitate development that could enable the LPA to maintain a statutory 5 

year supply of land, it is considered that the interim Policy can be afforded weight as a material 

planning consideration. 

 

The latest published Joint Housing Land Availability Study shows a 5.4 year land supply. This is 

above the need for a 5 year land supply although it should be recognised that 5 year supply is a 

minimum requirement. A significant upturn in the completion rate over the next year to 18 months 

could result in the land supply falling below the minimum 5 year supply and thereby leaving the 

Council open to applications in potentially less sustainable locations being approved. 

 

The planning support statement refers to National Policies that support the development of this site in 

sustainability terms. These were part of the justification for an interim policy that is applicable to main 

centres on the island since these are the most sustainable locations for large housing proposals. The 

statement addresses the the individual criteria within the interim policy. 

 

It is considered that the granting of permission in this instance would assist the council in maintaining 

a 5 year supply of land until the Joint Local Development Plan is adopted. 

  

Effect on Amenities  

 

Policy 1 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan and GP 1 of the Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan 

relate the effect on residential amenities and pollution and nuisance problems will be assessed in 

determining planning applications. The effect on property values is not in this instance a material 

consideration. It is not considered that the proposals would unacceptably affect the outlook from the 

adjacent properties. The proposed dwellings can be sited a sufficient distance away from boundaries 

to prevent any unacceptable overlooking. For the reasons described is not considered that the 

proposals will unacceptably affect the amenities of any adjacent properties.  A condition has been 

recommended to be attached to any permission granted so as to restrict construction times and 

distances of development from the boundary with Bro Ednyfed. Issues in relation to noise nuisance 

during construction are subject to separate legislative provisions.   

 

Objections have also been received on the basis that the adjacent football field may unacceptably 

affect the amenities of occupants of this development. This factor is also acknowledged by the 

council’s Environmental Services Section. Having weighted the distance between the existing and 

proposed developments and the frequency of disturbance, it is not a factor which could be attributed 

such weight so as to refuse planning permission. 

 

Objections have also been received from residents in respect of existing and anticipated drainage 

problems, and this is considered below. 

 

Flooding & Drainage    

 

Foul sewerage is proposed to be discharged to the public sewer. Welsh Water initially objected to the 

development are now recommending approval subject to a requirement that the developer fund any 

improvements works necessary to facilitate the development. 

 

Many concerns were expressed by residents of Bro Ednyfed in respect of surface water flooding. 

Members of the Planning Committee who attended the site visit also noted that the part of the 

application site that they viewed poorly drained, and raised a number of questions about the existing 

and proposed surface water drainage arrangements. As this is an outline planning permission it is 

Page 52



necessary to establish in principle that surface water can be discharged from the development 

satisfactorily. 

 

These issues have been investigated in detail by officers and Natural Resources Wales, who have 

statutory responsibility for this matter. The following principles have been established: 

 

 

1. There are outlets on the application site into which surface water can be discharged from the 
development. 

2. There are a number of engineering solutions for surface water disposal, but it would not 
comply with circular advice to require a detailed scheme at the outline planning application 
stage as these are matters appropriately dealt with via a planning condition. 

3. Any scheme to be submitted under conditions will need to take account of: 

  the geology and topography and existing drainage arrangements, to ensure that amongst 
other considerations that there is no detrimental impact of residential properties in the locality. 

 Any scheme to be submitted under conditions should also be of a sustainable drainage 
approach to surface water management (SUDS). This involves using techniques such as 
soak ways and permeable surfaces, ponds and wetlands. 

 NRW will require that surface water runoff rates from the development will not exceed 1 in a 
100 years.   

 

Whilst residents of Bro Ednyfed may have experienced problems of flooding in their garden, this is not 

a reason for withholding planning permission. Members are urged to adhere to the condition below 

which will ensure that the development can proceed in an acceptable manner. 

 

 7. Recommendation  

 

The Head of Planning Service to Permit the application subject to an agreement under section 106 of 

The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) containing the following provisions:   

  

 A percentage of the new dwellings to comprise affordable housing units. 

 A contribution of funds to the Education Authority 

 A contribution of funds to Welsh Water as necessary 
 

That delegated powers are granted to the Head of Service to resolve matters relating to the 

requirements of Natural Resources Wales in respect of Great Crested Newts prior to the 

release of any permission. 

 

Conditions recommended to be attached to any planning permission granted   

 

(01) The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than whichever is the later of 

the following dates: 

 

i) The expiration of five years from the date of this permission. 

  

ii) The expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to 

be approved. 

 

Reason: To prevent the accumulation of planning permission:  to enable the Council to review the 

suitability of the development in the light of altered circumstances and to comply with the provisions of 

Section 92(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) Application for approval of reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority 

before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

Page 53



 

Reason: To prevent the accumulation of planning permissions:  to enable the Council to review the 

suitability of the development in the light of altered circumstances and to comply with the provisions of 

Section 92(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(03) Approval of the details of the appearance to include floor plans, layout; scale and access 

thereto and the landscaping of the site (hereafter called ‘the reserved matters’) shall be 

obtained in writing from the Local Planning Authority before the development is commenced. 

 

Reason: The application is for outline planning permission. 

 

(04) The details to be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 

accordance with condition (01) above shall include details of the proposed slab levels of the 

building(s) in relation to the existing and proposed levels of the site and the surrounding land.  

The building(s) shall be constructed with slabs at levels that have been approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory form of development 

 
(05) The details to be submitted shall illustrate the development sited and designed so that no 
window shall overlook an existing habitable room window at a distance of less than 21 meters, 
and no residential curtilage at a distance of less than 10 meters. 
 

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of adjacent properties at Bro Ednyfed. 

 

(06) The details to be submitted for the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in 

accordance with condition (01) above shall include a scheme of landscaping and tree planting 

for the site which provides for the retention of the existing trees. The landscaping scheme 

shall show the proposed planting including species, size and density and distinguish the trees 

to be retained showing their species spread and maturity together with measures for their 

protection in the course of development.  The approved new planting shall be implemented 

not later than the first planting season after the occupation of the buildings or completion of 

the development, whichever is the sooner.  The approved protection measures shall be 

implemented prior to the commencement of development. 

 

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 

 

(07) Any tree or shrub which forms part of the approved landscaping scheme which within a 

period of five years from planting fails to become established, becomes seriously damaged or 

diseased, dies or for any reason is removed shall be replaced in the next planting season by a 

tree or shrub of a species, size and maturity to be approved by the Local Planning Authority.   

 

Reason: In the interest of the visual amenities of the locality.   

 

(08) No development shall take place (unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority) until full details of a scheme indicating all of the proposed means of 

enclosure around and within the site whether by means of walls, fences or hedges has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved means of 

enclosure shall be constructed, erected or planted prior to the occupation of the development 

hereby approved.   

 

Reason: To ensure that the details and appearance of the development are acceptable to the Local 

Planning Authority.  

Page 54



 

(09) The development hereby permitted shall be roofed with natural Welsh heather blue, 

heather red or heather grey mineral slates, unless alternative natural mineral slates of 

equivalent colour, texture and weathering characteristics are approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. 

 

Reason To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development. 

 

(10) No development shall take place until the samples or trade description of the materials 

and colours proposed to be used on external surfaces of the development have been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved materials 

shall be used in the implementation of the development.   

 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development.   

 

(11) Before any development commences, plans shall be submitted and approved by the Local 

Planning Authority showing details of the following reserved matters: 

 

 

(i) the proposed layout and typical construction details based on ground investigation 

information to verify its adequacy. 

 

(ii) longitudinal and cross section through the roads illustrating  the proposed road levels 

relative to the existing ground levels and proposed buildings' finished floor levels. 

 

 

(iii) the surface water drainage and means of disposal including the position of gullies, pipe 

diameters, design data and outfall. 

 

(iv) the location and the type of street lighting furniture 

 

(v) pedestrian and cycle routes including provision to safeguard the existing Public Footpaths 

which crosses the site. 

 

(vi) scheme for parking, garaging and manoeuvring and the loading and unloading of vehicles 

which shall accord with the Isle of Anglesey Council Supplementary Planning Guidance 

'Parking Standards' (2008)  (or any subsequent amendment or policy document as may be 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority). 

 

(vii) the extent and location of provision for refuse collection and recycling facilities. 

 

(viii) bicycle storage area including rack specification and design. 

 

Reason: In order to minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the highway and the 

development 

 

(12) The hours of operation for all contractors for the duration of the development herby 

approved shall unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority be limited to: 

7.30am to 6.00pm on Mondays to Fridays. 7.30 am to 1.00pm on Saturdays No work shall be 

carried out on Sundays and Bank Holidays.   

 

Reason In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring properties.   

Page 55



 

(13) The development shall not be commenced until all essential off-site public sewerage 

improvement works, identified within the modelling assessment report (Report No. RS3156-07-

0A or any alternate report as maybe subsequently approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority) has been completed and fully operational and written confirmation of such has been 

obtained from the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system and prevention of pollution to the 

environment. 

 

(14) No development shall commence until a “scheme” for foul, surface and land drainage of 

the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 

authority. The “approved scheme” shall be completed and operational before any of the 

dwellings hereby approved are occupied. The “scheme” to be submitted shall show foul 

drainage being connected to the public sewerage system and in accord with the provisions of 

condition (14). 

 

Reason In order to ensure that the development is adequately drained. 

 
(15) Prior to the submission of the “scheme” under condition (15) above, written confirmation 

shall be obtained from the Local Planning authority that: 

 An assessment into the potential for disposing of surface water by means of 
sustainable drainage systems (“SuDS scheme”) and  

 the results of this assessment have been submitted to the local planning authority.  
 
If the assessment under the provisions of b) above demonstrates that there is potential for 

disposing of surface water by means of a “SuDS scheme”, the “scheme” to be submitted 

pursuant to condition (15) above shall incorporate such provision. Where a “SuDS scheme” is 

to be implemented, the submitted “SuDS scheme” shall:  

 

i)  Provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to 

delay and control the surface water discharged from the development and the measures to be 

taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters; 

 

ii) Specify the responsibilities of each party for the implementation of the “SuDS scheme”, 

together with a timetable for that implementation; and  

 

iii) Provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which 

shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker or 

other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. 

 
Reason To ensure that the principles set out in Technical Advice Note 15: Development and Flood 
Risk has been satisfactorily undertaken. 
 
(16) The housing development shall take place in accordance with a phased scheme of 
development (hereinafter called the schedule of development) to be submitted to and agreed 
in writing with the local planning authority prior to the commencement of any development on 
the site. No dwellings comprised in any subsequent phase shall be commenced before the 
works to construct the dwellings comprised in the previous phase are substantially physically 
completed. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of amenity.    
 
(17) An Archaeological Survey to the requirements of Gwynedd Archaeological Planning 
Service should be carried out prior to the commencement of any works. 

Page 56



 
Reason: To ensure any archaeological remains are preserved and recorded. 
 

Informatives 

 

This decision notice relates solely to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and 

does not purport to grant any approval, which may be required under any separate European or UK 

legislation in relation to protected species. Under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 

and the Conservation (Natural Habitats &c) Regulations 1994, it is an offence to disturb a bat in its 

place of shelter, to kill or injure a bat or to damage, destroy or prevent access to its roosting site, 

whether or not the roost is occupied at the time. If evidence of use by bats is found a licence may be 

required from the Welsh Government (Countryside Division) before any development can proceed. 

The applicant is advised to contact: Welsh Government, Cathays Park, Cardiff, CF10 2NQ, telephone 

02920 823363. 

 

The decision notice must be read in conjunction with the terms of the legal agreement of the (date). 

You are advised to satisfy yourself that you have all relevant documentation. 

 

8. Other Relevant Policies  

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan  

D3 Landscape Conservation Area  

D4 Location, Siting & Design  

D20 Foul Effluent  

D28 Natural Mineral Slate  

D29 High Standard of Design  

FF11 Traffic Generation  

FF12 Parking Provision  

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan  

1 General  

31 Landscape  

32 Landscape  

42 Design  

26 Car Parking 

28 Tidal Inundation & Flooding 

 

Stopped Anglesey Unitary Development Plan 

GP1 Development Control Guidance  

GP2 Design  

EN1Landscape Character  

SG4 Foul Sewage Disposal  

SG6 Surface Water Run Off   

TR10 Parking Standards  

 

Isle of Anglesey County Council Parking Standards (2008)   

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance Planning & the Welsh Language  

 

Ministerial Interim Planning Policy Statement (MIPPS) 01/2006 – Housing 

 

Ministerial Interim Planning Policy Statement (MIPPS) 01/2008 - on Good Design  

 

Page 57



Technical Advice Note 5 (Wales) Nature Conservation and Planning 

 

Technical Advice Note 12 (Wales) Design   

 

Technical Advice Note 18 (Wales) Transport 

 

Technical Advice Note 20 (Wales) The Welsh Language-Unitary Development Plans and 

Planning Control 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance on Affordable Housing 

 

9. Other Responses to Consultation and Publicity  

 

162 letters and a petition signed by 85 people received objecting to the planning application on the 

following grounds: 

 

Need for housing development of this scale in Llangefni; 

Greenfield site; 

Need for extra care facility; 

Health and safety of location for existing residents adjacent and occupants of extra care facility; 

Effect of development on Plas Penlan Nursing Home; 

Development not in compliance with planning policies and outside of settlement boundary of 

Llangefni; 

Effect on residential amenities of adjacent existing residential properties; 

Effect of Llangefni football ground on the amenities of occupants of the proposed dwellings; 

Flooding; 

Overdevelopment; 

Traffic; 

Precedent for further development; 

Sewerage infrastructure inadequate; 

Development of this scale should be to the west of Llangefni; 

Police and ambulances are cutting services in Llangefni thus making development unsustainable; 

Part of hedgerow shown as being on the application site is actually in Bro Ednyfed; 

No details in respect of the public footpath which traverses the application site; 

Effect on views; 

Lack of information on the extra care facility, particularly having regard to the re-located school 

opposite; 

Impact of a development of this scale on school provision; 

Demographic and Welsh Language considerations; 

Electricity supply problems already at Bro Ednyfed; 

Affordable housing; 

No information regarding loss of existing trees; 

Planning Committee requested to refuse the application; 

Increased anti-social and criminal activity from public footpath crossing application site. 

One letter received from the Assembly Member for Anglesey expressing the following concerns of 

constituent: 

Affordable housing – Houses will be too high in comparison with relatively low wages locally. 

Local Services - Additional pressure on existing local services – doctor and dentist surgeries, waste 

collection, schools, shops and so on.  

Lack of demand for houses - There are empty houses in Llangefni and others under construction. 

It is requested that constituents concerns are considered in determining the application. 

The schools are at capacity and this proposal would put further strains on the local educational 

Page 58



departments; 

There are  other brownfield sites which should be investigated especially as this does not comply with 

policy; 

Does the company have the financial ability to develop such a large site; 

The extra care has been removed from the application was this just a sweetener that the applicant 

had no intention of progressing; 

The housing need will need to be taken into account there are still over 65 houses for sale within 1 

mile. The new Wylfa station will not require this extra housing as local people will be involved who 

already live here; 

The population is predicted to reduce so this new housing is not needed; 

There are bats nearby; 

Traffic will be increased; 

Why was the roundabout built when there was no proposal; 

The site floods; 

Inability of the mains sewage system to cope; 

Increased pressure on school NHS dentists and Council services; 

Reduction in privacy and light to existing houses. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



10.1 Ceisiadau’n Tynnu’n Groes                                        Departure Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     45C9G     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Mr B Wilkinson & Mrs P Strachan 

 

Cais llawn ar gyfer codi annedd ar dir ger / Full application for the erection of a dwelling on 

land adjacent to 

   

Awel Menai, Penlon, Newborough 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 10



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (SCR) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is presented to the Committee as an application which is contrary to the adopted Ynys 

Mon Local Plan but that can be supported under the Stopped Unitary Development Plan. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The application site is located in Penlon in Newborough. The site is located between two properties 

and there are dwellings on the opposite side of the road. The dwellings are predominantly single 

storey or dormer style properties.  

 

The proposal is a full application for the erection of a detached, dormer style dwelling together with 

the construction of a new vehicular / pedestrian access.  

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The applications key issues are whether the proposal is acceptable in terms of policy, design, 

highways, impact on the locality and amenities of nearby residential properties. 

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

1 – General Policy 

30 - Landscape 

48 – Housing Development Criteria 

53 – Housing in the Countryside. 

30 – Landscape 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

A2 – Housing Land 

A3 – New Housing Development 

A6 – New Dwellings in the Open Countryside 

D1 – Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

D4 – Location, Siting and Design. 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

GP1 – Development Control Guidance 

GP2 – Design 

HP5 – Countryside Hamlets and Clusters 

EN2 - Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

 

Planning Policy Wales, 2014, 7
th
 Edition 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Design Guide for the Rural and Urban Environment. 

Page 62



 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Community Council – No response at the time of writing this report. 

 

Local Member, Cllr P Rogers – No response at the time of writing this report. 

 

Local Member, Cllr A Griffith - No response at the time of writing this report. 

 

Natural Resource Wales – No response at the time of writing this report. 

 

Welsh Water – Recommend conditional approval 

 

Highways – Recommend conditional approval. 

 

Drainage – Requested further information – at the time of writing this report we are still awaiting the 

receipt of the requested information 

 

The application was afforded three means of publicity; these were by the posting of a notice near the 

site, publication of a notice in the local press and the serving of personal notifications on the occupiers 

of neighbouring properties.  The latest date for the receipt of representations is the 18th May, 2015.  

At the time of writing this report no letters of representation had been received at the department. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

45C9: Erection of a bungalow and garage on plot of land adjoining Awel Menai, Penlon, Newborough. 

Approved – 08.04.84 

 

45C9C: Detailed plans for the erection of a bungalow on land adjoining Awel Menai, Penlon, 

Newborough. Withdrawn – 05.12.89 

 

45C9D: Erection of a bungalow on land adjoining Awel Menai, Penlon, Newborough. Refused – 

27.09.90 

 

45C9E: Erection of a dwelling on land adjoining Awel Menai, Penlon Newborough. Refused – 

15.01.92 (Appeal Dismissed – 09.02.93) 

 

45C9F – Outline application for the erection of a dwelling on land adjacent to Awel Menai, Penlon, 

Newborough – Approved 07/09/12 

 

Site History adjoining land: 

 

45C9A: Amended detailed plans for the erection of a bungalow on land adjoining Awel Menai, Penlon, 

Newborough. Approved – 23.05.85 

 

45C9B: Erection of two porches at Gwawr Eryri, Penlon, Newborough. Approved – 15.06.88 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Principle of Development - The application site is considered as being in the countryside under the 

provisions of Policy 53 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan; however, it is identified as a Countryside Hamlet 

and Cluster under policy HP5 of the Stopped Unitary Development Plan. 

Page 63



 

The Stopped Unitary Development Plan remains a material planning consideration in view of the 

advanced stage reached in the Unitary Development Plan adoption process and since it has been 

subject to scrutiny at a Public Enquiry and supported in the Inspector’s Report of 2004. 

 

The application site is an ‘infill site’ which is immediately adjacent to the developed part of the rural 

hamlet as per the provision of Policy HP5.  

 

The principle of the development is therefore acceptable under the provisions of Policy HP5 of the 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan and this is a material consideration of significant weight. 

 

Design – The area is predominantly a mixture of dormer style or single storey properties, with a 

mixture of tiled and traditional slate finish roofs.  

 

The design of the proposed dwelling and materials to be used in its construction is similar to what can 

be found in the locality.  There is ample space within the site to accommodate the proposal without 

resulting in the over-development of the site to the detriment of the neighbouring properties and 

surrounding area. 

 

Effect on surrounding properties - There is a distance of 13 metres between the gable of the 

proposed dwelling and the gable of Awel Menai.  One ground floor window is proposed in the gable of 

the proposed dwelling and this is located within the bathroom.  Conifers are located along the 

boundary between the existing and proposed dwelling and are located within the grounds of Awel 

Menai.  Due to the distances between both properties and the boundary screening the proposal will 

not have a detrimental impact on the amenities currently enjoyed by the occupants of the adjoining 

property. 

 

There is a distance of 9.5 metres between the gable of the proposed dwelling and the gable of the 

neighbouring property known as Gwawr Eryri.  There is existing screening located along the boundary 

between the existing and proposed dwelling.  The garage of Gwawr Eryri is located between the new 

dwelling and existing property and due to the distances between both properties, the existing 

screening and the fact that the neighbouring garage is situated between the properties it is not 

considered that the proposal will detrimentally affect the amenities currently enjoyed by the occupants 

of the existing dwelling. 

 

Highways – The Highway Authority have been consulted and have raised no objection to the 

proposal subject to the inclusion of standard highway condition 

 

Impact on Locality – The application site is located within an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

(AONB). It is a statutory designation that recognizes its importance in landscape quality and nature 

conservation terms. 

 

The primary objective for an AONB designation is the conservation and enhancement of their natural 

beauty. Local authorities have a statutory duty to have regard to AONB purposes and development 

control decisions affecting AONB’s should in the first instance favour conservation of natural beauty.  

 

The erection of a dormer dwelling in this location, which is similar in design and scale to properties 

that can be found in the locality the proposal is considered acceptable and will not have an adverse 

effect on the surrounding landscape. 

 

 

 

Page 64



 7. Conclusion  

 

Whilst the proposal is contrary to policy 53 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan and policy A6 of the Gwynedd 

Structure Plan, the proposal is acceptable under the provision of policy HP5 of the Stopped Unitary 

Development Plan. 

 

The erection of a dormer style dwelling in this location will not adversely affect the amenities of the 

occupants of neighbouring properties or have a detrimental impact on the surrounding area which is 

designated as an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  The erection of one additional dwelling in this 

location will not affect highway safety. 

 

 8. Recommendation  

 

Permit the application subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 

before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 

go to the heart of the permission/ development. 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the 

expiration of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) Foul water and surface water discharges must be drained seperately from the site. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 

 

(03) No surface water shall be allowed to connect either directly or indirectly to the public 

sewerage system unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and 

safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the environment.  

 

(04) Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge either directly or indirectly into 

the public sewerage system. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the 

environment. 

 

(05) The access shall be laid out and constructed strictly in accordance with the submitted 

plan (Drawing No. 3397-03) before the use hereby permitted is commenced and thereafter shall 

be retained and kept free from permanent obstruction and used only for access purposes.  

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority.  

 

(06) The access shall be constructed with its gradient not exceeding 1 in 20 for the first 5 

metres back from the nearside edge of the adjoining carriageway. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority.  

 

(07) The highway boundary wall/hedge/fence or any new boundary erected fronting the 

Page 65



highway shall at no time be higher than 1 metre above the level of the adjoining county road 

carriageway along the whole length of the sites boundary with the adjoining highway and 

nothing exceeding this height erected within 2 metre of the said wall/hedge/fence or any new 

boundary. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority.  

 

(08) The access shall be completed with a bitumen surface or other suitable surfacing material 

as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority for the first 5 metres from the 

nearside edge of the County Highway with the surface water drainage system completed and 

in working order before the use hereby permitted is commenced. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority.  

 

(09) The car parking accommodation shall be completed in full accordance with the details as 

submitted before the use hereby permitted is commenced and thereafter retained solely for 

those purposes. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority.  

 

(10) No surface water from within the curtilage of the site to discharge onto the county 

Highway.  No development shall commence until full design details for the drainage of the site 

have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be 

occupied until the approved scheme has been implemented in full and to the written 

satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority.  

 

(11) The development hereby approved shall be carried out in strict conformity with the details 

shown on the submitted plans and contained in the form of application and in any other 

documents accompanying such application, unless conditions of this permission stipulate 

otherwise. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

 

 

 

Page 66



10.2 Ceisiadau’n Tynnu’n Groes                                        Departure Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     45C207H/VAR     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Mr Neil Richards 

 

Cais o dan Adran 73 i ddiwygio amodau (02) a (03) o ganiatâd cynllunio rhif 45C207G (cais 

amlinellol ar gyfer godi annedd) er mwyn ymestyn amser y caniatad ar dir ger / Application 

under Section 73 for the variation of conditions (02) and (03) from planning permission 

reference 45C207G (outline application for the erection of a dwelling) so as to extend the time 

limit of the planning consent on land adjacent to 

   

Abernant, Penlon 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (SCR) 

 

 Recommendation:  

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is presented to the Committee as an application which is contrary to the adopted Ynys 

Mon Local Plan but that can be supported under the Stopped Unitary Development Plan. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The application site is located in Penlon in Newborough. The site is located between two properties 

and there are dwellings on the opposite side of the road. The dwellings are predominantly single 

storey or dormer style properties.  

 

The proposal is an application under Section 73 for the variation of conditions (02) and (03) from 

planning application reference number 45C207G so as to extend the time limit for the submission of a 

detailed application for the erection of dwelling on land adjacent to Abernant, Penlon. 

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The key issue is whether the proposal is acceptable in terms of policy, design and impact on the 

locality and amenities of nearby residential properties. 

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

1 – General Policy 

30 - Landscape 

48 – Housing Development Criteria 

53 – Housing in the Countryside. 

30 – Landscape 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

A2 – Housing Land 

A3 – New Housing Development 

A6 – New Dwellings in the Open Countryside 

D1 – Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

D4 – Location, Siting and Design. 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

GP1 – Development Control Guidance 

GP2 – Design 

HP5 – Countryside Hamlets and Clusters 

EN2 – Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

 

Planning Policy Wales, 2014, 7
th
 Edition 

 

Page 68



Supplementary Planning Guidance: Design Guide for the Rural and Urban Environment. 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Community Council – No objection 

 

Local Member, Cllr P Rogers – No response at the time of writing this report. 

 

Local Member, Cllr A Griffith – No response at the time of writing this report. 

 

Natural Resource Wales – No response at the time of writing this report. 

 

Welsh Water – Recommend conditional approval 

 

Highways – No recommendation, however the conditions imposed on the original application will be 

included on the decision notice 

 

Drainage – No objection 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

45C207: Erection of a dwelling on part of land at Cae Ponciau Wil, Penlon, Newborough. Refused – 

10.03.94 

 

45C207A: Erection of an agricultural building on land at Cae Ponciau Wil, Penlon, Newborough. 

Withdrawn – 26.05.94 

 

45C207B: Erection of a dwelling on land at Cae Ponciau Wil, Penlon, Newborough. Refused – 

12.09.94 (Appeal – Dismissed – 07.02.95) 

 

45C207C: Agricultural development determination form for the erection of a woodland maintenance 

building at Crud Awel Woodland Plantation, Penlon, Newborough. Permission required – 06.08.96 

 

45C207D: Erection of a woodland maintenance building at Crud Awel Woodland Plantation, Penlon, 

Newborough. Approved – 06.06.97 

 

45C207E: Retention of a caravan sited for temporary accommodation at Cae Ponciau Wil, Penlon, 

Newborough. Refused – 04.12.98 

 

45C207F: Outline planning application for the erection of a dwelling on land at Cae Ponciau Wil, 

Penlon, Newborough. Refused – 13.03.02 

 

45C207G - Outline application for the erection of a dwelling on land adjacent to Abernant, Penoln, 

Newborough – Approved 09/03/12 

 

The application was afforded three means of publicity these were; the posting of a site notice near the 

site and the serving of personal notifications on neighbouring properties representations and the 

publication of a notice in the local press.  The latest date for the receipt of representations was the 

14
th
 March, 2015 and at the time of writing this report no letters of representation had been received 

at the department.   

 

 

Page 69



 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Principle of Development - The application site is considered as being in the countryside under the 

provisions of Policy 53 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan; however, it is identified as a Countryside Hamlet 

and Cluster under policy HP5 of the Stopped Unitary Development Plan. 

 

The Stopped Unitary Development Plan remains a material planning consideration in view of the 

advanced stage reached in the Unitary Development Plan adoption process and since it has been 

subject to scrutiny at a Public Enquiry and supported in the Inspector’s Report of 2004. 

 

The application site is an ‘infill site’ which is immediately adjacent to the developed part of the rural 

hamlet as per the provision of Policy HP5.  

 

The principle of the development is therefore acceptable under the provisions of Policy HP5 of the 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan and this is a material consideration of significant weight. 

 

Design – The area is predominantly dormer style bungalows with a traditional slate roof finish, the 

finish of the dwellings in the vicinity vary from natural stonework to painted render. Conditions shall be 

imposed to reflect the pattern of development in the vicinity.  

 

Impact on Locality – The application site is located within an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

(AONB). It is a statutory designation that recognizes its importance in landscape quality and nature 

conservation terms. 

 

The primary objective for an AONB designation is the conservation and enhancement of their natural 

beauty. Local authorities have a statutory duty to have regard to AONB purposes and development 

control decisions affecting AONB’s should in the first instance favour conservation of natural beauty.  

 

In 2002 the previous application was refused because it would “cause serious injury to the character 

and amenities of the area…”. The siting of the dwelling was positioned further into the plot on 

previous applications, the application under consideration is sited closer to the highway and in line 

with the neighbouring property Ger y Don as such it will not have a negative impact on the designated 

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  

 

Amenities of nearby properties – The dwellings in the surrounding area are sited within ample 

plots; as such the siting of a bungalow in this location will not affect the amenities of the neighbouring 

properties and complies with the Supplementary Planning Guidance – Design Guide for the Urban 

and Rural Environment with respect to proximity of development.  

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

Whilst the proposal is contrary to policy 53 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan and policy A6 of the Gwynedd 

Structure Plan, the proposal is acceptable under the provision of policy HP5 of the Stopped Unitary 

Development Plan. 

 

The proposal is considered acceptable subject to conditions. 

 

 8. Recommendation  

 

Permit the application subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 

Page 70



before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 

go to the heart of the permission/ development. 

 

(01) The approval of the Council shall be obtained before any development is commenced to 

the following reserved matters viz. the layout, scale, appearance of the building, means of 

access thereto and the landscaping of the site. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) Application for approval of the reserved matters hereinbefore referred to shall be made 

not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(03) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than whichever 

is the later of the following dates namely: - (a) the expiration of five years from the date of this 

permission or (b) the expiration of two years from the final approval of the said reserved 

matters or in the case of approval on different dates the final approval of the last such matter 

to be approved. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(04) The building proposed to be erected on the site shall be single storey or no higher than 6 

metres high. 

 

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. 

 

(05) Natural slates of uniform colour shall be used as the roofing material of the proposed 

building(s). 

 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development.  

 

(06) Foul water and surface water discharges must be drained seperately from the site. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 

 

(07) No surface water shall be allowed to connect either directly or indirectly to the public 

sewerage system unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and 

safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the environment.  

 

(08) Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge either directly or indirectly into 

the public sewerage system. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the 

environment. 

 

(09) Full details of the means of construction of the existing highway surface water drainage 

system where the access is to be constructed shall be submitted as part of any full or detailed 

application.  

 

Page 71



Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority. 

 

(10) A passing place shall be provided within the highway grass verge, details of the passing 

area shall be submitted with any full or detailed application.  

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority. 

 

(11) Before any development commences, plans shall be submitted and approved by the 

Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority showing details of the following 

reserved matters: 

 

(a) the extent and position of vehicle turning facilities. 

 

(b) the extent and position of accommodation for car parking. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority. 

 

(12) Details of the existing and proposed ground levels, finished floor levels and cross 

sections shall be submitted as part of any detailed or full application. 

 

Reason: In the interests of amenity. 

 

(13) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 

the plans, sections and elevations required to be approved by the local planning authority 

under the conditions imposed. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 72



11.1 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     16C197A     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Mr Gareth Hughes 

 

Cais llawn i ddymchwel y sied bresennol ynghyd a chodi annedd newydd a creu mynedfa newydd i 

gerbydau ar dir ger / Full application for demolition of the existing shed together with the erection of 

a new dwelling and creation of a new vehicular access on land adjacent to 

   

Dridwen, Bryngwran 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 11



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (SCR) 

 

 Recommendation:   

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The applicant is related to a Councillor as defined within paragraph 4.6.10.2 of the Constitution. 

 

The application has been scrutinised by the Monitoring Officer as required under paragraph 

4.6.10.4 of the Constitution. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The application is a full application for the erection of a single storey dwelling on land to the rear of 15 High 

Street, Bryngwran.   

 

The land currently forms part of the rear garden of 15 High Street.  Access to the site is afforded off   Well 

Street which is a private road.  The properties in the immediate locality are of single storey construction.  

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The applications main issues are whether the development complies with current policies and whether the 

development will affect the amenities of neighbouring properties, whether the design of the proposal is 

acceptable and whether the proposal will be detrimental to highway safety.  

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Môn Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy  

Policy 42 – Design 

Policy 48 – Housing Development Criteria 

Policy 50 – Listed Settlement 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy A2 – Housing 

Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design  

Policy D28 – Design 

Policy D29 – Design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy HP4 - Villages 

 

Technical Advice Note 12: Design 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance – Design Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Local Member, Cllr. D Rees – Call-in due to concerns from occupant of neighbouring property 

 

Page 74



Local Member, Cllr N Roberts  - No response to date 

 

Local Member, Cllr B Parry – No response to date 

 

Community Council – No response to date 

 

Highway Authority – Recommended conditional approval 

 

Drainage Section – Requested further information.  At the time of writing this report we are still awaiting 

receipt of the requested information 

 

Welsh Water – Recommended conditional approval 

 

Natural Resource Wales -  Standard guidance in terms of drainage of the site 

 

The application was afforded two means of publicity these were; the posting of a site notice near the site and 

the serving of personal notifications on neighbouring properties.  Following the receipt of amended 

documents the publicity process was carried out twice.  The latest date for the receipt of representations was 

the 17
th
 December, 2014 and at the time of writing this report 7 letters of representation had been received at 

the department.  The mains issues raised can be summarised as follows: 

 

i) Installation of a septic tank and soakaway could result in environmental risks, bad smells, seepage into 

neighbouring garden 

 

ii) The proposed dwelling due to its height and siting will result in loss of light to neighbouring properties 

 

iii) Application site address is incorrect and should be 15 High Street.  The submitted Design and Access 

Statement is incorrect as it states that the development is on Well Street.  Well Street is a private Road and 

has no public right of way and therefore the applicant does not have the right to gain access to the 

application site via Well Street. 

 

iv) An application for a two storey dwelling has been rejected on the site previously and on appeal a single 

storey dwelling was allowed. 

 

v) Noise disturbance 

 

vi) Number of properties for sale in the locality no need for additional dwellings 

 

vii) The application form has been completed incorrectly as it states that no prior advice was given.  As the 

previous application for two dwellings on the plot was withdrawn the applicant must have sought advice from 

the planning department before submitting the current application. 

 

viii) The applicant states that there are no trees and hedges on the application site or on adjoining land.  This 

is incorrect and the adjoining landowner (3 Well Street) has requested that the tree on the adjoining land be 

given protection under the Tree Preservation Order. 

 

ix) Traffic problems in the vicinity of the application site 

 

x) Drainage problems have occurred in the past   

 

xi) Part of the land that forms the application site is outside the applicants control and the adjoining property 

owner is in discussions with the Land Registry and Ordnance Survey company to correct the situation 

 

Other issues have been raised however these are not relevant as they are not material planning 

considerations. 

Page 75



 

In response to these comments I would state: 

 

i) The proposed dwelling will connect to the mains sewer for the disposal of foul waste and a soakaway is 

proposed for the surface water run-off.  The Drainage Section have requested further information however as 

stated above at the time of writing this report we are still awaiting receipt of additional drainage details. 

 

ii) This matter has been addressed under Section 6 – Main Planning Considerations below. 

 

iii) The application forms states that the site lies adjoining Dridwen, Lon Ffynnon, Bryngwran.  The location 

plan clearly illustrates that the site adjoins Dridwen and lies to the rear of 15 High Street, Bryngwran.  As the 

details of the owner of the private road are not known an advertisement has been published in the local 

paper by the applicant in order to serve notice of the proposed development.    

 

iv) An application was received on the site for two two-storey properties earlier this year and the applicant 

decided to withdraw the application as the local planning authority considered that the development was out 

of character with the surrounding area.   

 

An appeal on land at the rear of 17 High Street, which lies opposite the application site, was dismissed in 

January 1990 for the erection of dwelling which had a ridge height of 7 metres.  The application currently 

under consideration is for the erection of a single storey dwelling with a ridge height of 5 metres.  Therefore 

the current proposal is considered acceptable as it respects the scale and character of the surrounding 

properties.    

 

v) It is acknowledged that noise disturbance may occur to the occupants of neighbouring properties during 

the construction stage however this will only be a short-term disturbance.  

 

vi) The site lies within the settlement of Bryngwran where local and national polices support the development 

of land for residential properties within the settlement. 

 

vii) No pre-application advice has been sought prior to the submission of the application.  The applicant was 

advised during the course of determining the previous application (planning application reference 16C197) 

that that particular application could not be supported because the proposal was an overdevelopment of the 

site and out of character with the surrounding area and therefore decided to withdraw the application.  The 

applicant has employed the services of professional agents who are in a position to be able to provide 

professional planning advice on such matters.  

 

viii) The neighbouring site was visited by the Senior Landscape and Tree Officer who considered that the 

tree was not suitable to be protected by a Tree Preservation Order. 

 

ix) The proposal is for the erection of one additional dwelling and parking provision has been provided within 

the curtilage of the proposed dwelling.  The Highway Authority have been consulted and have raised no 

objection to the proposal subject to the inclusion of standard highway conditions. 

 

x) The Drainage Section have been consulted and at the time of writing this report confirmed that the 

proposed soakaway system appeared to be satisfactory, however requested supporting design calculations 

and dimensions to verify that the structure is at is correct effective depth.  At the time of writing this report we 

are still awaiting receipt of the requested information.  

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

16C197 – Full application for the demolition of the existing shed together with the erection of 2 new dwellings 

and creation of a new vehicular access on land adjacent to Dridwen, Bryngwran – Withdrawn 16/09/14 

 

Site history of adjoining land 

Page 76



 

16C42A – Erection of a dwelling on land at 17 High Street, Bryngwran – Refused 15/06/89 – Appeal 

dismissed 09/01/90 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Policy Context – Bryngwran is defined as a Listed Settlement under Policy 50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan 

and as a Village under Policy HP4 of the stopped Unitary Development Plan.  The site lies within the 

development boundary as defined under Policy HP4 of the stopped Unitary Development Plan.   

 

Policy 50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan states that planning permission will normally only be granted for single 

dwellings within or on the edge of a listed settlement.  As the site lies within the settlement of Bryngwran the 

erection of a single storey dwelling in this location is considered acceptable. 

 

Highway Safety – The Highway Authority has been consulted and has raised no objection to the proposal 

subject to the inclusion of standard highway conditions.  Issues have been raised that the applicant does not 

have a right of way over Well Street to enter the application site; however the correct procedure has been 

followed by the applicant by way of publishing a notice in the local press to inform any interested parties of 

the proposal.   

 

Effect on occupants of neighbouring properties – Concern has been raised by members of the public 

that the proposal may harm the amenities of neighbouring properties by loss of light as the proposed 

dwelling will be situated nearer to the existing properties and will be higher than the existing shed/garage 

that presently occupies the site.   Whilst it is acknowledged that the proposed dwelling will be higher and 

greater than the existing shed/garage the application site is adequate to provide the property with an amenity 

area and parking facilities without affecting the amenities of the occupants of the neighbouring properties to 

such a degree as to warrant the refusal of the application. 

 

The advice contained within the Supplementary Planning Guidance – Design Guide for the Urban and Rural 

Environment recommends that a distance of 15 metre separation is required between secondary aspects.  

The proposed scheme provides a distance of 13.8 metres between the rear of the proposed dwelling and the 

side aspect of the property at the rear known as Dridwen.  Although this does not fully comply with the 

guidance a 2metre high fence is proposed along the boundary between both properties which will ensure 

that the proposal will not harm the amenities currently enjoyed by the occupants of Dridwen. 

 

A distance of 4.8 metres is proposed between the side of the proposed dwelling and the side of the adjoining 

property known as 3 Well Street.  Although this falls below the recommended distance of 9 metres it is 

considered that as the proposed dwelling will be set 1.8 metres further away from 3 Well Street than the 

existing building on the site.  Also, no windows are proposed in the side elevation of the proposed dwelling, 

there are no windows in the side elevation of 3 Well Street with only a front door located within the side 

elevation and therefore the proposal will not detrimentally harm the amenities currently enjoyed by the 

occupants of the neighbouring property. 

 

The rear garden area and rear of the dwelling known as 15 High Street has no screening from the adjoining 

properties and adjoining road.  There is a distance of 6.8 metres between the side of the proposed dwelling 

and the rear of 15 High Street.  Although this falls short of the 9 metres recommended by 2.2 metres it is 

considered that as there are no windows in the side elevation of the proposed dwelling, and a boundary 

fence shall be erected between the properties, which will be at a height of 1 and 2 metres, and due to the 

fact that the dwelling is not presently screened from the public vista it is not considered that the proposal will 

harm the amenities currently enjoyed by the occupants of the dwelling.   

 

Although the proposal does not fully comply with the guidance contained within the document 

Supplementary Planning Guidance, due to the provision of screening between the existing properties and 

proposed dwelling and as there are not windows within the side elevation of the proposed unit the proposal 

will not have a detrimental impact on the amenities currently enjoyed by the occupants of the neighbouring 

Page 77



properties. 

 

It is considered that there is ample space within the site to accommodate the proposal without resulting in the 

over-development of the site to the detriment of the occupants of the surrounding properties or surrounding 

area. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The proposal complies with current local and national policies.  The site can accommodate the dwelling 

without resulting in the over-development of the site to the detriment of the surrounding properties and 

locality.  The proposal will not have an adverse effect on highway safety.  My recommendation is one of 

approval subject to satisfactory drainage information being received to illustrate that the site can be 

adequately drained. 

 

 8. Recommendation 

 

To permit the development subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) before the 

issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or go to the heart of 

the permission/ development. 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of 

five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) The car parking accommodation shall be completed in full accordance with the details as 

submitted before the use hereby permitted is commenced and thereafter retained solely for those 

purposes. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority.  

 

(03) Foul water and surface water discharges must be drained separately from the site. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 

 

(04) No surface water shall be allowed to connect either directly or indirectly to the public sewerage 

system unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and safety of 

existing residents and ensure no detriment to the environment. 

 

(05) Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge either directly or indirectly into the 

public sewerage system. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the environment. 

 

(06) The proposed development site is crossed by a public sewer with the approximate position 

being marked on the attached Public Sewer Record.  Under the Water Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru 

Welsh Water has rights of access to its apparatus at all times.  No development (including the raising 

or lowering of ground levels) will be permitted within 3 metres either side of the centreline of the 

public sewer.  

 

 

Page 78



Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewer and avoid damage thereto. 

 

(07) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict conformity with the details 

shown on the submitted plans and contained in the form of application and in any other documents 

accompanying such application, unless conditions of this permission stipulate otherwise.   

 

Reason: To ensure that the development is implemented in accord with the approved details 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 79



11.2 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     19C1140/CA/ENF     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Mr & Mrs Burns 

 

Cais llawn i ddymchwel yr annedd presennol ynghyd a chodi annedd newydd yn / Full 

application for the demolition of the existing dwelling togther with the erection of a 

replacement dwelling at 

   

4 and 5 Pentre Pella, Holyhead Mountain, Holyhead 

   

 

 
 

 

Page 80



 

Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

Report of Head of Planning Service (IWJ) 

 

Recommendation:  

 

Permit. 

 

Reason for Reporting to Committee:   

 

The application is submitted to the planning committee as the applicant is related to an elected 

member. 

 

1. Proposal and Site 

 

The application site is a mid-terrace property located within the designated Conservation Area of 

Pentre Pella, Holyhead. The application site is also within the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

 

The retrospective application is made for the part demolition of the existing dwelling together with the 

erection of a replacement dwelling. 

 

2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The key issues are whether the proposal is acceptable in terms of policy, the effect on the amenities 

of neighboring properties, and whether the design of the proposed dwelling preserves and enhances 

the designated Conservation Area and Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

 

3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

Policy 1 - General Policy 

Policy 30 – Landscape 

Policy 40 – Conservation of Buildings 

Policy 42 - Design 

Policy 54 – Replacement Dwellings 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy D4 – Location, Siting  and Design 

Policy D24 – Conservation Area 

Policy D25 – Conservation Area 

Policy D29 – Design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 - Development Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy EN2 – AONB 

Policy EN13 – Conservation of Buildings 

 

Technical Advice Note (Wales) 9: Enforcement of Planning Control 

 

 

Page 81



4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

 

Local Member (Cllr J Arwel Roberts) – Supportive of application 

 

Town Council – No objection 

 

Welsh Water – Standard comments. 

 

NRW – No objection 

 

Highways – Concerns initially raised concerning vehicle movement during the remainder of the 

construction work. However, recommended approval following agreeing a traffic management plan. 

 

Drainage – Requested greater detail of intended disposal of surface water. The agent therefore 

submitted additional plans detailing the method, which is now acceptable by the drainage department. 

 

The application was afforded three means of publicity; these were by the placing of a site notice near 

the site and the distribution of personal letters of notification to the owner / occupiers of properties in 

the immediate locality. An advert was also placed in the local newspaper. 

 

The publicly process was undertaken on two separate occasions. The initial publication was made at 

the time the application was received, while the second was made following the Local Planning 

Authority receiving an amended plan. 

At the time of writing this report no letters of representations were received at the department as a 

result of the publicity. 

 

5. Relevant Planning History  

 

19C1140 – Full application for the demolition of part of the dwelling together with alterations and 

extensions – Withdrawn 12/02/2015 

 

6. Main Planning Considerations 

 

The impact the development might have upon the residential amenity of neighbouring properties is a 

key issue in the determination of the current proposal. 

 

In addition, it is integral to consider whether or not the development would have an unacceptable 

effect upon the designated Conservation Area and AONB. 

 

It is considered that the curtilage of the application site can conformably accommodate the proposal 

which also in my mind provides a quality design which accords with policy, is balanced and in 

proportion with the vicinity in general. Indeed, the fact work had commenced assisted the Authority in 

assessing the potential impact which the proposal would have by providing a clear visual of the 

proposed floor space. The majority of the proposed floorspace is located in the same position as the 

original dwellinghouse along with additional floorspace towards the rear of the site. 

 

The proposed works both preserve and enhance the Conservation Area and AONB, it’s character and 

it’s appearance. In my opinion it provides a quality design which accords with policy, is balanced and 

in proportion with vicinity in general. It will also improve the quality of living for the occupiers and 

those who visit the property. 

 

Page 82



The siting, design, scale and materials of the proposed alterations are considered acceptable and it is 

not considered that the proposal will have an unacceptable effect on the amenities of the area or 

nearby residential properties. In arriving at this conclusion I am mindful of residential amenity as well 

as the character of the locality. 

 

7. Conclusion  

 

In this instance I have considered the substance of representations received from the applicant and 

agent together with the statutory consultees alike and have balanced these against the advice 

contained within the relevant policy documents.  

 

There are no other significant material consideration which are of relevance in the determination of 

the application presently under consideration which have not already been given due consideration. 

 

The current application was submitted following the withdrawal of planning application 19C1140. 

Substantial demolition work and associated development had been carried out which surpassed what 

the application entailed. 

 

The applicant claims that whilst undertaking improvement work to the existing building together with 

waterproofing adjoining neighbouring properties, it was evident that the existing lintels and walls had 

perished. This meant a significant part of the dwellinghouse could not be salvaged without re-

construction. 

 

The advice provided under para 9 within Technical Advice Note (Wales) 9: Enforcement of Planning 

Control on such matters states …. 

 

‘Where the Local Planning Authority’s assessment is that it is likely that unconditional planning 

permission would be granted for development which has already taken place, the correct approach is 

to suggest to the person responsible for the unauthorized development that they should promptly 

submit a retrospective application for planning permission.’ 

 

Whether or not the unauthorised development was carried out intentionally or not is a moot point. In 

any event it is not a criminal offence to carry out development without first obtaining any necessary 

planning permission. There are provisions within the Act to allow for permission to be applied for 

retrospectively. 

 

It is not considered expedient nor in the wider 

public interest for the Local Planning Authority to take formal planning enforcement action in this case 

irrespective of the motive, whether intentional or otherwise. 

 

Whilst any development could be argued to have a potential impact upon the amenities of 

neighbouring properties or the character of the locality, the question which needs to ask is whether or 

not the impact is so adverse that it warrants refusing the application. On balance however I do not 

consider the unauthorised development is so adverse that it should warrant refusing the application. 

Moreover, I do not consider that any refusal issued could be substantiated on appeal. 

 

The application presently under consideration has been considered in light of the advice provided 

within Technical Advice Note (Wales) 9: Enforcement of Planning Control together with all other 

material planning considerations. In accordance with the advice contained with the aforementioned 

document …. 

 

‘Enforcement action should be commensurate with the breach of planning control to which it relates; it 

Page 83



is usually inappropriate to take formal action against a trivial or technical breach of control which 

causes no harm to public amenity. The intention should be to remedy the effect of the breach of 

planning control, not to punish the person(s) carrying out the breach. Nor should enforcement action 

be taken simply to regularise development for which permission had not been sought, but otherwise 

acceptable’ 

 

On balance therefore, having given detailed consideration to all correspondence received, together 

with all other material planning considerations, I consider that the application should be approved. 

 

8. Recommendation  

 

To permit the development subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorized to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 

before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 

go to the heart of the permission/development. 

 

(01) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 

the plan(s) submitted on the 24/03/2015 and traffic management plan submitted on the 

23/03/2015 under planning application reference 19C1140/CA/ENF. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

 

(02) Details of all external window paint colours shall be submitted and agreed in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority within 3 months from the date of this decision.  

 

Reason: To ensure that the finished development is satisfactory from an architectural point of view 

bearing in mind the fact that the above property is included within a designated Conservation Area. 

 

(03) Details of a one square metre of the proposed painted render shall be submitted and 

agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority within 3 months from the date of this 

decision. 

 

Reason: To ensure that the finished development is satisfactory from an architectural point of view 

bearing in mind the fact that the above property is included within a designated Conservation Area. 

 

9. Other Relevant Policies  

 

SPG: Design in the Urban and Rural Built Environment 

 

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 7) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 84



11.3  Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     23C323     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Mrs Wendy Williams 

 

Cais llawn ar gyfer addasu ac ehangu yn / Full application for alterations and extensions at  

   

1 Penbonc, Talwrn 

   

 

 
 

 

 

Page 85



 

Planning Committee: 13/04/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (GJ) 

 

 Recommendation:   

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is being reported to the committee because the applicant is a close friend to an 

employee of the Planning Department. 

 

The application has been scrutinised by the Monitoring Officer as required under paragraph 4.6.19.4 

of the Constitution. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The application is for alterations and extensions at 1 Penbonc, Talwrn. 

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The applications key issues are whether the proposal complies with all relevant plan policies and 

whether the work fits in with the surrounding area without causing any impact on any adjoining 

properties. 

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 31 - Landscape 

Policy 42 - Design 

Policy 58 - Extensions 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

 Policy D3 – Environment 

Policy D4 – Environment 

Policy D29 – Design 

Policy D25 – Environment 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy EN1 – Landscape Character 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Community Council – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Local Member (Bob Parry) – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Page 86



Local Member (Nicola Roberts) – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Local Member  (Dylan Rees) – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Drainage – Standard comments 

 

Welsh Water – Comments – The applicants should contact Welsh Water as some public sewers and 

lateral drains may not be recorded on their maps. 

 

Natural Resources Wales – Standard Advice 

 

A site notice was placed near the site and neighbouring properties were notified by letter.  The expiry 

date for receiving representations was the 21/04/2015.  At the time of writing the report no letters 

were received. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

None 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Key Issue 

 

The key issues which need to be considered are the design and effect on neighbouring properties. 

 

Site and Proposal 

 

The dwelling is an end of terrace property known as 1 Penbonc, Talwrn.  To the East of the property 

is a garden area to the property and to the South West are garden areas to other properties on the 

terrace. 

 

The proposal involves the following:- 

 

Porch to the rear - The erection of a small pitched roof porch to the rear measuring 1.8 metres long x 

1.4 metres wide x 3.5 metres high.  The materials of the porch will match that of the existing dwelling. 

 

Extension to the front – The erection of a 2 storey extension to the front of the site measuring 4 

metres long x 3.2 metres wide x 6.4 metres high.  The height of the extension is lower than that of the 

original dwelling and materials will match that of the existing dwelling.   

 

Effect on neighbouring properties.  

 

It is not considered that the proposal will have a negative impact on any of the neighbouring 

properties.  

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The site can comfortably accommodate the proposal without appearing cramped or over developing 

the site to the detriment of the character of the locality or the amenities of the neighbouring properties.  

The proposal complies with the Supplementary Planning Guidance on Design Guide for the Urban & 

Rural Environment, Technical Advice Note 12: Design, Paragraph 4.11 Promoting sustainability 

through good design, Planning Policy Guidance (Wales) Edition 7 and policies contained within the 

Page 87



Ynys Mon Local Plan and Stopped Unitary Development Plan. 

 

 8. Recommendation 

 

To permit the development subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 

before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 

go to the heart of the permission/ development. 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the 

expiration of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

  

(02) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 

the plan(s) submitted on the 23/03/2015, under planning application reference 23C323. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

 

 9. Other Relevant Policies  

 

Technical Advice Note 12: Design 

 

Planning Policy Wales 7
th

 Edition  

 

 

 

Page 88



11.4 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     33C258C/RUR     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Mr Owen 

 

Cais llawn i godi annedd amaethyddol, creu mynedfa i gerbydau ynghyd a gosod tanc septic ar dir yn 

/ Full application for the erection of an agricultural dwelling, construction of a vehicular access 

together with the installation of a septic tank on land at 

   

Cefn Poeth, Llangefni 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (NJ) 

 

 Recommendation:   

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is reported to the committee as the applicant is related to a relevant staff member as set out 

in the Council’s Constitution.  The Monitoring Officer has reviewed the file and raises no concerns. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The application is a full application for the erection of a dwelling to house an agricultural worker together with 
the installation of a septic tank. 
 
The dwelling is proposed in a corner of a field enclosure currently used for grazing.  The field is separated 
from the farm access track (which is also a public footpath) by a post and wire fence.  The site is elevated 
above the existing farmstead but is a flat portion of the field – the field falls away sharply to the west.  It is 
partly screened by a belt of mature pine trees.  
 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

 Principle of the development 

 Landscape and Visual Impact 
 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy A6 : Housing in the Countryside 

Policy D4 : Location, siting and design 

Policy D29: Standard of design 

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

Policy 1 : General Policy 

Policy 31 : Landscape 

Policy 42 : Design 

Policy 48 : Housing Development Criteria 

Policy 53 : Housing in the Countryside 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 : Development Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 : Design 

Policy HP6 : Dwellings in the open countryside 

 

Relevant National or Local Policy 

 

Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 

TAN 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (2010)  

TAN 12: Design (2009) 

Practice Guidance Rural Enterprise Dwellings 

 

 

 

Page 90

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/planning/policy/tans/tan6/?lang=en


 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Local Members: No response at the time of writing 

 

Community Council: No comments 

 

Highways: Footpath adjacent to the proposed development and alignment should not be interfered with. 

Comments in relation to occupancy of the dwelling and visibility splays 

 

Welsh Water: Comments in relation to private sewerage provision 

 

Drainage: Comments in relation to disposal of surface water and the provision of a septic tank 

 

Response to Publicity 

 

No representations have been received as a result of the publicity undertaken. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

33C258 Application to determine whether prior approval is required to erect an agricultural shed for the 

housing of sheep at Cefn Poeth, Penmynydd – permitted development 27/2/07. 

 

33C258A Application to determine whether prior approval is required for an extension to the agricultural shed 

for the housing of animals at Cefn Poeth, Penmynydd – permitted development 24/10/12. 

 

33C258B/RUR Outline application for the erection of an agricultural dwelling, alterations to the vehicular 

access together with the installation of a septic tank on land at Cefn Poeth, Penmynydd Approved 6/10/14. 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Principle of development 
 
Development Plan policies and national planning polices supported by technical advice allow the 
development of dwellings where they are required to support rural enterprises such as farms and where the 
strict policy tests are met.  The application is supported by an agricultural dwelling appraisal.  This has been 
reviewed by the Council’s agricultural consultants and is considered to demonstrate a need for the dwelling 
to support the farming enterprise in accordance with policy requirements. 
 
A previous application was approved in outline for a single dwelling measuring 9.5m x 10.5m on plan and a 
maximum of 7.5m to ridge.  A full application was submitted as the proposed dwelling measured 16m by 10m 
on plan approximately and 7m to ridge. Concerns were raised regarding the need for a dwelling of this size in 
relation to the standard TAN 6 tests as the property is to house a third worker on the farm.  The scheme has 
since been amended twice in order to reduce the overall dimensions of the dwelling to comply with policy 
tests.  The proposed dwelling now measures 13m x 9m on plan approximately with a ridge height of 7m.  
 
Landscape and Visual Impact 

 

The site is set on part of a ridge overlooking Llangefni.  It would not be visible on the B5420 approach to 

Llangefni from Penmynydd but would be more prominent in the reverse view.  However, in these longer 

distance views, the plot would form a cluster with the existing farm dwelling and outbuildings and would be 

partially screened by an existing belt of pine trees. However, the view of the proposal from the public 

footpath which skirts the site would be impossible to screen in its entirety.  In order to minimise the visual and 

landscape impact of the proposal it is considered that the dwelling should be limited to a single storey design 

and that a landscaping condition be attached to reduce its overall impact. 

  

Other Issues 

 

Page 91



The dwelling is supported in policy terms as it is required to facilitate the continuing successful farming 

operation at Cefn Poeth.  As well as a condition restricting occupancy of the dwelling to a rural enterprise 

worker as required under national planning policy, a deed of variation in relation to the previous S106 

agreement is also required to tie the existing and new dwelling to the farm in order that piecemeal dispersal 

of assets does not render the enterprise operationally and financially defunct. 

 

The Highway Authority has suggested a condition requiring the improvement of the access in both directions 

but land to the east is not in the applicant’s ownership. The proposed occupant of the farm dwelling resides 

off site at present and travels to and from the farm on a daily basis.  Occupying a dwelling on site would 

reduce travelling and it is not proposed to add the condition.   

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The proposal meets national and local planning policy tests for the need for the dwelling to support a rural 

enterprise.  Landscape impacts can be ameliorated. 

 

 8. Recommendation 

 

To permit the development subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) before the 

issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or go to the heart of 

the permission/ development. 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of 

five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) Natural slates of uniform colour shall be used as the roofing material of the proposed 

building(s). 

 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development. 

 

(03) No development shall commence until a landscaping scheme has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The landscaping scheme shall include a scheme 

for screening the boundaries of the plot together with a timetable for planting and a maintenance and 

management plan to include for replacement of any plants that die or become seriously damaged or 

diseased within the first 5 years after planting, together with a management and maintenance plan 

for retention of the pine trees indicated in the hatched area on Cadnant Planning Location plan 

drawing submitted under application 33C258B/RUR on 4/4/13. The development shall thereafter 

proceed in accordance with the approved scheme unless the local planning authority gives its prior 

written consent to any variation. 

 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development. 

 

(04) The occupancy of the dwelling shall be restricted to those: 

a. solely or mainly working or last working on a rural enterprise in the locality where there is/was 

a defined functional need; or if it can be demonstrated that there are no such eligible occupiers, to 

those; 

b. who would be eligible for consideration for affordable housing under the local authority’s housing 

policies: or if it can be demonstrated that there are no persons eligible for occupation under either 

(a) and (b); 

c. widows, widowers or civil partners of the above and any resident dependants. 

 

Page 92



Reasons: To define the scope of this permission and to ensure that the development remains in the best 

interests of the rural economy. 

Page 93



11.5 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     36C338     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Mr. Steven W. Owen 

 

Cais amlinellol ar gyfer codi annedd gyda'r holl faterion wedi'u cadw'n ôl ar dir gyferbyn a / 

Outline application for the erection of a dwelling with all matters reserved on land opposite to  

   

Ysgol Henblas, Llangristiolus 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 94



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

Report of Head of Service (SCR) 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Permit 

 

Reason for Reporting to Committee: 

 

The applicant works within the Planning and Public Protection Department of the County Council.  

 

The application has been scrutinised by the Monitoring Officer as required under paragraph 4.6.10.4 

of the Constitution. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The site is situated within the settlement of Llangristiolus on a parcel of land directly opposite the local 

primary school and lies on land next to a detached two storey dwelling which was constructed during 

2010 and is known as ‘Ty Newydd’.  Access to the site is afforded off the B4422 onto a Class III 

highway which serves as the main route through the settlement.  The surrounding properties are a 

mix of single and two storey units.   

 

The application is an outline application for the erection of a detached two storey dwelling.  The 

existing access is to be utilised for the proposed dwelling.    

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The applications main issues are whether the proposal complies with current policies and whether the 

proposal will affect the amenities of the surrounding properties. 

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Môn Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 42 – Design 

Policy 48 – Housing Development Criteria 

Policy 50 – Listed Settlement 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

D4 – Location, Siting and Design 

D29 – Design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance  

Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy HP4 – Villages 

 

Planning Policy Wales, 2014, 7
th

 Edition 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance – Design Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment 

 

Page 95



 

Technical Advice Note 12 – Design 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Community Council – No response to date 

 

Local Member, Cllr V Hughes – Call-in and requested that members visit the site. 

 

Local Member, Cllr H E Jones – No response to date  

 

Highways Authority – Recommended conditional approval 

 

Drainage Section – Requested additional information.  At the time of writing this report the additional 

information had not been received at the department. 

 

Welsh Water – Recommended conditional approval 

 

Response from members of the public  

 

The proposal was advertised through the posting of a notice on site together with the distribution of 

personal letters of notification to the occupiers of neighbouring properties.  The latest date for the 

receipt of representations was the 5
th
 May, 2015 and at the time of writing this report two letters of 

representation had been received at the department, being one in support and one objecting to the 

proposal.  The mains issues raised opposing the application can be summarised as follows -  

 

i) Outside development boundary of the old and new development plans 

 

ii) Objected to another application near the current application site as the fields are wet at the rear of 

the proposed site. 

 

iii) My application (reference 36C100C) was refused in the past as the proposal was considered to be 

a ‘tandem development’ and therefore this application should be the same in order to keep 

consistency. 

 

iv) Too close to the adjoining properties and will affect their privacy and amenities. 

 

v) Llangristiolus has changed in the past few years with modern buildings affecting the character of 

the old Llangristiolus. 

 

In response to these comments I would state: 

 

i) Llangristiolus is defined as a Listed Settlement under policy 50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan and as a 

village under Policy HP4 of the stopped UDP.   

Single plot applications within or on the edge of a settlement are considered acceptable under Policy 

50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan. The erection of a dwelling on this site is considered acceptable as the 

site lies close to the neighbouring properties and lies on agricultural land where part of the field has 

previously benefitted from residential development. 

 

ii) A copy of the writer’s letter has been forwarded to the Drainage Section for comments.  At the time 

of writing this report we are still awaiting receipt of further drainage details. Due to the scale of the 

development and the distances between the proposed dwelling and neighbouring land I do not 

Page 96



consider that the proposal would result in flooding to the surrounding area.  

 

iii) Each application is considered on its own merits; however the application the correspondent is 

referring to was to be situated to the rear of an existing dwelling and was to share the same vehicular 

access.  The application currently under consideration will be afforded its own access and is not 

situated immediately to the rear of an adjoining property and therefore the proposal is not considered 

to be a ‘tandem development’. 

 

Iv) Although the application is in outline form with all matters reserved for future consideration, an 

‘illustrative’ site plan has been submitted as part of the application which shows that the dwelling will 

be situated more than 40 metres away from the rear of Caeau Bychain, 20 metres away from the rear 

of Rhoslan and 20 metres away from the rear of the recently constructed dwelling known as ‘Ty 

Newydd’.  Shop Sharpe which lies at the front of the site is located more than 30 metres away from 

the front of the proposed dwelling. Due to these distances and careful consideration during the design 

stage it is not considered that the proposal will harm the amenities currently enjoyed by the occupants 

of the neighbouring properties to such a degree as to warrant the refusal of the application. 

 

v) A number of new, modern properties have been constructed in the village in recent years however 

these have not harmed the appearance of the area as there is no distinct pattern of development in 

the locality.  

 

One letter has also been received in support of the proposal and has raised the following issues in 

support of the development: 

 

i) Infill development 

 

ii) Proposal will enhance the appearance of the area. 

 

iii) The village is thriving with an excellent primary school, located close to the A55, bus route to 

Bangor and Llangefni with good pedestrian links and cycle routes. 

 

v) Located within the village boundary and many people who have been raised in the village wish to 

remain here. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

None. 

 

Site history of adjoining land 

 

36C283 - Outline application for the erection of a dwelling together with demolition of the existing 

building on part of O.S enclosure number 9665 adjacent to Ael y Bryn, Llangristiolus – Approved 

25/11/08 

 

36C283A – Full application for the erection of a dwelling, construction of a vehicular access together 

with the demolition of the ‘nissen’ hut on part of OS enclosure 9665 adjacent to Ael y Bryn, 

Llangristiolus – Approved 15/05/2009 

 

36C283B – Alterations to the access previously approved under planning permission no. 36C283A 

adjacent to Ael y Bryn, Llangristiolus – Approved 04/08/2010 

 

 

Page 97



 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Policy – Llangristiolus is defined as a Listed Settlement under policy 50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan 

and as a village under Policy HP4 of the stopped UDP.   

 

Single plot applications within or on the edge of a settlement are considered acceptable under Policy 

50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan. The erection of a dwelling on this site is considered acceptable as the 

site lies close to the adjoining properties.   

 

Policy HP4 of the stopped Unitary Development Plan states that residential development within the 

village boundary will be permitted subject to the listed criteria.  The application site lies outside the 

development boundary of Llangristiolus as defined under Policy HP4 of the stopped Unitary 

Development Plan.   

 

Although the site lies outside the development boundary of the village as defined under Policy HP4 of 

the stopped Unitary Development Plan the proposal is for a single dwelling only and therefore greater 

weight is placed on Policy 50 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan. The proposal is considered as an 

acceptable ‘infill’ development.    

 

Affect on amenities of surrounding properties -  

As stated above in the publicity section the proposal will not harm the amenities of the occupants of 

neighbouring properties due to the distances between the proposal and existing properties.  There is 

ample space within the site to accommodate the dwelling without resulting in the over-development of 

the site to the detriment of the locality and surrounding properties.  Careful consideration during its 

design stage will ensure that no overlooking / loss of privacy will occur to the occupants of the existing 

and proposed dwelling.   

 

 7. Conclusion 

 

The proposal is considered as an acceptable ‘infill’ development which complies with Policy 50 of the 

Ynys Môn Local Plan.  The proposal will not harm the amenities currently enjoyed by the occupants of 

neighbouring properties.  My recommendation is one of approval subject to the receipt of acceptable 

drainage details. 

 

 8. Recommendation 

 

To permit the development subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 

before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 

go to the heart of the permission/ development. 

 

(01) The approval of the Council shall be obtained before any development is commenced to 

the following reserved matters viz. the scale, appearance of the building and the landscaping 

of the site.  

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) Application for approval of the reserved matters hereinbefore referred to shall be made 

not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

Page 98



 

(03) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than whichever 

is the later of the following dates namely: - (a) the expiration of five years from the date of this 

permission or (b) the expiration of two years from the final approval of the said reserved 

matters or in the case of approval on different dates the final approval of the last such matter 

to be approved. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(04) Natural slates of uniform colour shall be used as the roofing material of the proposed 

building(s). 

 

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. 

 

(05) Full details of all fencing, walling or other means of enclosure or demarcation shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority before any work on the 

site is commenced. 

 

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. 

 

(06) Full details of the existing and proposed ground levels and finished floor levels shall be 

submitted as part of any full or detailed application. 

 

Reason : In the interests of amenity 

 

(07) Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge either directly or indirectly into 

the public sewerage system. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the 

environment. 

 

(08) No surface water shall be allowed to connect either directly or indirectly to the public 

sewerage system unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and 

safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the environment. 

 

 

(09) Foul water and surface water discharges must be drained seperately from the site. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 

 

(10) No surface water from within the curtilage of the site to discharge onto the county 

Highway.  No development shall commence until full design details for the drainage of the site 

have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be 

occupied until the approved scheme has been implemented in full and to the written 

satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority. 

 

(11) The car parking accommodation shall be completed in full accordance with the details as 

submitted before the use hereby permitted is commenced and thereafter retained solely for 

Page 99



those purposes. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority. 

 

(12) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 

the plans, sections and elevations required to be approved by the local planning authority 

under the conditions imposed. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

 

 

 

 

Page 100



11.6  Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     48C182A/DA     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Miss Llio Angharad Thomas 

 

Cais i gymeradwyo materion a gadwyd yn ôl ar gyfer codi annedd ar dir ger / Application for 

approval of reserved matters for the erection of a dwelling on land adjacent to  

   

2 Bryn Twrog, Gwalchmai 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 101



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (NJ) 

 

 Recommendation:   

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The applicant is related to a relevant officer.  The application has been scrutinised by the Monitoring 

Officer. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The application made is for approval of reserved matters following the granting of outline planning 

consent.  

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

Planning consent was granted for an affordable dwelling.  The reserved matters are considered in the 

light of the consent as granted as well as in terms of their impact on amenities. 

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Môn Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 26 – Parking Standards 

Policy 42 – Design 

Policy 48 – Housing Development Criteria 

Policy 49 – Defined Settlement 

Policy 52 – Exception Sites 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy A8 – Affordable Housing 

Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design 

Policy D29 - Design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy HP3 – Main and Secondary Centres 

 

Policy HP7 – Affordable Housing 

 

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 7) 

 

TAN 2: Planning and Affordable Housing 

TAN 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities 

 

 

 

Page 102



 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Drainage Section: Comments, details are satisfactory in principle 

 

Highways: Suggested conditions 

 

Welsh Water: No comments as the developer proposes to use private drainage facilities 

 

No response had been received from the Local Members or the Community Council at the time of 

writing. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

48C182: Outline application for the erection of an affordable dwelling, construction of a vehicular 

access together with the installation of a treatment plant on land adjacent to Bryn Twrog, Gwalchmai 

– approved 18/3/14 S106 affordable dwelling. 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

The site has the benefit of an outline planning permission for the erection of an affordable dwelling.  In 

considering the outline consent a test of affordability was undertaken which indicated the maximum 

dwelling size which could be realistically achieved by the applicant and which would ensure that the 

resultant dwelling would remain affordable in perpetuity.  The reserved matters submission has been 

designed to achieve these requirements. 

 

In terms of the aesthetics, the scheme is designed as a modest two bedroom two storey dwelling of 

traditional pitched roof design with contemporary elements in the glazing design.  Finishing materials 

comprise a natural slate roof with smooth render and a natural stonework feature wall. The site sits 

alongside a pair of traditional cottages but is set lower in terms of ground levels.  There is sufficient 

separation between the plot and the existing dwellings to ensure privacy is maintained. A boundary 

fence is proposed between the plot and the adjoining dwelling to maintain this privacy.  Stone walls 

are proposed to the roadside boundary along the realigned access visibility splays to maintain the 

character and appearance of the lane.  

 

The Highway Authority and Drainage Section have suggested conditions which are already included 

on the outline planning consent.   

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The scheme is a modest design which incorporates traditional elements which reflect the style and 

design of dwellings in the locality. 

 

 8. Recommendation 

 

To permit the proposal subject to the following conditions: 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 

before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 

go to the heart of the permission/ development. 

 

(01) The car parking and turning areas shall be completed in accordance with the details 

hereby approved before the use hereby permitted is commenced and shall thereafter be 

Page 103



retained solely for those purposes. 

 

Reason: To ensure that vehicles can park and turn clear of the highway in the interests of road safety. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 104



12.1 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     12C266P/FR     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Mr Ben Brown 

 

Cais llawn ar gyfer codi is-orsaf yn/Full application for the erection of a new substation at 

   

Gallows Point, Beaumaris 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 105

Agenda Item 12



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (GJ) 

 

 Recommendation:  

 

Permit. 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is being presented to the Committee as the land is owned by the Council. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

Full application for the erection of a substation at Gallows Point, Beaumaris. 

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The key issue is whether the proposal complies with policies, has any impact on the Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 30 – Landscape 

Policy 36 – Coastal Development 

Policy 42 – Design 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy A2 – Location and Housing Land 

Policy D4 – Siting and Design  

Policy D5 – Location, siting and design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy EN2 – Landscape Character 

Policy EN9 – Development Near Wetlands, Water Courses and Shorelines 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Town Council – Approval recommended 

 

Local Member (Lewis Davies) – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Local Member (Carwyn Jones) – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Local Member (Alwyn Rowlands) – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Natural Resources Wales – Have confirmed that the site is within the C2 Flood Zone.  However due 

to the nature of the application is wasn’t considered that a Flood Consequence Assessment was 

Page 106



required. 

 

Welsh Water – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Drainage – No response at the time of writing the report 

  

A site notice was placed near the site and neighbouring properties were notified by letter.  The expiry 

date for receiving representations was the 21/04/2015. At the time of writing the report no letters were 

received. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

12C266- Construction of a marina and facilities building together with car park and boat storage area 

on an area to the south west of Gallows Point, Beaumaris – Allowed 9/1/03- Section 106 21/10/02 

 

12C266A - Variation of condition (01) of planning permission 12C266 to allow a further 2 years to 

commence the development at Gallows Point, Beaumaris – Undetermined 

 

12C266B - Variation of condition (01) of planning permission 12C266 to allow a further 3 years to 

commence the development at Gallows Point, Beaumaris – Undetermined 

 

12C266C - Demolition of existing boat sheds and erection of new boat sheds, together with 

alterations and extensions to the petrol filling station shop and fishing tackle shop at ABC 

Powermarine Gallows Point, Beaumaris – Approved 18/04/2011 

 

12C266D - Demolition of existing boat sheds and erection of new boat sheds, together with 

alterations and extensions to the petrol filling station shop and fishing tackle shop and installation of a 

treatment plant at Gallows Point, Beaumaris – Approved 18/04/2011 

 

12C266E/SCR - Screening Opinion for the demolition of existing boat sheds and erection of new boat 

sheds, together with alterations and extensions to the petrol filling station shop and fishing tackle shop 

and installation of a treatment plant at Gallows Point, Beaumaris – EIA Not Required 05/03/2010 

 

12C266F- Re-location of existing boundary fence to form an extension to the existing secure 

compound at Gallows Point, Beaumaris - Approved 28/07/2011 

 

12C266G - Demolition of units 7 to 10 and the erection of 4 sheds in place, alterations to existing 

building together with the construction of an amenity block Gallows Point, Beaumaris – Approved 

27/07/2012  

 

12C266H - Application for the variation of conditions (04) and (06) on planning permission reference 

12C266G to allow for the details of the proposed slab levels of the building(s) and a scheme for the 

provision and implementation of surface water drainage to be submitted following commencement of 

works on site at ABC Powermarine, Gallows Point, Beaumaris – Approved  04/04/2013 

 

12C266J - Application for the variation of conditions 2, 6, 7, 8, 10 and 12 on planning permission 

12C266D at Gallows Point, Beaumaris -  Withdrawn 18/03/2013 

 

12C266K - Retrospective planning application for alterations to the roof design and general 

amendments to units 2 to 5 at ABC Powermarine, Gallows Point, Beaumaris – No decision to date  

 

12C266M/AD - Erection of 3 non illuminated fascia signs at  Gallows Point, Beaumaris – Approved 

Page 107



23/07/13 

 

12C266N/FR - Full application for the erection of an amenity block at Gallows Point, Beaumaris – 

Approved 14/10/13  

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

The application is for the erection of a new 11KV electrical substation at Gallows Point, Beaumaris 

 

The substation is required for an upgrade to supply the Gallows Point as the current substation is not 

up to standards.  It will house the appropriate equipment to transform the high voltage electricity to 

low voltage local supplies.  The substation is to be installed in front of the existing substation building 

which is to be disused on completion of the proposed substation.  The substation will measure 3 

metres wide x 2.45 metre depth x 2.5 metre high. 

 

The application site is located within an existing boat yard. To the North West of the application site is 

a petrol filling station and to the North East and South East is a number of smaller buildings relating to 

the operation of the boat yard. 

 

C2 Flood Zone 

 

The site is within the C2 Flood Zone, however Natural Resources Wales have confirmed due to the 

size of the building a Flood Consequence Assessment is not required. 

 

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

 

It is not considered that the proposal will have a negative impact on the Area of Outstanding Natural 

Beauty.  The small building will be sited amongst other larger buildings on the site. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The substation is a small building which will be located next to the existing substation.  It is located 

within an existing boatyard which is screened by other industrial buildings.  The substation will not be 

visible from the highway or from the Coast.   It is not considered that the proposal will have an impact 

on the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

 

 8. Recommendation 

 

To permit the development subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend any condition(s) before the 

issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or go to the 

heart of the permission/ development. 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the 

expiration of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 

the plan(s) submitted on the 26/03/2015 under planning application reference 12C266P/FR 

 

Page 108



Reason: For the avoidance of doubt 

 

 9. Other Relevant Policies  

 

Technical Advice Note 12: Design 

 

Technical Advice Note 15: Flooding 

 

Planning Policy Wales 7
th

 Edition  

 

 

 

Page 109



12.2 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     12C266Q/FR     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

ABC Power Marine 

 

Cais llawn ar gyfer addasu'r fynedfa presennol, ynghyd a chreu man parcio yn / Full application for 

alterations to the existing access, together with the construction of a new parking area at 

   

ABC Power Marine, Beaumaris 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 110



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (GJ) 

 

 Recommendation:   

 

Permit. 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is being presented to the Committee as the land is owned by the Council. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

Full application for alterations to the existing access, together with the construction of a new parking area at 

ABC Power Marine, Gallows Point, Beaumaris. 

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The key issue is whether the proposal complies with policies, has any impact on the Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty and highway safety. 

 

3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 26 – Car Parking 

Policy 30 – Landscape 

Policy 36 – Coastal Development 

Policy 42 – Design 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy D4 – Siting and Design  

Policy D5 – Location, siting and design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy EN2 – Landscape Character 

Policy EN9 – Development Near Wetlands, Water Courses and Shorelines 

Policy TR10 – Parking Standards 

Policy HP5 – Countryside Hamlets and Clusters 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Town Council – Concerns raised on the impact of the development on the AONB, Conservation Area and 

the obstruction it may cause to the visibility and road safety. 

 

Local Member (Lewis Davies) – Concerns raised that the access is substandard and the access is 

dangerous 

 

Local Member (Carwyn Jones) – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Local Member  (Alwyn Rowlands) – No response at the time of writing the report 

Page 111



 

Drainage – Comments 

 

Welsh Water – No concerns raised  

 

Highways – Support 

 

Natural Resources Wales – Have confirmed that the site is within the C2 Flood Zone.  The applicant has 

provided a limited flood consequence assessment and Natural Resources Wales are satisfied with the report 

submitted. 

 

A site notice was placed near the site and neighbouring properties were notified by letter.  The expiry date for 

receiving representations was the 09/04/2015.  At the time of writing the report no letters were received. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

12C266 - Construction of a marina and facilities building together with car park and boat storage area on an 

area to the south west of Gallows Point, Beaumaris – Allowed 9/1/03 - Section 106 21/10/02 

 

12C266A - Variation of condition (01) of planning permission 12C266 to allow a further 2 years to commence 

the development at Gallows Point, Beaumaris – Undetermined 

 

12C266B - Variation of condition (01) of planning permission 12C266 to allow a further 3 years to commence 

the development at Gallows Point, Beaumaris – Undetermined 

 

12C266C - Demolition of existing boat sheds and erection of new boat sheds, together with alterations and 

extensions to the petrol filling station shop and fishing tackle shop at ABC Powermarine Gallows Point, 

Beaumaris – Approved - 18/04/2011 

 

12C266D - Demolition of existing boat sheds and erection of new boat sheds, together with alterations and 

extensions to the petrol filling station shop and fishing tackle shop and installation of a treatment plant at 

Gallows Point, Beaumaris – Approved - 18/04/2011 

 

12C266E/SCR - Screening Opinion for the demolition of existing boat sheds and erection of new boat sheds, 

together with alterations and extensions to the petrol filling station shop and fishing tackle shop and 

installation of a treatment plant at Gallows Point, Beaumaris – EIA Not Required 05/03/2010 

 

12C266F - Re-location of existing boundary fence to form an extension to the existing secure compound at 

Gallows Point, Beaumaris Approved -  28/07/2011 

 

12C266G - Demolition of units 7 to 10 and the erection of 4 sheds in place, alterations to existing building 

together with the construction of an amenity block Gallows Point, Beaumaris Approved -  27/07/2012  

 

12C266H - Application for the variation of conditions (04) and (06) on planning permission reference 

12C266G to allow for the details of the proposed slab levels of the building(s) and a scheme for the provision 

and implementation of surface water drainage to be submitted following commencement of works on site at 

ABC Powermarine, Gallows Point, Beaumaris - Approved - 04/04/2013 

 

12C266J - Application for the variation of conditions 2, 6, 7, 8, 10 and 12 on planning permission 12C266D 

at Gallows Point, Beaumaris  Withdrawn -  18/03/2013 

 

12C266K - Retrospective planning application for alterations to the roof design and general amendments to 

units 2 to 5 at ABC Powermarine Gallows Point, Beaumaris No decision to date. 

 

12C266M/AD - Erection of 3 non illuminated fascia signs at  Gallows Point, Beaumaris – Approved 23/07/13 

Page 112



 

12C266N/FR - Full application for the erection of an amenity block at Gallows Point, Beaumaris Approved – 

14/10/13 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

The application is for alterations to the existing access, together with the construction of a new parking area 

at ABC Power Marine, Beaumaris. 

 

The site lies to the South of the A545 approximately 1 km to the West of Beaumaris at Gallows Point.   

 

The applicant has stated that the angle of the existing eastern entrance causes visibility problems for 

vehicles leaving the site via this entrance.  Vehicles leaving in both directions present to the road at an angle 

whereby the inter-visibility with other vehicles travelling along the road from the Menai Bridge direction can 

be obscured, leading to potential road safety issues.  Problems are also experienced where larger vehicles 

departing towards Menai Bridge have to cross into the opposite lane of the main carriageway to affect their 

turn out of the site; again causing road safety issues. 

 

Parking facilities along the site frontage at Gallows Point are quite informal and have developed over time, 

on an ad hoc basis.  Accordingly, there is little in the way of strategy for users of the site and separation 

between vehicle manovering areas parking spaces is poor. 

 

The proposal will enhance the current situation on the site and it will improve the legibility between 

commercial occupiers and users of the site and visiting members of the public.  The external works serving 

the site and, specifically, the access/egress arrangements have not been improved for many years.  The 

works will enhance the development physically, aesthetically and, most importantly, from a highway safety 

perspective. 

 

C2 Flood Zone 

 

The site is within the C2 Flood Zone.  Natural Resources Wales requested a Flood Consequence 

Assessment.  The applicant has provided a limited Flood Consequence Assessment and NRW have 

confirmed that they are satisfied with the development. 

 

Drainage 

 

The Drainage Section have confirmed that the details submitted with the application is acceptable. 

 

Highways 

 

The Highways Department have confirmed that the proposal is acceptable. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The proposal will improve the current access and car parking arrangements on site. 

 

 8. Recommendation 

 

To permit the development subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend any condition(s) before the issuing 

of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or go to the heart of the 

permission/ development. 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of 

Page 113



five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the 

plan(s) submitted on the 10/03/15 and 10/04/15 under planning application reference 12C266Q/FR 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt 

 

 9. Other Relevant Policies  

 

Technical Advice Note 12: Design 

 

Technical Advice Note 15: Flooding 

 

Planning Policy Wales 7
th

 Edition  

Page 114



12.3 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     14LPA1010/CC     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Isle of Anglesey County Council 

 

Cais amlinellol ar gyfer codi annedd gyda'r holl faterion wedi'u cadw'n ôl ar dir / Outline 

application for the erection of a dwelling with all matters reserved on land 

   

Cefn Trefor, Trefor 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 115



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (SCR) 

 

 Recommendation:   

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application has been submitted by the Local Authority and the land is owned by the Council  

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The application is in outline form for the erection of a detached dwelling on land at Cefn Trefor, Trefor. 

 

The plot of land lies to the front of the existing agricultural buildings at Cefn Trefor and lies 

immediately adjoining Capel Ebenezer.  A new access to the site will be afforded directly off the 

B5109.  

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The applications main issues are whether the proposal complies with current policies, will the 

proposal affect the amenities of the neighbouring properties and whether the proposal will harm the 

surrounding landscape and highway safety. 

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Môn Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy  

Policy 42 – Design 

Policy 50 – Listed Settlement 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy A2 – Housing 

Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design  

Policy D28 – Design 

Policy D29 – Design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy HP5 – Countryside Hamlets and Clusters 

 

Technical Advice Note 12: Design 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance – Design Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Local Member, Cllr. D Rees – No response to date 

 

Local Member, Cllr. N Roberts – No response to date 

Page 116



 

Local Member, Cllr. B Parry - No response to date 

 

Community Council – No objection 

 

Highways – Requested further information.  A copy of the requested information has been received 

and forwarded to the Highway Authority.  At the time of writing this report we are awaiting the 

response of the Highway Authority. 

 

Drainage – Standard comments and requested that full details of the means of disposal of surface 

water is submitted with any full or detailed application. 

 

Welsh Water – Standard comments 

 

The application was afforded two means of publicity these were; the posting of a site notice near the 

site and the serving of personal notifications on neighbouring properties.  The latest date for the 

receipt of representations was the 6
th
 March, 2015  

and at the time of writing this report no letters of representation had been received at the department.   

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

None 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Policy Context - Trefor is defined as a Listed Settlement under Policy 50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan 

and as a countryside hamlet and cluster under Policy HP5 of the stopped Unitary Development Plan. 

 

Policy 50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan states that planning permission will ‘normally only’ be granted 

for single dwellings within or on the edge of the settlement.   

 

The site lies on the edge of the settlement of Trefor and lies next to the existing Chapel and to the 

front of the agricultural buildings at Cefn Trefor.  There is a residential property located directly 

opposite the application site and therefore the proposal is considered as an acceptable extension to 

the village. 

 

Effect on neighbouring properties – There are no immediate neighbouring properties and the 

nearest property is Maglyn which is a single storey property on the opposite side of the Highway.  The 

dwelling will not be visible from Cefn Trefor due to the agricultural buildings being located between 

both properties.  Due to the distances between the application site and adjoining properties it is not 

considered that the development will harm the amenities currently enjoyed by the occupants of the 

neighbouring dwellings. 

 

Effect on surrounding area –As stated above the site lies on the edge of the settlement and lies 

immediately next to the local Chapel and to the front of the agricultural buildings that form part of Cefn 

Trefor.  There is a mixture of house types in the locality and the erection of a two storey dwelling in 

this location would not appear out of character with the existing pattern of development or result in the 

over-development of the site to the detriment of the surrounding area.   

 

Highway Safety – The Highway Authority have requested further information in regards to the 

visibility splay from the proposed access.  At the time of writing this report the requested information 

had been forwarded to the Highway Authority for consideration.     

Page 117



 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The proposal complies with current policies and is considered as an acceptable extension to the 

settlement.  The residential development of the site will not harm the amenities of the occupants of 

neighbouring properties or harm the surrounding area.   

 

My recommendation is one of approval subject to the Highway Authority’s approval for the proposed 

new vehicular access. 

 

 8. Recommendation 

 

Permit the application subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 

before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 

go to the heart of the permission/ development. 

 

(01) The approval of the Council shall be obtained before any development is commenced to 

the following reserved matters viz. the layout, scale, appearance of the building, means of 

access thereto and the landscaping of the site.  

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) Application for approval of the reserved matters hereinbefore referred to shall be made 

not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(03) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than whichever 

is the later of the following dates namely: - (a) the expiration of five years from the date of this 

permission or (b) the expiration of two years from the final approval of the said reserved 

matters or in the case of approval on different dates the final approval of the last such matter 

to be approved. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(04) Natural slates of uniform colour shall be used as the roofing material of the proposed 

building(s). 

 

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. 

 

(05) Full details of all fencing, walling or other means of enclosure or demarcation shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority before any work on the 

site is commenced. 

 

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. 

 

(06) Full details of the existing and proposed ground levels and finished floor levels shall be 

submitted as part of any full or detailed application. 

 

Reason : In the interest of amenity 

Page 118



 

(07) Full details of the means of disposal of surface water shall be submitted as part of any full 

or detailed application. 

 

Reason: To ensure that site can be adequately drained 

 

(08) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 

the plans, sections and elevations required to be approved by the local planning authority 

under the conditions imposed. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

 

 

 

 

Page 119



12.4 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     17C476A     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Mr Steven Collier 

 

Cais llawn ar gyfer ail-leoli y ffenestri yn / Full application for the re-location of windows at 

   

13 Glyn Garth Court, Menai Bridge 

   

 

 
 

 

 

Page 120



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (GJ) 

 

 Recommendation:   

 

Permit. 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is being presented to the Planning Committee at the request of the local member. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

This is a full application for the re-location of windows at 13 Glyn Garth Court, Menai Bridge. 

 

The application site is a prominent building located to the South of the Glyn Garth road leading from 

Menai Bridge to Beaumaris.  

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The key issue is whether the proposal has any impact on the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, 

how it fits in with the existing building, whether the work has an impact on any neighbouring property. 

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 30 - Landscape 

Policy 42 – Design 

Policy 58 – Extensions 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy D4 – Siting and Design  

Policy D29 - Design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy EN1 – Landscape Character 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Community Council – No observations. 

 

Local Member (Alwyn Rowlands) – Requested the application is presented to the planning 

committee for consideration due to its unique architecture. 

 

Local Member (Lewis Davies) – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Local Member  (Carwyn Jones) – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Welsh Water – No response at the time of writing the report 

Page 121



 

Natural Resources Wales – Standard Advice 

 

A site notice was placed near the site and neighbouring properties were notified by letter.  The expiry 

date for receiving representations was the 21/04/2015.  At the time of writing the report 1 letter was 

received supporting the application and 11 letters of objection were received.     

 

The main reasons for supporting the application was as follows:- 

 

- It would be a great advantage as it would allow up to half of the flats in the block to increase 
the size of their north facing bedrooms from 11 metre square to 14.8 metre square. 

- The proposal will not have a significant visual impact on the area providing the window style 
matches existing flats 
 

Main reasons for objections:- 

 

- The proposal would destroy the uniformity of the elevation and would open floodgates for 
other freeholders to introduce amendments to the elevations 

- The alteration would spoil the balance and aesthetic look of the building. 
- The proposal would be incongruous and out of keeping with the other two bedroom flats 
- Works have been carried out to renew the cladding to the West elevation and the making 

good and decorating the North elevation in order to improve the appearance of the external 
elevation and the works would be detrimental to the recent visual improvements achieved to 
the buildings elevations. 

- The balconies have not been built to withstand any extra weight and not possible to place 
heavy objects on the area. 

 

In response to the objections raised:- 

 

- The general pattern of development on the façade of the apartments are enclosed bay 
windows every other floor.  The proposal involves filling in between both floors to match the 
flat above and below.   It is acknowledged that the proposal will set a precedent for other flats 
to follow suit.  It is also acknowledged that there will be a change the existing rhythm of the 
building; however, it is not considered that this would have a negative impact on the existing 
building or the AONB enough to warrant refusing the application. 

- It is not considered that the proposal will be an incongruous feature due to the work being 
proposed to the facade facing the road. 

- The applicant would have to apply for Building Regulations for the work and they would look 
at whether the balconies are capable of taking any additional loading. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

17C476 – Remove existing cladding and replace with new cladding at Glyn Garth flats, Glyn Garth – 

Granted 6/11/12 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

The subject flat is located in the tall tower block of flats known as Glyn Garth Court.  The site is 

located within the designated Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and lying on the bank of the Menai 

Straights.  The flats are located on the Glyn Garth road leading from Menai Bridge to Beaumaris. 

 

The general pattern of development on the façade of the apartments are enclosed bay windows every 

other floor.  The proposal involves filling in between both floors to match the flat above and below.   

 

It is acknowledged that the proposal will set a precedent for other flats to follow suit.  It is also 

acknowledged that there will be a change the existing rhythm of the building; however, it is not 

Page 122



considered that this would have a negative impact on the existing building or the AONB enough to 

warrant refusing the application. 

 

The applicant has submitted amended plans so that the window design is consistent with the layout of 

the flats above and below. There is a minor deviation in that for the left hand frame (as viewed from 

the exterior) the horizontal split of the fixed and opening panes is slightly higher than for the flats 

above and below. This is due to personnel safety in the event the upper window is opened. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

It is not considered that the development will have a negative impact on the existing building, on the 

AONB or have an impact on neighbouring residential properties.   

 

 8. Recommendation 

 

To permit the development subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend any condition(s) before the 

issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or go to the 

heart of the permission/ development. 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the 

expiration of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt 

 

(02) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 

the plan(s) submitted on the 25/02/2015 and 25/03/2015 under planning application reference 

17C476A. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt 

 

 9. Other Relevant Policies  

 

Technical Advice Note 12 – Design 

 

SPG – Urban and Rural Environment 

 

 

Planning Policy Wales 7
th

 Edition  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 123



12.5  Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     19C690C     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Mr Gwynfor Jones 

 

Cais llawn ar gyfer addasu ac ehangu yn / Full application for alterations and extensions at  

   

14 Cae Braenar, Holyhead 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 124



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (OWH) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Permit. 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application has been called-in by the Local Member. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The application site is within a residential area in Cae Braenar, Holyhead. 

 

The proposal entails alterations and extensions to the rear of the dwelling.  

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The key issue is whether the proposed scheme is acceptable.  

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 5 – Design 

Policy 42 – Design 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design 

Policy D29 - Design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – General Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy HP 7a – Extension 

 

Planning Policy Wales (7th Edition), July 2014 

 

Technical Advice Note 12 – Design 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Councillor Arwel Roberts – Requested the application be determined by the Planning & Orders 

Committee. 

 

Councillor Raymond Jones - No response received at the time of writing this report. 

 

Councillor Robert Jones – No response received at the time of writing this report. 

 

Town Council – No objection. 

Page 125



 

Drainage – Standard comments  

 

Welsh Water - Standard comments 

 

Public Consultation – The application was afforded two means of publicity. These were by the 

placing of a notice near the site and serving of personal notifications on the owners of neighbouring 

properties. The latest date for the receipt of representations was the 18/05/2015.  

 

At the time of writing this report, one letter of representation has been received. 

 

Their concerns are the effect of overlooking by the proposed scheme.  

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

19C690 – Alterations and extensions to 14 Cae Braenar, Caergybi. Approved 06/03/1998 

 

19C690A – Full application for alterations and extensions which include the raising of the height to 

provide first floor accommodation at 14 Cae Braenar, Caergybi. Refused 17/09/2014 

 

19C690B - Full application for alterations and extensions which include the raising of the height to 

provide first floor accommodation at 14 Cae Braenar, Caergybi Refused 04/11/2014 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

The proposal entails alterations and extensions at the rear of 14 Cae Braenar.  

 

The proposed extension will be single storey measuring 3.3 metres in width and 4.7 metres in height. 

The height of the proposed extension will not be higher than the existing dwelling and the height of 

the main dwelling will not be increased. The proposed materials for the extension are considered 

acceptable.  

  

The levels in land between 14 Cae Braenar and 1 Digney Close varies. 1 Digney Close lies lower 

than 14 Cae Braenar, as such  there is no overlooking into the garden area of 1 Digney Close; 

however, 1 Digney Close is able to see the windows of the proposed extension.  

 

It is considered that the proposed height of the additional screening as shown on the proposed 

drawing is an issue; therefore a condition has been recommended requesting further details of the 

proposed screen between 14 Cae Braenar and 1 Digney Close. This is to ensure that the height of 

the boundary treatment is adequate and is sufficient to alleviate any concerns of overlooking.  

 

It is not considered that the proposed scheme will impact the amenities of neighbouring properties or 

the surrounding area to such a degree that it should warrant refusing the application.  

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The proposed development is considered acceptable to the Local Planning Authority. Consequently, it 

is my opinion that the proposal should be permitted subject to conditions. 

  

 8. Recommendation  

 

To permit the development subject to conditions. 

Page 126



 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 

before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 

go to the heart of the permission/development. 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the 

expiration of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) Notwithstanding the submitted drawings, no development shall commence until details of 

a boundary screen between the rear garden area of 14 Cae Braenar and 1 Digney Close has 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The said scheme 

shall be erected in accordance with the details as approved prior to the commencement of 

development of the extension and shall thereafter be maintained in like condition in perpetuity.   

 

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity. 

 

 

 

Page 127



12.6 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     19C1156     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Mr Mathew Doutch 

 

Cais llawn i ymestyn y cwrtil ynghyd a addasu ag ehangu yn / Full application for extension of 

curtilage together with alterations and extensions at 

   

74 Queens Park, Holyhead 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 128



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (OWH) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The land is owned by the Council. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The site is within a residential area at Queens Park in Holyhead 

 

The proposal entails alterations and extensions together with an extension to the existing curtilage 

which is currently within Council ownership.  

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The key issue is whether the proposed scheme is acceptable.  

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 5 – Design 

Policy 42 – Design 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design 

Policy D29 - Design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – General Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy HP 7a – Extension 

 

Planning Policy Wales (7th Edition), July 2014 

 

Technical Advice Note 12 – Design 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Councillor Arwel Roberts – Support 

 

Councillor Raymond Jones -  No objection 

 

Councillor Robert Jones – No response received at the time of writing this report 

 

Town Council – No response received at the time of writing this report 

Page 129



 

Public Consultation – The application was afforded two means of publicity. These were by the 

placing of a notice near the site and serving of personal notifications on the owners of neighbouring 

properties. The latest date for the receipt of representations was the 05/05/2015. At the time of writing 

this report, no letters of representation had been received. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

No relevant planning history. 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

The proposal entails alterations and extensions to the dwelling together with an extension to the 

existing curtilage at the side of 74 Queens Park. Currently the land is within Council ownership. 

 

The proposed extension will be two-storey with a pitched roof to the side of the dwelling to form a new 

kitchen/dining room area on the ground floor together with a bedroom on the first floor. The proposed 

materials to be used are considered to be acceptable.   

 

The extension to the existing curtilage will site the proposed extension to the dwellinghouse.  

 

It is not considered that the proposed scheme will impact the amenities of neighbouring properties or 

the surrounding area to such a degree that it should warrant refusing the application.  

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The proposed development is considered acceptable to the Local Planning Authority. Consequently, it 

is my opinion that the proposal should be permitted subject to conditions. 

  

 8. Recommendation  

 

To permit the development subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 

before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 

go to the heart of the permission/development. 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the 

expiration of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

 

 

 

Page 130



12.7 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     32C193     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Mr Gwyndaf Williams 

 

Cais llawn ar gyfer ehangu'r cwrtil yn / Full application for the extension of the curtilage at 

   

7 Tre Ifan Estate, Caergeiliog 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 131



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (OWH) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Permit. 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The land is owned by the Council. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The site is within a residential area at Tre Ifan Estate in Caergeiliog. 

 

The proposal entails an extension to the existing residential curtilage which is currently within Council 

ownership. 

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The key issue is whether the proposed scheme is acceptable.  

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – General Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

 

Planning Policy Wales (7th Edition), July 2014 

 

 

Technical Advice Note 12 – Design 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Councillor Gwilym Owen– No response received at the time of writing this report. 

 

Councillor Richard Dew -  No response received at the time of writing this report 

 

Community Council – No response received at the time of writing this report 

 

Public Consultation – The application was afforded two means of publicity. These were by the 

placing of a notice near the site and serving of personal notifications on the owners of neighbouring 

properties. The latest date for the receipt of representations was the 05/05/2015. At the time of writing 

this report, no letters of representations had been received. 

Page 132



 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

No site history 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

The proposal entails an extension to the existing residential curtilage at the rear of 3 Tre Ifan Estate.  

 

The land currently forms part of a parking area allocated to the terraced dwellings. By extending the 

curtilage of the dwelling, a small parcel of land (measuring 14m x 5.5m) will be formed into a garden. 

The height of the wall annotated A-B on the drawing will measure 0.6m.  

 

It is not considered that the proposed scheme will impact the amenities of neighbouring properties or 

the surrounding area to such a degree that it should warrant refusing the application.  

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The proposed development is considered acceptable to the Local Planning Authority. Consequently, it 

is my opinion that the proposal should be permitted subject to conditions. 

  

 8. Recommendation  

 

To permit the development subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 

before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 

go to the heart of the permission/development. 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the 

expiration of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

 

 

Page 133



12.8 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications 

   

Rhif y Cais:     34LPA1009/CC     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Head of Service Estates (Property) 

 

Cais amlinellol ar gyfer codi annedd gyda'r holl materion wedi'u gadw'n ôl ar dir yn 

ymyl/Outline application for the erection of a dwelling with all matters reserved on land near  

   

Saith Aelwyd, Rhosmeirch 

   

 
 

 

 

 

Page 134



Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (GJ) 

 

 Recommendation:   

 

Permit. 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is being presented to the Committee as the land is owned by the Council. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

This is an outline application with all matters reserved for the erection of a dwelling on land at Saith 

Aelwyd, Rhosmeirch. 

 

The site is located on the East side of the B5111 at the Southern limit of Rhosmeirch.  It is a vacant 

field with dwellings on the opposite side of the road. 

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

Is this an acceptable location for a dwelling in terms of policy and amenity? 

 

3. Main Policies 

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 31 - Landscape 

Policy 42 – Design 

Policy 48 – Housing Development Criteria 

Policy 50 – Listed Settlements 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy A2 – Location and Housing Land 

Policy A3 – Scale and Phasing of Housing 

Policy D4 – Siting and Design  

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy EN1 – Landscape Character 

Policy HP5 – Countryside Hamlets and Clusters 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Town Council – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Local Member (Bob Parry) – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Local Member (Nicola Roberts) – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Page 135



Local Member  (Dylan Rees) – No response at the time of writing the report 

 

Drainage – Comments 

 

Welsh Water – Conditional Approval 

 

Highways – Conditional Approval 

 

A site notice was placed near the site and neighbouring properties were notified by letter.  The expiry 

date for receiving representations was the 05/02/2015.  At the time of writing the report no letters 

were received. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

None 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Rhosmeirch is identified as a Listed Settlement in the Ynys Mon Local Plan where new dwellings 

should be within or form a reasonable minor extension to the existing part of the settlement and 

should not constitute an undesirable intrusion into the landscape or harm the amenities of the locality. 

 

 

The proposal should also not exceed the requirements of the settlement and the design must closely 

reflect or compliment the character of existing buildings. 

 

In the Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan this settlement is identified by an indicative 

frame.  Within this frame single dwellings will be allowed on infill sites and those immediately adjacent 

to the settlement and should not harm the character of the location or intrude into the countryside. 

 

The dwelling will be located alongside an existing dwelling and indeed there are others on the 

opposite side of the road,  As such it is considered in this instance that the proposed dwelling is 

located on the edge of the settlement in a position which will not intrude into the landscape or harm 

the character of the location. 

 

In addition given that a bungalow is proposed and that this is an outline application where all matters 

are reserved and will be submitted at a later stage which can be scrutinized to ensure that there is no 

overlooking, it is considered that the dwelling will not unduly harm the amenities of the adjacent 

occupier. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The proposal is acceptable in policy terms and will not harm the amenities of nearby residential 

occupiers to an extent that would warrant a refusal of the application. 

 

 8. Recommendation 

 

To permit the development subject to conditions. 

 

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend any condition(s) before the 

issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or go to the 

heart of the permission/ development. 

Page 136



 

(01) The approval of the Council shall be obtained before any development is commenced to 

the following reserved matters viz. the layout, scale, appearance of the building, means of 

access thereto and the landscaping of the site. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) Application for approval of the reserved matters hereinbefore referred to shall be made 

not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(03) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than whichever 

is the later of the following dates namely: - (a) the expiration of five years from the date of this 

permission or (b) the expiration of two years from the final approval of the said reserved 

matters or in the case of approval on different dates the final approval of the last such matter 

to be approved. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(04) Natural slates of uniform colour shall be used as the roofing material of the proposed 

building(s). 

 

Reason: In the interests of amenity. 

 

(05) The access shall be laid out and constructed strictly in accordance with the submitted 

plan before the use hereby permitted is commenced and thereafter shall be retained and kept 

free from permanent obstruction and used only for access purposes. 

 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

 

(06) The access shall be completed with a bitumen surface for the first 5 metres from the 

nearside edge of the County Highway with the surface water drainage system completed and 

in working order before any work is commenced. 

 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

 

(07) The vehicle driveways shall be constructed with its gradient not exceeding 1 in 20 for the 

first 5 metres back from the nearside edge of the adjoining footway. 

 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

 

(08) The access shall be constructed with a 2.4 metre by 120 metre splays on either side. 

Within the vision splay lines nothing exceeding 1 metre in height above the level of the 

adjoining carriageway shall be permitted at any time. 

 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

 

(09) Ni chaniateir i ddŵr wyneb o gwrtil y safle arllwys i’r Briffordd sirol.  Ni chaniateir cychwyn 

ar unrhyw ddatblygiad hyd nes y bydd manylion dylunio llawn ar gyfer draenio’r safle wedi eu 

cyflwyno i’r Awdurdod Cynllunio Lleol cymeradwyo ganddo a’u.  Ni chaniateir i neb symud i 

fyw i’r anheddau hyd nes y bydd y cynllun a gymeradwywyd wedi ei weithredu’n llawn ac er 

Page 137



fodd ysgrifenedig yr Awdurdod Cynllunio Lleol 

 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

 

(10) The car parking accommodation shall be completed in full accordance with the details as 

submitted before the use hereby permitted is commenced and thereafter retained solely for 

those purposes. 

 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

 

(11) The highway boundary wall/hedge/fence or any new boundary erected fronting the 

highway shall at no time be higher than 1 metre above the level of the adjoining county road 

carriageway along the whole length of the site's boundary with the adjoining highway and 

nothing exceeding this height erected within 2m. of the said wall. 

 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

 

(12) Foul water and surface water discharges must be drained seperately from the site. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 

 

(13) No surface water shall be allowed to connect either directly or indirectly to the public 

sewerage system unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 

 

(14) Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge either directly or indirectly into 

the public sewerage system. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the 

environment. 

 

(15) The dwelling hereby approved shall be a single storey/dormer bungalow only. 

 

Reason: In the interests of amenity. 

 

 9. Other Relevant Policies  

 

Technical Advice Note 12 – Design 

 

SPG – Urban and Rural Environment 

 

Planning Policy Wales 7
th

 Edition  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 138



13.1 Materion Eraill                                                              Other Matters 

   

Rhif y Cais:     20C265E/SCR     Application Number 

 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 

 

Horizon Nuclear Power Wylfa Limited 

 

Barn sgrinio ar gyfer codi Canolfan Rheoli Argyfwng Amgen (CRAA) a Labordy Arolwg Ardal 

(LAA), gosod is-orsaf drydan a gwaith cysylltiedig ar dir yn / Screening opinion for the erection 

of an Alternative Emergency Control Centre (AECC) and District Survey Laboratory (DSL), the 

siting of an electricity sub-station and associated works on land at  

   

Wylfa Power Station, Tregele 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 139

Agenda Item 13



 

Planning Committee: 13/05/2015 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (SWO) 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

In order that Members are kept conversant of all matters relating to the Wylfa Newydd development.  

 

Having considered the proposed development taking into account the information submitted and the 

selection criteria contained in Schedule 3 of the Regulations, it is considered that the proposed 

development is unlikely to have significant effects on the environment and that EIA is not required. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 140


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Applications Arising
	10 Departure Applications
	11 Development Proposals Submitted by Councillors and Officers
	12 Remainder of Applications
	13 Other Matters

